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To the shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), we are
pleased to present the annual results and the annual report
for the year ended 31st December 2018 of China Star
Entertainment Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively as “the Group”) to the shareholders.

During this year, the Group recorded an exceptional profit of
HK$1,465,231,000 on disposal of its hotel and gaming service
operations, and has appropriated it to fund the distribution of
a special dividend of HK15 cents per share declared on 18th
December 2018 by altering the announced original use of
proceeds of disposal by the Board as a reward to the support
of the shareholders to the Company.

The Group has currently two reportable segments of continuing
operations, namely (1) film related business operations; and
(2) property development and investment operations. Owing
to the fact that these two operations are not able to generate
steady periodic revenue, the Group cannot provide stability in

its yearly revenue. A film “ B2 5 is expected to release

and generate revenue during the year, while the property

development arm needs to have revenue in the year 2020.

The Group has succeeded in implementing the long-term
policy of focusing on the existing two continuing operations,
such that the reward to the shareholders’ support and the
persisting confidence in the prospects of Macau, especially an
optimistic attitude towards the property market of Macau, have
become utterly necessary and timely, with an aim to advance
continuously the development of Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E at
Zona de Aterros do Porto Exterior (ZAPE) and Lot 7, da Zone
C do Plano de Urbanizagdo da Zone da Bafa da Praia Grande
located at Nam Van Lakes Zone, Avenida Doutor Stanley Ho
and to bring about a higher investment return for the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4F§R
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Our confidence is rooted in the deepening construction of the
“One (Portuguese) Centre, One (Tourism) Platform” in the past
year with the properly diversified development of economy
yielding results and the non-gaming industries (the exhibition
industry as a highlight) accounting for ascending portions of
revenue, under which the gross amount of the added value of
emerging industries rose 20% as the construction transforming
Macau into a world-class tourism and leisure centre embraces
a golden age of development. According to statistics from
the Macau government, Macau International Airport reported
record high growth in the number of tourists and the number
of flights, growth by 15% and 12% as compared with the same
period last year respectively; likewise, the number of arrival
tourists in Macau reached a record high of 36 million with
a high degree of satisfaction among tourists, implying that
Macau is attracting more and more tourists as a destination
for their international tours. On the other hand, signified
with the opening to traffic of the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau
Bridge and coupled with the launch of a series of ancillary
measures in 2018, Macau is integrating into the construction
of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area in an
accelerated pace, for instance, Macau has successfully held
the Youth Forum for Joint Construction of the Greater Bay
Area in October as the Macau Young Entrepreneur Incubation
Centre inaugurated in the same month; With respect to policy
support, Mainland China has signed the Closer Economic
Partnership Arrangement (CEPA) Agreement on Trade in
Goods with Macau in December, which, together with the
previously signed CEPA Agreement on Trade in Services,
Agreement on Investment and Agreement on Economic and
Technological Cooperation, have marked the accomplishment
ahead of time of the target of upgrading CEPA as scheduled
in the State’s “13th Five-Year Plan”.

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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With regard to the property market, according to figures
issued by Centaline Property, a leading property agency, the
total trading volume of industrial and commercial shops for
the whole year of 2018 was approximately 630 transactions,
representing increases of 6.9% to 13.5% over the past two
years as the total trading amount possibly rebounding to
MOP10 billion. As to residential property, clouded by the Sino-
US trade friction and other external factors, the market was
rife with wait-and-see sentiments in the second half of the year
with a significant drop in trading volume, which even dropped
to below 2,000 transactions in the fourth quarter but managed
to maintain at the level of 10,000 transactions for 2018. The
housing price calculated in terms of saleable area averaged
approximately MOP110,000 per square meter (if calculated in
70% of gross floor area, averaged approximately MOP7,100
per square foot), and the total trading volume and the price
approximated with those of 2017. They anticipate that the
market of the industrial and commercial shops will outperform
the general property market, while the residential market will
improve moderately, and both are benefited by the desirable
revenues from gaming and tourism industries and the generally
flourishing economy with an expected rise of 10% to 15% in
prices.

Our largest confidence in Macau is inevitably linked to the
“Outline Development Plan for the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macau Greater Bay Area” recently promulgated by the State
Council on 18th February this year. The Outline stipulates that
the four core cities, namely Hong Kong, Macau, Guangzhou
and Shenzhen, are to be built as core engines for regional
development to strengthen the radiating effect in leading
the development of nearby regions. Among them, the four
core cities should have their respective division of work and
focus, and, as it repeatedly emphasized, the nine cities in
the Mainland and the two special administrative regions
should be integrated with complementary functions and with
development targets set. It is expected that by 2022, the
combined strength of the Greater Bay Area should increase
substantially, the cooperation among Guangdong, Hong Kong
and Macau should be deepened and broadened, the internal
driving forces for development should be further enhanced
in the region, and that by 2035, the Greater Bay Area should
become an economic system and mode of development mainly
supported by innovation. According to the Outline, Macau
is termed as “having a relatively homogeneous economic
structure”, and is positioned as a world-class tourism and
leisure centre, as well as an economic and trade cooperation
serving platform between China and Lusophone countries. It
needs to promote properly diversified development of economy
and forge a base of exchange and cooperation dominated
with Chinese culture whilst incorporating co-existence of multi-
cultures.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4F§R
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The above-mentioned favourable factors, coupled with the
formal opening to traffic of the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau
Bridge at 9:00 am, 24th October 2018, represent the virtual
realization of the “one-hour-life circle” within Guangdong, Hong
Kong and Macau. In spite of the difficult times in the course
of economic transformation and upgrade confronting China,
and intensified restrains being imposed by some developed
countries in aspects of market, resource and mechanism,
especially the uncertainties associated with Sino-US trade
disputes incited by the incumbent US administration, the
Board has full confidence in the prospects of the Greater Bay
Area and Macau with the support of policies of the State and
efforts made by all circles in Macau. We also believe that we
are able to overcome difficulties, to better utilize the Group’s
resources to facilitate and develop its own established film
production and distribution operations and to administer and
complete the development of the property development and
investment operations, to generate profits as well as returns for
the Group and the shareholders. Last but not least, on behalf
of the Board, | would like to extend my immense appreciation
to the shareholders for their relentless support, our staff force
for their unremitting spirit, and our business partners for their
cooperation and support.

Heung Wah Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th March 2019
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31st December 2018, the Group recorded
revenue from continuing operations of HK$3,493,000,
representing a decrease of 62% as compared to HK$9,272,000
for the year ended 31st December 2017.

Profit for the year amounted to HK$1,053,519,000, as
compared to HK$73,336,000 for the year ended 31st
December 2017. Such substantial increase in profit is mainly
attributable to the gain on disposal on the entire equity
interest in Charming Era Investment Limited, Exceptional
Gain Profits Limited and Most Famous Enterprises Limited
and their respective subsidiaries of HK$1,465,231,000 which
represented the hotel and gaming service operations of
the Group. Such profit is partially offset by the substantial
increase in the recognition of loss of HK$360,209,000 (2017:
gain of HK$210,791,000) arising on change in fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which mainly
represented the decrease in market value of the Group’s
equity securities listed in Hong Kong of HK$365,544,000.

Loss for the year from continuing operations amounted to
HK$405,336,000, as compared to profit of HK$110,031,000 for
the last year. Profit for the year from discontinued operations
amounted to HK$1,458,855,000 as compared to loss of
HK$36,695,000 for the year ended 31st December 2017.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31st December 2018 amounted to HK$1,053,530,000
as compared to HK$73,312,000 in the previous year.

DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31st December 2018 (2017: nil).

During the year, the Group declared a special dividend of
HK15 cents per share in aggregate amount of HK$420,326,000
to the shareholders and the bonus convertible bondholders
of the Company. The special dividend has been paid on 25th
January 2019.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4F§R
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Continuing Operations

The Group has two continuing reportable segments — (1) film
related business operations; and (2) property development
and investment operations.

Of the total revenue for the year, HK$3,493,000 or 100% was
generated from film related business operations. No revenue
was generated from property development and investment
operations.

Film Related Business Operations

Film related business operations included investment,
production, distribution and licensing of films and television
drama series and provision of other film related services
including artist management services.

In year 2018, revenue from film related business operations
amounted to HK$3,493,000 (2017: HK$9,264,000) and its
segment loss amounted to HK$14,477,000 (2017: segment
profit of HK$3,817,000). During the year ended 31st December
2018, the Group did not distribute any new film. The Group
has been engaging in the film business for more than 20
years. Film production normally involves three stages including
pre-production, production or shooting and post-production.
From the pre-production stage to theatrical release of Chinese
film in Hong Kong, it normally takes more than one year and
sometimes several years to complete. The majority of revenue
in film will record within the following two years after the film is
released. As such, it is the characteristic of film production and
distribution that revenue is not recognised evenly with time.
Shooting for a new film which tentatively named “ B2 5% ”
has started in mid-October 2017 and has completed shooting
in February 2018. The plot of this film is about love story. The
post production period will take around a few months and the
film is expected to release in the year 2019. The Group also
has investment in production of film which is co-financing with
other production companies and will shared revenue from the
invested film according to the investment percentage in the
relevant agreement. The Group takes a passive role in this
kind of co-production arrangement and less human resource
are required to contribute.

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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For television drama series, the Group has prepared a few
story board of television drama series and assessing the
feasibility of these story board. A television drama series of
around 6 episodes has passed its feasibility study recently
and shooting for this television drama series is expected to
start in the second half of 2019. This television drama series is
expected to be released in internet platform.

Property Development and Investment Operations

Property development and investment operations included
investing and development of properties located in Macau.
Currently, the Group has two projects under development in
Macau, namely (i) Lot 7, da Zone C do Plano de Urbanizacao
da Zone da Baia de Praia Grande, located at Nam Van Lakes
Zone, Avenida Doutor Stanley Ho, registered with the Macau
Land and Real Estate Registry under no. 23070 (the “Property
C77); and (ii) the combined site at Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot
6E at Zona de Aterros do Porto Exterior (ZAPE), Macau (the
“Combined Site”).

In year 2018,
investment operations amounted to nil (2017: HK$8,000)
and its segment loss amounted to HK$9,206,000 (2017:
profit of HK$3,935,000).
mainly represented increase in administrative expenses in

revenue from property development and

The segment loss for this year

this segment as the Combined Site is in construction stage
and will be completed in the third quarter of 2019. Besides,
this segment had recognised gain on fair value change of
investment properties of HK$1,300,000 (2017: HK$4,120,000).

Under the Urbanistic Conditions Plan, the Property C7 which
is a lot of land with the site area of 4,669 square meters, will
be developed for residential and parking purpose, with the
maximum allowed height of the building of 34.5 meters above
sea level and maximum utilization rate of 5.58 (parking not
included). An architect has been engaged and is still in the
process to compile a development plan of the Property C7 in
accordance with the parameters for submission to the Land,
Public Works and Transport Bureau of Macau (“DSSOPT") for
approval. The very preliminary development plan is to develop
a building under strata title with gross floor areas (in square
meters) for residential of 26,047 and parking of 5,200. The
development of the Property C7 is expected to start after the
development of the Combined Site.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4F§R
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The Group acquired the property leasehold rights (and the
inherent transfer to China Star Creative Development Limited,
a subsidiary of the Company (“CSCDL") of the legal titles) of
Lot 6B, Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E at Zona de Aterros do Porto
Exterior (ZAPE) (the “Sites”) from Sociedade de Turismo e
Diversoes de Macau, S. A. (“STDM”). Lot 6B is in trapezium
shape with a site area of 1,420 square meters next to Hotel Lan
Kwai Fong (the hotel was owned by the Group at that time) and
Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E are in rectangular shape with each
site area of 1,292 square meters next to Lot 6B and adjacent
of each other with three six-meter width roads dividing them
separately. In order to enhance the commercial value of the
Sites, the Group had decided to build a luxury residential and
commercial complex of two towers with spacious apartment
units in Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E (the “Combined Site”) and
Lot 6B would be developed into recreational area between
the Combined Site and Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau (the hotel
owned by the Group and disposed during this year), which
was expected to have higher selling prices than the existing
development plan of the individual Lot 6B, Lot 6C, Lot 6D and
Lot 6E. This development plan also responded strongly to the
local planning authorities requirements for connectivity with
the existing city and thus considerable portions of the area
of the Sites have been dedicated to public use. Finally, the
DSSOPT has approved the combination of development of the
Combined Site of Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E in July 2016. The
total gross floor area of the Combined Site are (a) residential
— 28,422 square meters, (b) clubhouse — 1,927 square meters,
(c) commercial — 4,132 square meters and (d) parking -
11,508 square meters. The expiry date of land concession
of Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E is 21st December 2019 and the
development period of the Combined Site has also granted
an extension until 20th December 2019. Construction works
started in June 2017 and is expected to complete construction
in the third quarter of year 2019.
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Immediately after the acquisition of the property leasehold
rights of the Sites, the Group held meetings with various
departments of Macau Government to seek their views on the
proposed development of the Sites as the Combined Site. In
May 2012, the Group submitted the architectural design and
drawings of the Combined Site to the DSSOPT for approval.
Following the submission, meetings have been held with
various departments of Macau Government for following up
the proposed development plan. Given that the location of the
Sites is adjacent to Macao Polytechnic Institute and several
tourist spots, Forum de Macao, Grand Prix Museum, Wine
Museum and Golden Lotus Square, and is a couple of blocks
away from Macau Fisherman’s Wharf and Sands Casino, it
is believed that the Macau Government required longer time
to study the impacts of the proposed development of the
Combined Site on traffic, environment and cultural heritage
in the surrounding area, before the grant of an approval.
Besides, Lot 6B, Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E are properties
classified as those of 65 properties which non-development
are not the responsibility of the land concessioner announced
in year 2011. Owing to the delay by the Macau Government
in granting the proposed development of the Combined Site,
the land concession of Lot 6B has expired on 25th December
2014. DSSOPT has started the administration work to reclaim
it on dispatch 50/2016 published in the Official Gazette no.
47, 11, of 23rd November 2016 according to Macau new
Land Law effective in March 2014 for the reason that Lot 6B
is undeveloped land on the expiry of the land concession
on 25th December 2014. The Group has filed an appeal to
the President of the Macau Second Instance Court on 30th
December 2016. On 11th June 2018, the Company received
a letter dated 8th June 2018 from the Tribunal de Ultima
Instancia (#2%;AFt) of the Macau Government, in which the
Tribunal de Ultima Instancia (4% %Ft) rejected the application
of the final appeal (the “Decision”). Accordingly, Lot 6B will be
reclaimed by the Macau Government. According to the legal
opinion obtained by the Company, the Group has strong legal
ground to seek compensation for damages sustained by the
Group as a result and the Court will consider and rule taking
into account all the essential points including delays caused
by the Macau Government. As such, the Group has seek legal
advice from its Macau legal representative and consider to
make an application in this regard if necessary. As at 31st
December 2018, the Group is still considering the possibility of
seeking civil claims against the Macau Government and have
to assess its damages in this situation before it can proceed
with any actions.
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As stated above, Lot 6B is planned to develop into a
recreational area besides the Combined Site and the Group
treated the development of the Sites (i.e. the Combined
Site and Lot 6B collectively) as one development project in
its financial position since the acquisition of the property
leasehold rights of the Sites. In addition, in order to increase
the chance of combined the development of Lot 6C, Lot 6D
and Lot 6E, one of the conditions for DSSOPT to approve
the combination of development of the Combined Site was
to keep Lot 6B as an undeveloped land. Although Lot 6B will
be reclaim by the Macau Government, based on the property
valuation report as at 31st December 2018, the market value
of the Combined Site at existing condition is approximately
HK$3,177 million (no value added factor of the recreational
area of Lot 6B was included in this valuation) which together
is higher than the carrying amount of the Combined Site and
Lot 6B. Given that the valuation of the Sites is higher than its
carrying amount, no impairment loss is recognised in respect
of the stock of properties as a result of the Decision.

The Group will closely monitor the development on the
Combined Site and considers that the development of the
Combined Site with higher development value can secure our
investment cost in the project and will contribute considerable
investment return to the Group.

Discontinued Operations
Hotel and Gaming Service Operations

Hotel and gaming service operations was discontinued during
the year ended 31st December 2018.

Hotel and gaming service operations included the hotel
operation in Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau which was recorded
in an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
Hotel Lan Kwai Fong (Macau) Limited (“Hotel LKF”); services
provided to the casino situated in Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau
(“Casino LKF”) which was recorded in an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, Classic Management &
Services Company Limited (“Classic”) and other ancillary
services provided in Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau.

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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Casino LKF is run by license holder Sociedade de Jogos de
Macau, S.A. (“SIM"). Classic has entered into service and site
license agreements with SUM. Under the agreements, Classic
has granted to SUM a right to occupy and use spaces in Hotel
Lan Kwai Fong Macau to operate Casino LKF and Classic is
responsible for the provision of marketing, promotion, publicity,
customer development and introduction, co-ordination of
activities and other services as agreed between Classic and
SJM from time to time in Casino LKF. In return, Classic will
shared a fixed percentage of service income from SJM based
on the monthly gross gaming wins of the mass market and VIP
table gaming and slot machines in Casino LKF.

As the LKF Disposal (as defined herein) has been approved by
the shareholders of the Company in a special general meeting
held on 11th December 2017 and completed on 3rd January
2018, the Company ceased to have any interests in Disposal
Group (as defined herein) and their financial results were
no longer be consolidated into the Company’s consolidated
income statement upon completion. The assets and liabilities
attributable to the Disposal Group have been reclassified as
held for sale and are presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st December 2017.

The Group had shared revenue and segment loss for the
period from 1st January 2018 to 3rd January 2018 (completion
date of disposal) of HK$3,957,000 (2017: HK$640,689,000)
and HK$6,376,000 (2017: HK$36,965,000) from the hotel
and gaming service operations and recorded a gain on
disposal of the hotel and gaming services operations of
HK$1,465,231,000.
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Nam Pei Hong Operations

On 29th March 2017, China Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (“CSBVI") entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with an independent
third party in relation to the disposal of the entire issued share
capital of Ace Season and the sale loan owed by Ace Season
to CSBVI on completion at consideration of HK$85,000,000
(the “NPH Disposal”). Ace Season and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in sales of Chinese and other medicines
pharmaceutical products, health products, ginseng and
dried seafood products to wholesalers and retailers as well
as Chinese clinical services which represented the business
segment of Nam Pei Hong operations of the Group.

The NPH Disposal was completed on 30th June 2017. Upon
completion of the NPH Disposal, the Company ceased to
have any interests in Ace Season and its subsidiaries and
their financial results were no longer be consolidated into
the Company’s consolidated financial statements and thus
classified as discontinued operation in the year ended 31st
December 2017.

During the period from 1st January 2017 to 30th June 2017
(completion date of NPH Disposal), the Group had shared
revenue of HK$74,805,000, segment profit of HK$869,000 and
shared a loss on disposal of HK$599,000.

Geographical Segments

For the geographical segments from the continuing operations,
revenue of HK$719,000 or 21% (2017: HK$768,000 or 8%)
was sourced from Hong Kong, HK$1,233,000 or 35% (2017:
HK$2,260,000 or 24%) was sourced from China, nil or 0%
(2017: HK$1,723,000 or 19%) was sourced from Southeast
Asia including Taiwan and HK$1,541,000 or 44% (2017:
HK$4,521,000 or 49%) was sourced from other territories.

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31st December 2018, administrative
expenses from continuing operations amounted to
HK$84,312,000 (2017: HK$68,931,000), representing an
increase of 22%. The increase was mainly caused by the net
foreign exchange loss of HK$4,253,000 in this year which is a
gain of HK$16,237,000 in last year and the increase in general
expenses due to the construction work of the Combined Site.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31st December 2018, the Group had total assets of
HK$5,483,222,000 (2017: HK$5,099,803,000) and a net current
assets of HK$3,961,647,000 (2017: HK$3,012,777,000),
representing a current ratio of 4.8 (2017: 2.8). The Group
had cash and bank balances and time deposits of
HK$1,156,735,000 (2017: HK$424,355,000).

As at 31st December 2018, the Group did not have any
borrowings (2017: HK$844,170,000).

As at 31st December 2018, the Group had banking facilities
amounting to HK$1,600,000,000 (the “Banking Facilities”)
which were not yet utilised. The Banking Facilities will be
utilised to finance the construction costs and related expenses
of the Combined Site. The Group’s gearing ratio was zero
(2017: 26%), calculated in the basis of the Group’s total
borrowings over owners’ equity. Subsequent to the reporting
date and up to the date of this annual report, the Group has
drawn loan in aggregate amount of HK$660,510,000 from the
Banking Facilities.
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On 19th April 2018, the Company announced that it proposed
to raise approximately HK$451,850,000 before expenses
by way of rights issue of 1,807,406,986 rights shares at
a subscription price of HK$0.25 each on the basis of two
rights shares for every one existing share held on 11th July
2018 (the “Rights Issue”). The estimated net proceeds were
approximately HK$448,850,000, of which approximately
HK$350,000,000 (the “Proceed A”) will be applied to finance
the business operation of the property development and
investment; and approximately HK$98,850,000 will be applied
to fund the film and television drama series related business
operations. On 28th June 2018, the necessary resolution was
passed by the independent shareholders of the Company
at the special general meeting of the Company. The rights
shares were then allotted and issued on 6th August 2018 and
the Rights Issue was completed on the same date. During the
year, the net proceeds of approximately HK$15,532,000 from
the Rights Issue were used in film production for payment of
production and investment cost for film and television drama
series, the remaining balance of approximately HK$83,318,000
will be applied to fund the film and television drama series
related business operations as intended. The Proceed A will
be applied to finance the business operation of the property
development and investment as intended purposes. As the
major construction costs for the Combined Site will be financed
by the Banking Facilities, the Proceed A is expected to finance
the costs for the development of the Combined Site which
are not covered by the Banking Facilities and other business
operation of the property development and investment of the
Group as its intended purpose in the Rights Issue.

As at the date of this annual report and as at 31st December
2018, the fair value of the Group’s equity securities listed
in Hong Kong held as at 31st December 2018 (excluding
suspend trading securities as at 31st December 2018)
was approximately HK$249,733,000 and HK$230,480,000
respectively.

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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During the year, the Group acquired HK$87,700,000 equity
securities listed in Hong Kong and did not disposed any equity
securities listed in Hong Kong. The loss arising on change in
fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit and
loss of HK$365,544,000 was resulted from change in fair
values of equity securities listed in Hong Kong during the year
ended 31st December 2018. As at 31st December 2018, no
single equity security’s fair value held by the Group accounted
for 5% or more of the total assets of the Group.

As at 31st December 2018, the Group had loan receivables
in principal amount of HK$200 million which will matured
within the next twelve months. All interest due from loan
receivables were received in accordance with the terms in
their corresponding agreements on due date. No new loan
receivables were granted during the year.

During the year ended 31st December 2018, 52,000,000
share options and 38,000,000 share options were granted on
5th October 2018 and 8th October 2018 respectively. On 5th
October 2018, the Company issued 52,000,000 new shares at
a price of HK$0.56 per share pursuant to the exercise of share
options granted to the Group’s employees. On 10th October
2018, the Company issued 38,000,000 new shares at a price
of HK$0.56 per share pursuant to the exercise of share options
granted to the Group’s employees and consultant. The purpose
for granting of the share options is to reward employees and
consultant for their contribution and services to the Group in
the past years. The net proceeds of HK$50,400,000 from the
allotment and issue of shares under 90,000,000 share options
will be used to finance general working capital of the Group.
As at 31st December 2018, these net proceeds are unused
and will be used as its intended purpose. During the year,
53,720,000 share options and 196,714 share options were
expired on 3rd May 2018 and 20th August 2018 respectively
and no share options of the Company were lapsed or
cancelled.
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EXCHANGE RISK AND HEDGING

The majority of the Group’s transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in Hong Kong Dollar, Macau Pataca, United
States Dollar and Renminbi. The exposure to fluctuation
in exchange rates in Renminbi mainly arises from receipts
and expenditure incurred in film investment, production and
distribution. The Group has closely monitors its exposure to
this fluctuation and consider appropriate hedging activities if
necessary. The exposure to fluctuation in other currencies is
considered to be minimal and no hedge activity is considered

necessary.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31st December 2018, outstanding commitments
by the Group amounted to HK$1,018,373,000, of which
HK$901,776,000 as development expenditure for stock of
properties in Macau and HK$116,597,000 for film rights, films
in progress and film deposits.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st December 2018, the Group had no material
contingent liability.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Disposal of Charming Era Investment Limited, Exceptional
Gain Profits Limited and Most Famous Enterprises Limited
and the Hotel and Gaming Service Operations

On 10th October 2017, CSBVI and Mr. Chan Meng Kam
(the “Buyer”) entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement (the “SP Agreement”) pursuant to which CSBVI
has agreed to sell and the Buyer has agreed to buy the entire
issued share capital of each of Charming Era Investment
Limited, Exceptional Gain Profits Limited and Most Famous
Enterprises Limited and their subsidiaries (the “Disposal
Group”) and the related loans outstanding and owing to CSBVI
as at completion at sale price of HK$2,000 million (subject to
adjustment in accordance with the terms of the SP Agreement)
(the “LKF Disposal”).
adjusted sale price in accordance with the SP Agreement is

After the relevant adjustment, the

approximately HK$2,034.4 million. The Disposal Group is the
owner and operator of Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau and is also
the owner of 18 residential units in Macau, which are used as
staff quarters.
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The LKF Disposal constitutes very substantial disposal
transaction of the Company under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and is subject to the reporting,
announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. The SP Agreement and
the transactions contemplated have been approved by the
shareholders of the Company in a special general meeting
held on 11th December 2017. The LKF Disposal completed
on 3rd January 2018. After that, the Disposal Group ceased
to be subsidiaries of the Group and their financial results
ceased to be consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and thus classified as discontinued
operation in both years. The assets and liabilities attributable
to the Disposal Group have been reclassified as held for sale
and are presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31st December 2017.

Other than those described above, there were no other
material acquisitions, investments or disposals during the year.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 31st December 2018,
staff (2017: 54 staff) with employee benefit expenses of
HK$58,740,000 (2017: HK$40,789,000) from the continued
operations. The directors believe that the quality of its

the Group employed 52

employees is the single most important factor in sustaining the
Group’s reputation and improving its profitability. The staff are
remunerated based on their work performance, professional
experience and prevailing industry practices. Apart from basic
salaries, pension fund, housing allowances, meal allowances,
medical schemes and discretionary bonuses, share options
are awarded to certain staff according to the assessment of
individual performance.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There is no significant event took place subsequent to end of
the reporting date.

PROSPECT

2019 will be an important year for the Group as our first
developed project, the Combined Site is going to complete
construction in the third quarter of 2019. After obtaining
the approval from DSSOPT, the construction work of the
Combined Site has started in June 2017 and the progress of
the construction work of the Combined Site is well monitored
and on schedule. The Group expected that the whole
Combined Site will complete by around September 2019.
The Group is not plan to start selling the Combined Site in
2019 since the Group needs time to further decorate the flats
to better condition for sale. Property C7 is in the process of
preparing the development plan and will submit to DSSOPT
for approval once ready. Recently, the residential property
market of Macau shows a healthy growth trend, the Group is
positive on the Macau property market and believes that there
is strong demand for housing in Macau. The Group considers
that property development and investment are more stable
investment for maintaining stable future revenue.

The Group will continue its furtherance and development of
its already well established film production and distribution
business. Recently, the Group has started to co-operate with
well-known film production companies to produce new films
if their plot are attractive in order to increase our production
capacity. Based on news report, Chinese domestic box office
set a new high in global film history, making single-month
record in February 2019, collected a record 11 billion yuan at
the box office up from $10.1 billion yuan in the same period
last year. The Group is confident in the production of film/
television drama series operations.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to strive to achieve
healthy and stable growth by enhancing profitability, maximise
its investment return and position to appropriate business
opportunity.
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DIRECTORS

Mr. HEUNG Wah Keung, aged 70, is the Chairman and
executive director of the Company. He is the husband of Ms.
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany, Vice Chairman and executive director
of the Company. He has over 30 years of experience in the
entertainment and multimedia industries. He was the founder
of Win’s Entertainment Limited (“Win's”) and One Hundred
Years of Film Company Limited (“One Hundred Years”), which
produces films recommended by audiences and distributors
around the world. He is also the honorable chairman and
director of Hong Kong Kowloon and New Territories Motion
Picture Industry Association Limited. Mr. Heung was appointed
as an executive director of the Company in 1996.

Ms. CHEN Ming Yin, Tiffany, aged 62, is the Vice Chairman
and executive director of the Company and the wife of Mr.
Heung Wah Keung. She has over 25 years of experience in the
entertainment and multimedia industries and over 10 years of
experience in property development. Ms. Chen has produced
a number of blockbuster films for Win's and One Hundred
Years. In 2003, she was selected as one of 2003 Women
in Entertainment — International Power by The Hollywood
Reporter. For the years from 2006 to 2010, Ms. Chen was
involved in the planning, monitoring and management of the
renovation and operation of “Beijing Jianguo Apartment” into
serviced apartment by Beijing Shama Real Estate Development
Co. Ltd. Ms. Chen was responsible for all planning and
monitoring of the purchase of Macau Kingsway Hotel in 2007
and then renovated and designed it into two years later’s Hotel
Lan Kwai Fong Macau that launched in August 2009. Hotel Lan
Kwai Fong Macau has been awarded with several international
accolades, which included the “5th China Hotel Starlight
Awards 2009 - Best Designed Boutique Hotel of China”
and the “2012 TripAdvisor Travelers’ Choice 2012 Winner —
Trendiest”. In respect of promoting the notion of environmental
protection, Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau has won the “AHF Asia
Awards 2010 — Leading Green Hotel of Asia” and the “Macao
Green Hotel Award 2010 — Bronze Award”. The result has been
obvious and encouraging. Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau has
been disposed in 2018 and brought considerable profit to the
Group. Other than the duties and responsibilities of the Vice
Chairman, Ms. Chen is also responsible for implementation,
monitoring and management of the approval, planning and
development of the property development projects of the
Group. Ms. Chen was appointed as an executive director of
the Company in 1996.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4F§R



# 3 J W %8 P\ B JB JE Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

IR BFR RARRZHTES HAR
NFRERZRBEBTRILR - FULTABRAKHE
ZERLE YHAKRERGAREHRA - FLLRN
TR FRZERRRFZNTESE -

HEEXRE BFE85 AARRZEYIENTES
BEBNFEFETLER R—NLEtEFAI T hER
CEFLERR B AN —FH HAEE—FEMT
EAYENMCERANEER YER—NANL_FZE
—NMAAFEHPHETCEAESY S EERS2EE - BT
BEXIATREEYRHBEBEB - HALEABEBEITHR
E1,200 N BREZESELE  UNERBEEBBREERE
eV EERECRETARE TEREEREEYR
weE N\EREERFE  EEHHA2016F 115 E2021F114 »
EARBRITREBFARGLCEHESEZENTR
R_TTRFEFERERELAEEBBS) K EEDRIRN
—E-—=F#—ANAE-_ZE—RE+A-F+AARK-Z
—=#—f -+ -HZE-_ZT—+tE—A-F+RHAZEHY
REABERSHER 2B ([BRA]) ER LT ZQF]
ERPREEARAR (ABESHEEEERAR) R
FEABBERERAR(FBRRERERERAA)
ZBUERTEZ - FHNE_T—NFTA+H =
E-RNENAtTHNBEER-_E—+tENNASHEESZEAS
E—IRERBRERDR  KEEBEBEERD A REE
ERBRERARZBYIENTEE HEEE T —=
F+A+ANAE-ZE-NF - HEEASFREX
TEEERAR (MBEFERSRIZERERAF]) 2H
AEERRN - E-—NF_B—BFATAEIFHNTEE T
BELMRARHRBRAERLET - HEETRHE-T
—HFRAA+ABR-_ZT—A"FRA-_+=-BEEZT
AEREEHEEERAR (AETERKERBRAR])
ZEBURTESREREM (BB ERER AR (A1
BREZRAERAR) ZHTES - AEENTR T —R
FREA-+=RAEZE_Z—+F+—FA-t+HEIERE
M(BEB)ERERARZEZS TR MERQ AR
RFTBIER EH - HAEER—NAAANFEZTALARE
ZIEHITES o

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4E$R

Ms. LI Yuk Sheung, aged 51, is an executive director of
the Company. She has more than 20 years experience of
management in the entertainment and multimedia industries.
She is responsible for the overall operations, and is familiar
with the Group’s system. Ms. Li was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in 2001.

Mr. HUNG Cho Sing, aged 78, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. He has over 30 years
of experience in the film distribution industry and founded
Delon International Film Corporation in 1970. He has been the
chairman of Hong Kong Kowloon and New Territories Motion
Picture Industry Association Limited since 1991 and was the
chairman of Hong Kong Film Awards Association from 1992 to
1995. He was also appointed as a consultant of the China Film
Association. Mr. Hung is also a member of the 1,200-member-
HKSAR Election Committee and a vice-chairman of the Cultural
Profession Committee of the Guangdong, Hong Kong and
Macau Cooperation Promotion Council (BRZE EHREAER
ESY(LEELZEERIEEZEE), and was elected the vice-
chairman of Film Association of Guangdong, China for the
period from November 2016 to November 2021. Mr. Hung
was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the HKSAR
Government in 2005 in recognition of his contribution to the
Hong Kong film industry. Mr. Hung was an independent
non-executive director of Hengten Networks Group Limited
(formerly known as Mascotte Holdings Limited) and Freeman
FinTech Corporation Limited (formerly known as Freeman
Financial Corporation Limited), all companies are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), during the period from 9th January 2013
to 26th October 2015 and 22nd January 2013 to 25th January
2017 respectively. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Unity Investments Holdings Limited,
Miko International Holdings Limited and Enerchina Holdings
Limited since 10th October 2014, 14th April 2016 and 6th
April 2017 respectively. Mr. Hung was an executive director of
Universe Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (formerly
known as Universe International Financial Holdings Limited)
during the period from 16th October 2013 to 1st February
2019 and re-designated as a non-executive director on 1st
February 2019. All these companies are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Hung was also appointed
as an independent non-executive director of Koala Financial
Group Limited (formerly known as Sunrise (China) Technology
Group Limited), and an executive director of Eje (Hong Kong)
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Jia Meng Holdings
Limited) since 15th May 2015 and 23rd May 2016 respectively.
Mr. Hung was also the chairman of the board of Eje (Hong
Kong) Holdings Limited during the period from 23rd May 2016
to 20th November 2017. Both companies are listed on the
GEM Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Hung was appointed
as a non-executive director of the Company in 1996.
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Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 67, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. He is the managing
partner of Paul W. C. Ho & Company, Certified Public
Accountants (Practising), and is an associate of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, United
Kingdom and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Ho was an independent non-executive
director of Bel Global Resources Holdings Limited during the
period from 15th February 1997 to 30th September 2018. He is
currently an independent non-executive director of Ngai Hing
Hong Company Limited, both companies are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ho was appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company in 1996.

Mr. TANG Chak Lam, Gilbert, aged 68, is an independent
non-executive director of the Company. He is a practising
solicitor in Hong Kong since 1987 and is a senior partner
of Messrs. Gilbert Tang & Co.. He was a director of Pok Oi
Hospital in 1993 and a member of the Kowloon West Advisory
Committee of Hong Kong Bank Foundation District Community
Programme between July 1991 and November 1995.
Mr. Tang holds a Bachelor of Law Degree from the University
of Buckingham in the United Kingdom, and a Diploma in
Chinese Law from the University of East Asia in Macau.
Mr. Tang was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in 2011.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. TSANG Anna, aged 54, is the Legal Administration
Manager of the Group. She has over 15 years of experience
in the TV & Film Industry. Ms. Tsang has extensive
experience across production, distribution and library content
management of the Film & TV business and expertise in legal
related aspects in Film & TV production, distribution and
copyright enforcement. Ms. Tsang oversees the Department
of Legal Administration, Film & TV Distribution and Content
Library Management of the Group. Ms. Tsang also involves
negotiation on Film & TV production and distribution projects
and took on responsibility of Film & TV production, distribution
and copyright legal-related aspect for the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, Ms. Tsang worked at the Legal Department
of Hong Kong Hospital Authority and TVBI International
Limited.
studies and had been studied LLB of University of London
and a graduate of Diploma for Legal Studies.

Ms. Tsang has completed Company Secretary

Ms. Tsang has
achieved the qualification to use the benchmark as Legal
Executive of The Law Society of Hong Kong. Ms. Tsang joined
the Group in 1999.
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Mr. WAI Kai Fai, aged 56, is the Film and TV Consultant of the
Group. Mr. Wai is a renowned Film and TV Producer, Director
and Scriptwriter, he has produced, directed and script-written
films and TV drama for more than 20 years. Mr. Wai's Feature
Films Production has been invited by Worldwide Film Festival
for screening and nomination for awards, many of Mr. Wai's
Feature Film earned awards in Hong Kong and Worldwide.
Mr. Wai’s TV series “Look Back with Anger” and “The Greed of
Man” is hugely popular on the premiere run, after many years,
re-run of these TV series is also a hit and has pull in lots of
new generation audience. The feature films produced and/or
directed by Mr Wai include “Needing You”, “Love On A Diet”,
“Fat Choi Spirit”, “My Left Eye Sees Ghosts”, “Love For All
Seasons”, “Running On Karma”, “Fantasia”, “The Shopaholics”,
“Mad Detective”, “Written By” etc. Mr. Wai joined the Group
since the year of 2000.

Ms. WONG Shuk Han, Dorothy, aged 53, is the Financial
Controller and Company Secretary of the Company. She
graduated from the City Polytechnic University with a bachelor
degree in Accountancy in 1990. She is an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Prior to her employment with the Group, she
worked with an international accounting firm for over 10 years.
Ms. Wong is primarily responsible for the supervision of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting procedures and
internal control system. She joined the Group in 2001.
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Ms. YEUNG Porlin, age 53, is the Regional Director of the
Company. She has over 15 years experience in TV and
film industry and as of 2006 she has extend her scope of
services to serviced residences, hotel operations and project
development in Beijing and Macau. In 2013, Ms. Yeung was
appointed as the Executive Director of Hotel Lan Kwai Fong
Macau. She graduated from the University of Leicester,
UK with a MBA and is an Advanced Certification holder
in Hospitality Management at the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Ms. Yeung joined the group in 1997. Ms. Yeung
is actively participating in the Company’s residential and
commercial real estate project in Macau.

Mr. TODD Evan, aged 53, is the Project Manager of the
Group. He graduated from Cornell University in the U.S. with
a bachelor degree in 1989. Over the years, he has worked for
Andersen Consulting and Swire Pacific Limited. He first joined
our Group in 1995 and worked over five years in the area of
film distribution in the PRC. In 2009, he rejoined our Group
and began involved in the operation of Hotel Lan Kwai Fong
Macau. Mr. Todd was appointed as the Chief Operating Officer
of Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau from 2013 until 2018.

Ms. SHAW Lai King, Sandy, aged 58, is the Controller
(Network and TV) of the Group. She has over 30 years of
experience in television and movie creation and production.
Her television drama works such as “The Justice Of Life”, “At
the Threshold of An Era”, “Best Selling Secrets”, “Off Pedder”
and so on were well received in terms of approbation and
viewership. Her movie creations included “A Roof with a view”,
“The Heroic Trio”, “A Moment of Romance III” and etc., and
among them, “Justice, My Foot” was once nominated for the
Best Screenplay of the Hong Kong Film Awards. Ms. Shaw
was also the producer of “Come Home Lover: Dinner At 87, a
long television drama series, and “Sky of Love”, a movie, and
so forth. Ms. Shaw joined the Group in 2017.
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INTRODUCTION
The board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of the
Company and the management of the Company are committed

> 3 B 1 ik % Corporate Governance Report
#

=
=

to establishing good corporate governance practices and
procedures. The maintenance of high standard of business
ethics and corporate governance practices has always
been one of the goals of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”). The Company believes that good corporate
governance provides a framework that is essential for effective
management, successful business growth and a healthy
corporate culture, thereby leading to the enhancement of
shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize a quality Board, sound internal controls,
transparency and accountability to all shareholders. By
applying rigorous corporate governance practices, the
Group believes that its accountability and transparency will
be improved thereby instilling confidence to shareholders
and the public. Throughout the financial year ended 31st
December 2018, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the applicable code provisions laid down
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) save for one deviation, details
of which will be explained in the section “Deviation from the
Code” in this report. The Board has, since the amendments
to the Listing Rules regarding corporate governance
practices were first proposed by the Stock Exchange,
continued to monitor and review the Group’s progress
in respect of corporate governance practices to ensure
compliance. Meetings were held throughout the year and
where appropriate, circulars and other guidance notes were
issued to directors and senior management of the Group to
ensure awareness to issues regarding corporate governance
practices.
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THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group’s business, strategic
decisions and performances and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs. In practice, the Board takes
responsibility for decision making in all major matters of the
Company including: the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, the setting of objectives, annual budgets and overall
strategies, material transaction, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters. The
day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the senior executives. These
responsibilities include the implementation of decisions of the
Board, the co-ordination and direction of day-to-day operation
and management of the Company in accordance with the
management strategies and plans approved by the Board.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by these senior executives
and the Board has the full support of them to discharge its
responsibilities.

Composition

As at 31st December 2018, the Board comprises six Directors:
including three executive Directors, namely, Mr. Heung Wah
Keung (Chairman), Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany (Vice Chairman,
performing the role of chief executive as stated in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules) and Ms. Li Yuk Sheung and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Hung Cho
Sing, Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul and Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert.

One of the independent non-executive Directors has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The number of
independent non-executive Directors is more than one-third
of the Board. Biographical details of the Directors are set out
in the section “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 22 to 26.
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The presence of three independent non-executive Directors is
considered by the Board to be a reasonable balance between
executive and non-executive Directors. The Board is of the
opinion that such balance can provide adequate checks and
balances for safeguarding the interests of shareholders and of
the Group. The independent non-executive Directors provide
to the Group with a wide range of expertise and experience
so that independent judgement can effectively be exercised
as well as ensuring that the interests of all shareholders are
taken into account. They are also responsible for participating
in Board meetings, dealing with potential conflicts of interest,
serving on audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee, scrutinising the Group’s performance
and reporting. Through their active participation, they provide
their valuable skills, expertise and experience to the Board and
the committees on which they serve so that the management
process can be critically reviewed and controlled.

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their field
of expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal
and professional ethics and integrity. All the Directors give
sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs. The
Board believes that the ratio of executive to non-executive
Directors is reasonable and adequate to provide checks and
balances that safeguard the interest of the shareholders and
the Company as a whole.

The Board as a whole is responsible for the appointment of
new director and nomination for re-election by shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company. Under the
Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”), the Board may from
time to time appoint a director either to fill a vacancy or as
an addition to the Board. Any new director appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting
after his appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election
at the next following annual general meeting. Any new director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to Bye-law 99(A) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Hung Cho

Sing will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED



1 3 % 76 it ¥ Corporate Governance Report

IEREIER

TEERBEF (JEE L AR R &8+ Tt 17 AR EL 2
BE)ZBRESE T THRA—-ARBRE  NHEREE
SEREEEOE  EBENRERNFE -

TFRAEREEEE MREFCARENE  LERRA
AREEEFENER ERTHEBERER TEMNE
TERIREFESR HREFCERRIBHEALAR
AEBZEE B REBBWMNER BRATE
FHFINTEIZHARBAERMENBE  RHEMRER
ESEETRMABRETIMRIFLRE  BRIMEES
VEERRESEQRRINFIAZHER FRESFS
HEREAOBEA  BRFFROAMEREAR
A ERLMESREFESRNZRE  EEEEN
TEBEMESRBMAAZENEAEH URELE
FEBFMTESERTESTHENBERATRTEH -

BRI EAERABEREB A HEFEHE
MR RS FERANREREE  RAGTARLT 2 A
B

30 hEEEBAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN

The roles of Chairman and Vice Chairman (performing the
role of chief executive as stated in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rule) are separate and not performed by the same individual
to ensure that there is a clear division of responsibilities at the
board level to entail a balance of power and authority.

The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the Board, for
ensuring that the Board functions effectively, and for ensuring
communication of the views of the Board to the public. In
performing this role, the Chairman’s responsibilities include
chairing meetings of the Board; ensuring the board meetings
receive accurate, complete, timely and clear information
concerning affairs of the Company; ensuring constructive
relations between executive and non-executive Directors;
formulating for discussion and decision, questions which
have been moved for the consideration of the Board; ensuring
that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
board meetings; acting as liaison between the Board and
management; in consultation with the Vice Chairman and the
company secretary or his/her designated delegates, drawing
up and approving the agenda for each board meeting taking
into account, where appropriate, any matters proposed by
the other Directors for inclusion in the agenda; and at least
annually hold meetings with independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of the executive Directors.

The Vice Chairman is primarily responsible for recommending
policy and strategic directions for Board approval;
implementing the strategies and policies adopted by the
Board; and conducting the day-to-day operation of the
Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4F§R



B

BERETRY ARRAB=LBUFATEE  HhE
PR BUNRTEZEGEEWBEEFEENR - K
SECERESBUFNTESCFEBUMERE -R
BELETRANFEIBEMEES ARARRREESY
Yk RV N

FFESBESHRZARBAT HEHBAE2BEILFE
HOTEFZH0 I BRARBAETFAFRLELERE
TREMRARLLZLKRI BTGB AL BERMARE

ek Bl 2 B8
BE-T—\F+-A=t+—BLEERN KAF-H
B B RAIN 2 A A T RS AR -

RETRZAAATRGES - FRITEE 2 EERART
£ LARTEFER AT 2EBEIERTES
BRI ES  WAREADBURIAART 2R
REFAR LR RREREEENRE - AATRAE
REUR S5 1 - AR DA 2 0 R B AR E P AU
MEEE-

BEBUFNTEEZMEREF120,0008 7T

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4E$R

# i Corporate Governance Report

INDEPENDENCE

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors,
at least one of whom has appropriate financial management
expertise, in compliance with the Listing Rules. The Group
has received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his independence. The Company
considers these Directors to be independent under the
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All independent non-executive Directors are identified as such
in all corporate communications containing the names of the
Directors. In addition, there is no material relationship among
members of the Board except that Mr. Heung Wah Keung, the
Chairman, is the husband of Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany, the
Vice Chairman of the Company.

DEVIATION FROM THE CODE

Throughout the year ended 31st December 2018, the Company
complied with the Code in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules,
except for the following deviation:

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term and subject
to re-election. However, all the independent non-executive
Directors are not appointed for specific terms but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the provision of
the Bye-laws. The Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in the
Code.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
remunerated at HK$120,000 per year.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

The Board regularly meets in person or through other
electronic means of communication at least four times every
year to determine overall strategic direction and objectives
and approve interim and annual results, and other significant
matters. At least 14 days’ notice of regular Board meeting
are given to all Directors, who are all given an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for discussion.
Apart from regular meetings, senior management from time
to time provides Directors with information on activities and
development of the businesses of the Group. The company
secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for the
meeting and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations
in connection with the meetings are observed and complied
with. The finalized agenda and accompanying board papers
are then sent to all Directors at least three days prior to the
meeting. The company secretary also takes detailed minutes
of the meetings and keeps records of matters discussed and
decision resolved at the meetings.

During the year under review, 17 board meetings were held.
Details of the attendance of the Directors at the general
meetings, meetings of the Board and its respective committees
are as follows:

HESRRE

Number of meetings attended

BRRBEE E=g ERZEEE FHEES REZES
g o b b ]
Annual Audit Remuneration Nomination
EENF General Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
BITES
Executive Directors
mE 11 17/17* i A TiE A 11
Heung Wah Keung N/A N/A
FRAH & i 16/16 TNE A il TEH
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany N/A N/A
TR 11 16/16 NE TEA TEA
Li Yuk Sheung N/A N/A N/A
BYFHTES
Independent Non-Executive Directors
2 11 17/17* 2/2 11 1/1
Hung Cho Sing
mEE 0/1 177" 2/2 TNEA & A
Ho Wai Chi, Paul N/A N/A
B2 11 17/17* 2/2 11 11

Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert

C O HEP - REFERARHMEFR IR ELARTERLR
ZERT EBIIFRITEERT

* Included a Board meeting where the Chairman of the Board met
with independent non-executive Directors, without the presence of
the executive Directors.
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During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss
and formulate the overall strategies of the Group, monitor
financial performances and discuss the annual and interim
results, set annual budgets, as well as discuss and decide on
other significant matters. The execution of daily operational
matters is delegated to management of the Group.

The company secretary records the proceedings of each
board meeting in detail by keeping minutes, including the
record of all decisions by the Board together with concerns
raised and dissenting views expressed (if any). Drafts of
board minutes are circulated to all directors for comment and
approval as soon as practicable after the meeting. All minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on request by
any Director.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information
at all times as the Chairman ensures that the management
will supply the Board and its committees with all relevant
information in a timely manner. They may make further
enquiries if in their opinion it is necessary or appropriate to
request for further information.

They also have unrestricted access to the advice and services
of the company secretary, who is held responsible for
providing Directors with board papers and related materials
and ensuring that all proper Board procedures are followed
and that all applicable laws and regulations are complied with.
If considered necessary and appropriate by the Directors, they
may retain the service of independent professional advisers at
the Group’s expense.

In case where a conflict of interest may arise involving a
substantial shareholder or a director, such matter will be
discussed in a physical meeting and will not be dealt with
by way of written resolutions. Independent non-executive
Directors with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings
dealing with such conflict issues.

The board committees, including the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee, have
all adopted the applicable practices and procedures used in
board meetings for all committee meetings.

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

33



34

1 3 % 76 it ¥ Corporate Governance Report

ARRZBERBFRGREMBRAETIAR R EBR
FMBERCIBYE THKRRZE ARAZEHEER
RHFEBRRAGRRZRARREHFEAGLRNE LRE (10
WERELERE)

EEZRIIRXE

FMEER (BRBLHNTES) BETHEREERAE
EHRAEME ARAKEZER -Hit AKERE
EMEZREEERZERBARSEREZAREAES
VRAFEERUEELZHENTERNE UEREEATE
FEAL BREFRESFZEAENAEMEE  UEA
KECZEBRERTR ZEHEAERANZEHNESTZ
ESLBENBMAREETHE - AAMESEER
EEERHEBLTRULEMEREERE &M
BR O UAERZSEFETZIRARMRE -

EREFNE2EAEERRI LB IBEFTERRA
2 HIMAAREREEATBRRZIAASGERER
EREBROIR ETRAEN  NEREEFFBREY
EEgFHAERMZAMBRKE SEEMEIZ2HIIT
FRHARBZARWNERFREHN -

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

The annual general meeting and other general meetings of
the Company are the primary forum for communication by
the Company with the shareholders and for shareholders’
participation. All shareholders are encouraged to attend the
general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote
at meetings on their behalf if they are unable to attend the
meetings.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
must keep breast of their collective responsibilities as
directors and of the business of the Group. As such, the
Group provides a comprehensive and formal induction to each
newly appointed director upon his/her appointment. Briefings
and orientations are provided and organised to ensure that
the new Directors are familiar with the role of the Board, their
legal and other duties as a director as well as the business
and governance practices of the Group. Such programmes
are tailored to each individual director taking into account
their background and expertise. The company secretary will
continuously update all Directors on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance of the same by all
Directors.

All Directors also participate in continuous professional
development programmes provided or procured by the Group,
such as external seminars organised by qualified professionals
update materials regarding laws and regulation and the Listing
Rules, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in
relation to their contribution to the Board. A record of the
training received by the respective Directors are kept and
updated by the company secretary of the Company.
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The participation by individual Director in the continuous
professional development programme with appropriate
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a Director of a
listed company in 2018 is recorded in the following table.

FHEEERTE SHENMRBBER

EEHER mieE EE

Attending

Reading external

regulatory seminars/

EEnE Name of Director updates programmes

BITES Executive Directors
[DE: Heung Wah Keung v/
ek R 28 Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany v
TR Li Yuk Sheung v
VHEHITES Independent Non-Executive Directors

//J‘E.EE Hung Cho Sing v

&= Ho Wai Chi, Paul v/ v/

BLZ AR Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert v/ v/

EEEBNEENEZIRBEBERNAEEEELR
RERARRBBFAETZ2BUSBE RMELD U HEMbE
KR o

FMEES

GHEASCERT EHNBETHLARREGE -
KE-NE+-AZ+-8 FHEREEMAEY
FRAE (DRNE 54 BRI L) B2 0 E
 ORAR L) M - HHEREAUERE EF -

YPHMZESRENERMESSEBHMBK LA
EEENATEEREREBABNTHEBRESS
RtEZ HZBEeRIEERRERRZSAER
MBRERE TARREXER -FMHEZESTEE
MEMERABITEBRE -
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Each Director will, upon his/her first appointment and thereafter
on a yearly basis, disclose to the Group the number and
nature of offices held by such Director in public companies
and organizations and other significant commitments.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee was formed with specific
written terms of reference. As at 31st December 2018, the
remuneration committee consists of two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Hung Cho Sing and Mr. Tang
Chak Lam, Gilbert, and an executive Director, namely, Ms.
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany. Mr. Hung Cho Sing is the chairman of

the committee.

The remuneration committee is responsible for formulating
and recommending to the Board the remuneration policy and
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and members of
senior management of the Group. This committee consults
with the Chairman on its proposals and recommendations and
has access to professional advice if deemed necessary. The
remuneration committee is also provided with other resources
enabling it to discharge its duties.
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The specific terms of reference of the remuneration committee
are posted on the Company’'s website. The remuneration
committee meets at least once a year.

During the year under review, the remuneration committee
held one meeting to determine the remuneration package for
the staff of the Group. No Director is involved in deciding his/
her own remuneration.

The remuneration of the senior management of the Group for
the year ended 31st December 2018 by band is set out below:

Remuneration band Number of individuals

Nil to HK$500,000 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 4

Further details of the executive Directors’ emoluments for the
year ended 31st December 2018 are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A nomination committee was formed with specific written
terms of reference. As at 31st December 2018, the nomination
committee consists of two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert and Mr. Hung
Cho Sing, and an executive Director, namely Mr. Heung Wah
Keung. Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert is the chairman of the
nomination committee.

The duties of the nomination committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board at least annually,
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and selecting individuals nominated for directorship,
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the vice
chairman.

The specific terms of reference of the nomination committee

are posted on the Company’s website. The nomination
committee meets at least once a year.
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During the year under review, the nomination committee held
one meeting to review the structure, size and composition of

the Board and to review the Board Diversity Policy.

EZERESTILERE
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”) in
2013 and amended pursuant to the resolution of the Board
passed on 26th March 2019. The key terms of the Policy are

set out as follows.
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Purpose

This Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve
diversity in the Board.

Vision
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of

having a diversified Board to enhance the quality of its
performance.

Policy Statement

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees an increase in
diversity at the Board level to be an essential element
in the attainment of its strategic objectives and
sustainable development. In achieving diversity of the
Board, a number of aspects of each director candidate
will be considered, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and the candidates will be considered
based on the objective criteria set out in this Policy
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to the
candidate’s gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional skills and
knowledge, and working experience. The ultimate
decision will be made by the Board based on the merit
and contribution which the candidates may be able to
bring to the Board.
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5. Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will report annually on the
Board’s composition under the diversified perspectives
in the Corporate Governance Report, and monitor the
implementation of this Policy.

6. Review of this Policy

The Nomination Committee will review this Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of its
implementation. The Nomination Committee will discuss
any revisions that may be required, and recommend
any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules requires that the audit committee
must comprise a minimum of three non-executive directors
only, at least one of them should be independent non-
executive directors with appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
main duties of the audit committee include the followings:

(a) To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
external auditor before submission to the Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work performed by the auditor,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditor.

(c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures.

Other duties of the audit committee are set out in its specific
terms of reference which are posted on the Company’s
website. The audit committee is provided with sufficient
resources enabling it to discharge its duties.
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As at 31st December 2018, the audit committee has three
members, namely Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul (chairman of the
audit committee), Mr. Hung Cho Sing and Mr. Tang Chak
Lam, Gilbert, all being independent non-executive Directors.
No member of the audit committee is a former partner of the
existing auditing firm of the Company within two years on
the date of his ceasing to be a partner or had any financial
interest in the auditing firm. The audit committee has reviewed
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters
with the management team of the Company. During the year,
the audit committee held two meetings to review the Group’s
annual report and interim report.

The audit committee has also reviewed the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, report on the company’s internal
control and risk management review and processes as well as
the re-appointment of the external auditor. There is no material
uncertainty relating to events and conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. There is no disagreement between the Board
and the audit committee regarding the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

The Group’s external auditors is HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has written to
the Audit Committee confirming that they are independent
with respect to the Company and that there is no relationship
between HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited and the
Company which may reasonably be thought to bear on their
independence. In order to maintain the external auditors’
independence, it would only be employed for non-audit
work if the work does not compromise the external auditors’
independence and has been pre-approved by the Audit
Committee. During the year, the external auditors provided
audit services and non-audit services to the Group. Audit
services include services provided in connection with the audit
of the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Non audit
services include services such as issuance of special audit
reports or interim review or other regulatory purposes.
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The Company’s annual report for the year ended 31st
December 2018 has been reviewed by the audit committee.
The financial statements for the year were audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire
upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. The audit
committee has recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited be nominated for appointment as the
auditor of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

For the year ended 31st December 2018, the fees paid and
payable in respect of audit services and non-audit services
provided by the auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited,
amounted to approximately HK$1,219,000 and approximately
HK$534,000 respectively.

The company secretary keeps full minutes of all audit
committee meetings. In line with practices consistent with
Board meetings and other committee meetings, draft and final
versions of audit committee meeting minutes are circulated to
all members of the audit committee for comments, approval
and record as soon as practicable after each meeting.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by directors of the Company. All the members
of the Board have confirmed, following specific enquiry by
the Company, that they have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding directors securities transactions throughout the year
ended 31st December 2018. The Model Code also applies to
other specified senior management of the Group.

The directors’ interests in shares of the Company and its
associated corporations are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ Report” on pages 46 to 57.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group. The auditors are responsible
to form an independent opinion, based on the audit, on the
financial statements prepared by the Directors and report the
opinion solely to the shareholders of the Company.
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The Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 58 to 65 set out
the reporting responsibilities of the auditors of the Company
for the consolidated financial statements.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary. The company secretary reports to the
Board, and is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures
are followed and for facilitating information flows and
communications among Directors as well as with shareholders
and the management. Ms. Wong Shuk Han, Dorothy has
been appointed as the company secretary of the Company
with effect from December 2001 and Ms. Wong has complied
with the professional training requirement of the Listing Rules
during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board will therefore be responsible for performing
the corporate governance functions such as developing and
reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements etc.

During the financial year ended 31st December 2018, the
Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The risk management process includes risk identification, risk
evaluation, risk management and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify, analyze,
evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate risks associated
with any activity, function or process within its scope of
responsibility and authority.
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The Group has conducted a review of the implemented
system and procedures, including areas covering financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management
functions during the year under review. The systems are
implemented to minimise the risk to which the Group is
exposed and is used as a management tool for the day-to-day
operation of business. The system can only provide reasonable

but not absolute assurance against misstatement or losses.

The Group does not have an internal audit function as the
Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company and is currently of the view that there
is no immediate need to set up an internal audit function within
the Group in light of the size, nature and complexity of the
Group’s business. The situation will be reviewed from time to
time.

The Group had engaged Infinity Concept Ripple Limited,
external professional consultant, to conduct independent
internal control review for the year ended 31st December
2018 and the review is completed as at the date of this annual
report.

For the year ended 31st December 2018, the Board
considered the Group’s internal control system as adequate
and effective and that the Company has complied with the
code provisions on internal control of the Code.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for decisions in relation to the overall
strategic development of the Group’s business. All Directors
have formal letters of appointment setting out key terms and
conditions relative to their appointment. Due to the diversity
and volume of the Group’s business, responsibility in relation
to the daily operations and execution of the strategic business
plans are delegated to management of the Group.

All committees, namely the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee, have specific terms
of reference clearly defining the authorities and responsibilities
of the respective committees. All committees are required by
their terms of reference to report to the Board in relation to
their decisions, findings or recommendations, and in certain
specific situations, to seek the Board’s approval before taking
any actions.
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The Board review, on a yearly basis, all delegations by the
Board to different committees to ensure that such delegations
are appropriate and continue to be beneficial to the Company
as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

Insurance cover has been taken out for Directors’ and
Officers’ Liability to provide adequate cover, as determined
by the Board, in respect of the Board members and senior
management members of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of
transparency and employs a policy of open and timely
disclosure of relevant information to its shareholders. The
commitment to fair disclosure and comprehensive and
transparent reporting of the Company’s activities can be
reflected in many aspects.

In endeavouring to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders, the annual general meeting provides a useful
forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board.

The Chairman was also actively involved in organizing, and
personally held the annual general meeting in 2018 in order
to ensure that shareholders’ views were communicated to the
Board. A separate resolution was proposed by the Chairman in
respect of each separate issue at the annual general meeting.

The proceedings of the annual general meeting are reviewed
from time to time to ensure the Company conforms to
the best practices regarding corporate governance. The
annual general meeting circular, which is circulated to all
shareholders at least twenty-one days prior to the holding of
the annual general meeting, sets out the details in relation
to each resolution proposed, voting procedures (including
procedures for demanding and conducting a poll) and other
relevant information. At the Company’s 2018 annual general
meeting, all the resolutions were put to the vote by poll and
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the
Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, was engaged
as scrutineer to ensure the votes were properly counted. The
rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a
poll on resolutions at shareholders’ meeting are contained in
the Bye-laws.
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The Company also communicates to its shareholders through
its annual and interim reports. The Directors, company
secretary or other appropriate members of senior management
also respond promptly to inquiries from shareholders and
investors.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special General
Meeting (the “SGM”)

The Board shall, on the requisition in writing of the
shareholders of not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company upon which all calls or other sums then due
have been paid, forthwith proceed to convene a SGM.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene the SGM, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after three months from the date of
the original deposit.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING
SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the company
secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Unit 3409, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower,
168-200 Connaught Road Central,

Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2313 1888

Email: mail@chinastar.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to shareholders and
investors. The Company updates shareholders on its latest
business developments and financial performance through its
annual and interim reports and notices, announcements and
circulars. The Company’s website (www.chinastar.com.hk)
provides a communication platform to the public and the
shareholders.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4F§R



BEENH
BE-T-NE+-A=+—BLEEN AREZE
B EEAEALD -

3

=

AR RECEERHERREEELREMNE
BEEZ - ERERBNRANBEAEEZE

.

el

S

X o

%N
Sl
XE

7

O

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4E$R

ft it ¥ Corporate Governance Report

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31st December, 2018, there had
been no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance is
significant in maintaining investor confidence and attracting
investment. The management will devote considerable effort
to strengthen and improve the standards of the corporate
governance of the Group.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31st December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the Group is principally engaged in investment, production
and distribution of films and television drama series, provision
of artist management services and properties development
and investment.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries and joint venture
are set out in notes 50 and 25 to the financial statements
respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December
2018 are set out in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 66
and 67 and page 68 respectively.

The financial position of the Group as at 31st December 2018
is set out in the consolidated statement of financial position on
pages 69 and 70.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31st December 2018.

During the year, the Group declared a special dividend of
HK15 cents per share in aggregate amount of HK$420,326,000
to the shareholders and the bonus convertible bondholders
of the Company. The special dividend has been paid on 25th
January 2019.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s business review, discussion and analysis of the
development, operating performance and financial position
and particulars of important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the year ended 31st December
2018 are set out in sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Five Year
Financial Summary” on pages 4 to 7, pages 8 to 21 and pages
270 to 271 respectively. Such discussions constitute part of
this report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The performance and results of the Group’s businesses
are subject to various important factors, including the
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers. The
Board believes that the employees are one of the Group’s
most important assets. The Company will strive to ensure
that the remuneration level of its employees is in line with
relevant industry practices and prevailing market conditions.
Remunerations of employees will be determined based on their
performance. Details of employees benefits are included in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this
annual report.

In addition, the Board places great emphasis on a long-
term and stable relationship with the Company’s customers
and suppliers for the continuous success and growth of the
Group’s businesses. Generally, the Group strengthen its
customer service by providing superior quality service to the
users, and strive to achieve the fastest response times and
highest customer satisfaction levels in the relevant industry.

Supply chain is a critical part of all our operations. Our
suppliers must meet our selection criteria, which include
security, safety, cost, quality, delivery and reliability. The
Group will enter into suppliers’ agreements with qualified
suppliers in order to secure our services and products are
being supplied to our standard within our budgeted costs.

The Group’s continuous effort to build trust and emphasise

mutual benefits with its customers and suppliers has
contributed to the long-term relationships with them.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The possible business risks and uncertainties, interest rate
risk and foreign exchange risk facing by the Group are set
out in section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 8 to 21. The financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group are set out in note 5 to the financial
statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to operating its various business
segments in an environmentally-friendly manner. The Group
also educates its employees on their awareness in promoting
a “green” environment. The Board believes that operating
the Company’s businesses in an environmentally-friendly
manner is crucial to fulfilling the Company’s corporate social
responsibilities.

Green initiatives and measures have been adopted in the
offices of the Group. Such initiatives include energy saving
measures and water saving practices, use of recycling
papers, recycling of used papers and encourage paperless
environment.

Details of the environmental policies and performance of

the Group will be disclosed in our environmental, social and
governance report to be published before 30th June 2019.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

To the best knowledge of the Board, during the year ended
31st December 2018, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the business and operation of the Group. Furthermore, as the
shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
the Company is also subject to the rules and requirements
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31st December
2018 is set out on pages 270 to 271.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment, interests in leasehold land and investment
properties of the Group are set out in notes 17, 18 and 19 to
the financial statements respectively.

STOCK OF PROPERTIES

Details of movements during the year in stock of properties of
the Group are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of movements during the year in borrowings regarding
promissory note of the Group are set out in note 38 to the
financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of
the Company are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

As at 31st December 2018, the total issued share capital of
the Company consisted of 2,801,110,479 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each.

RESERVES

Movements during the year in the reserves of the Group are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 71 to 73. Movements during the year in the reserves of
the Company are set out in note 51 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$2,921,875,000 as at 31st December 2018
(2017: HK$2,350,225,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st December 2018, revenue attributable
to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 89% of the Group’s revenue and revenue
attributable to the Group’s largest customer accounted for
approximately 44% of the Group’s revenue.

For the year ended 31st December 2018, the Group’s total
purchases were nil.

None of the directors, their close associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the directors owned
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interests in the Group’s five largest customers or five largest
suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Heung Wah Keung
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
Ms. Li Yuk Sheung

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Hung Cho Sing
Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul
Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert

Under Bye-law 99(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Hung
Cho Sing shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-
election.

The term of office for each independent non-executive director
is the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 22 to 26.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into certain transactions
with parties regarded as “Related Parties” under applicable
accounting principles. These mainly relate to transactions
entered into by the Group in the ordinary course of business,
negotiated on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s
length basis. Particulars are set out in note 49 to the financial
statements.

These transactions do not constitute “continuing connected
transaction” or “connected transaction” of the Group that need
to be disclosed pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company or an entity connected with
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company
which requires the Company to give a period of notice of
more than one year, or to pay compensation or make other
payments equivalent to more than one year’s emolument.

DONATIONS
The Group made charitable donations and other donation
during the year of approximately HK$100,000.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31st December 2018, the interests of the directors
and their associates in the shares of the Company and its
associated corporations, as recorded in the register (“Register
of Interests”) maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
were as follows:

TAREERER Interests in ordinary shares of the Company
FRiFRERR
BOLAE
FrislRBEE Approximate
EEpR g4 Number of percentage of
Name of director Capacity shares held interests held
AR L HPnEEZ s 1,545,985,595* 55.19
Mr. Heung Wah Keung Interest of controlled corporation
PREAZ Z £ REEAE R 1,545,985,595* 55.19
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany Interest of controlled corporation
LR ATFE o All interests stated above represent long positions.
* WS DE 1,545,983, 951kl mEEREL These shares are held as to 1,545,983,951 shares by Heung

+ 9 Bl #150% K& 50%H# & 2 A BlHeung Wah Keung
Family Endowment Limited$s & K&1,6440% % {5 /A R &2
TRAKED I EREFC0% RA0%RHZARIZE
RAFRA

BRLdpmEEEN RZF-NF+_A=T—H0 R
150 o5 B AC il AT RO 8% SR IR AR 2 57 A BB AN AN 1 R R Bk
RZBE  ARBAEERERTRABRIBRELHE
ATEERARBREEFABEEEZE (EEREF LS
BIERPIEXVE) 2 EMRD HEARNDHESFTEEE
IEREIORE -
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Wah Keung Family Endowment Limited (a company owned
as to 50% by Mr. Heung and as to 50% by Ms. Chen) and
as to 1,644 shares by Dorest Company Limited (a company
beneficially owned as to 60% by Ms. Chen and as to 40% by
Mr. Heung).

Other than as set out above, as at 31st December 2018, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company or their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the Register of Interests or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company or their respective close associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2018, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company under Section 336 of

FYHBELETESE RN UTREHEBEARLTE  the SFO showed that, other than the interests disclosed above
BITIRANS %A £z s in respect of certain directors, the following shareholders had
an interest of 5% or more in the issued share capital of the

Company:
RO SEBERGEE FIEREE I
Number of shares Approximate
8 g4 or underlying percentage of
Name Capacity shares held interests held
Heung Wah Keung Family EmEBA 1,545,983,951 55.19

Endowment Limited Beneficial owner

biigmERER -
BEXHEEEN RZB-NF+ZA=+—H K

AR REME AT EA KA DB RAE%
EPUSE EEY TR

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

All interests stated above represent long positions.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified of any other interests or short positions representing
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital as at 31st
December 2018.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are
set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31st December 2018.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to their duties
and responsibilities in the Company. Details of the emoluments
of the directors are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
share option schemes of the Company are set out in note 48
to the financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter
into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the
year or subsisted at the end of the year, except for the share
option schemes of the Company.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year ended 31st December 2018 and up to the
date of this annual report, the Company has undertaken and
maintained a collective liability insurance policy covering,
among others, all directors of the Company and its “associated
companies” (as such term is defined under the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong)).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the directors of the Company or their respective close
associates had any interest in a business which competes with
or may compete with the business of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages
27 to 45.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed amount of public float
during the year and up to the date of this report as required
under the Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company have been audited
by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as auditors of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for the appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited as the auditors of the Company for the subsequent
year is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Heung Wah Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th March 2019
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BB 31st Floor
PIREITH115R Gloucester Tower
BithEiS The Landmark
HETITKE311E 11 Pedder Street

Central
Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Star Entertainment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 66 to 269, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31st December 2018, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group at 31st December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

BEEZENITFNNEERARELEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

WHEFEZIREE

Carrying amounts of stock of properties

AR M B TS R KT 5E26 o

Refer to note 26 to the financial statements.

RZE-NF+ZA=+—8 LRBRFZWEFE
Z BRE{EX) /52,508,568,0005 T - ¥ BEEEEESR
EBEKX-

At 31st December 2018, the carrying amounts
of stock of properties located in Macau was
approximately HK$2,508,568,000, which was
significant to the Group’s total assets.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4E$R

EEAHMEEBEMEFEZCRAENIH 2 EREFEEER
TRR

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s
assessment of the carrying amounts of stock of properties
including but not limited to:

e REEEENERAFMANERS —
checking the consistency of management’s calculations
against the methodology used in the prior years;

o HIEMEmMEERAZEEHEBKBERELER
B
evaluating the properties areas by comparing them with
the areas which were verified and confirmed by the
relevant institution;

e BBMEFEE FEAEN EAMENTMEE RIS
AEBMMRFEE AR LR
examining the estimated sales price by comparing it with
the recent sales price and recently available public sales
information of neighbouring properties;

o HEMAMERKENALEERBENE:

assessing the fairness and appropriateness of the source
of information used;

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

EEzENITHRNMEEBRREREE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

WEFEZIKREE (#)

Carrying amounts of stock of properties (Continued)

B PR PR RIAT BUR B (DRPIBUT D) &K HI TR
L RIMNBIEE R FeBit R ([FeBih k) 2 MEE R
ReeE MBEFTEEBALHBEERRNOFAL &
B EUR PTEUT B 46 WS+ Hb 2 1T T AE o SEBERDATR
Fr BV E R AR AE R - 19 AT AR PR 48 6B R 2 (B
ERAREE -

The development of the property located in Lot 6B
at Zona de Aterros do Porto Exterior (ZAPE) (“Lot
6B”) could not commence development due to the
delays caused by the government of Macau Special
Administrative Region (the “Macau Government”)
and the Macau Government has started the
administrative work to reclaim it as a consequence
of ongoing litigation in respect of the terms of the
land lease. Any unfavourable outcome of the court
proceedings may have an adverse impact on the
valuation of Lot 6B thereof.

EREDN2REMMEOIPNEEREEERIME
EMEGENAERFE AR P REEENHE R
5t e

Management determined the net realisable values
of stock of properties by reference to recent sales
price of similar properties less selling expenses,
which involve managements’ judgement and
estimation.
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Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s

assessment of the carrying amounts of stock of properties

including but not limited to: (continued)

IMEFEFEBEHZERUEBEREREE  UAARSHEED
ERESSE HERTEMER

conducting site visits to stock of properties projects
to observe the development progress and evaluating
whether the development progress for each project was
consistent with the development plan;

wiE BEEERTEEBEEBHMER Z TSR EERDE
BFHERABEIIEEERER REEBATE R H X
(3K

inspecting the external legal opinion received by
the Group and other documentation referred to by
management in its assessment of the outcome of the
court proceedings in relation to the litigation in respect of
the land lease for the Lot 6B;

S2EZHARESERMAZEBRORERARHERX
54

evaluating the construction costs to be incurred and
selling expenses by reference to information such as
project budgets; and
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

EEzENITHRNMEEBRREREE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

WEFEZIKREE (#)

Carrying amounts of stock of properties (Continued)
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Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s
assessment of the carrying amounts of stock of properties
including but not limited to: (continued)

o TEINEGEMZEHE BUUERIEETR UKES
2RI R EINE(ERDFTE M E LR -
assessing the objectivity, independence and expertise of
the external valuers, and compared out test results with
the valuations made by the external valuers.

EERBYERECEHALD AN ERNRIIEAZS -
We found the carrying amounts of stock of properties were
supported by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon (the “Other

Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause

the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Ng Ka Wah.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Wah

Practicing Certificate Number: P06417

Hong Kong, 26th March 2019
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B 2 A W A # Consolidated Income Statement
HE-FT—)\F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2018

—E-)\F —F—+F
2018 2017
M iF FHERT FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BEREER Continuing operations
g Revenue 7 3,493 9,272
6 B AR Cost of sales - (8,402)
EH Gross profit 3,493 870
H AUz R EH AU A Other revenue and other income 8 84,725 96,385
THAX Administrative expenses (84,312) (68,931)
BT Distribution expenses (91) (2,392)
BBEZARTFEENEZ (Loss)/gain arising on change in fair
CREEZ AT EERS value of financial assets at fair value
FrEEZ (E18) 7 through profit or loss (360,209) 210,791
Hib &M% Other operating expenses (45,993) (63,014)
s (Er) ER (Loss)/profit from operations (402,387) 173,709
B& KA Finance costs 9 (2,835) (63,896)
EE—HeaERHE Share of (loss)/profit of
(B18) & F a joint venture (114) 223
BBA (FE) ER (Loss)/profit before tax 10 (405,336) 110,036
i Income tax expense 11 - (5)
BEKCEEBZEE (Loss)/profit for the year from
(F51|) 7 continuing operations (405,336) 110,031
DRIEREEK Discontinued operations 13
ERIEEEER 2 Profit/(loss) for the year from
FEEM(EBER) discontinued operations 1,458,855 (36,695)
FERR Profit for the year 1,053,519 73,336
UTALREFE Profit/(loss) for the year
BRSO (E8) - attributable to:
KRARERA Owners of the Company 1,053,530 73,312
SRR Non-controlling interests (11) 24

1,053,519 73,336

66 WHEFEBBIEATD CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %k



‘lﬁ\

£ W A # Consolidated Income Statement

HE-Z—)/\F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2018

M iF
Notes
BREFN(FHB) Earnings/(loss) per share 14
REBFELER From continuing and discontinued
ERIEREEKE operations
ERREE Basic and diluted
REFESEER From continuing operations
BEARR#E Basic and diluted
RECKRIELEER From discontinued operations
AR EE Basic and diluted

BEM < M EB AR UL SR A M RER 2 —#f D

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4E$R

—E-)\F —F—+F
2018 2017

Bl Al

HK cents HK cents
(&E:51)

(restated)

62.90 7.70
(24.20) 11.56
87.10 (3.86)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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Hitp2EBA (F18)

HAEJREEHTHEE
HEWRAXKZER -

HEFNREBELEZ
FREEZERLEZR
FREBOEBIEBTZ

EXM O BRRAE
FEAMEERA S (BE)

FEZEHRARE

MTATEREFERZE
WA (B518) #58 :
ARBEHEERA

BEM < M EB AR UL SR A M RER 2 —#f D

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to consolidated income statement:

Exchange differences arising on translation of
foreign operations:
Exchange differences arising during the year
Reclassification adjustments relating to foreign
operations disposed of during the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year
attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

financial statements.

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

%= 11 W A % Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

—N\E+ZA=+—HI-EE For the year ended 31st December 2018

2017
THET
HK$'000

73,336

73,334

73,310
24

73,334

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4F§R



R-E—\E+-A=+—H At 31st December 2018

M iF
Notes
FRBEE Non-current assets
L E D a Property, plant and equipment 17
HET R Interests in leasehold land 18
wEYE Investment properties 19
AHHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 21
HE Goodwill 29
BIVEE Intangible assets 23
RET-—REFTZEX Loan to a director o4
R—BAaELEZER Interest in a joint venture 25
RBEE Current assets
MEGFE Stock of properties 26
B Film rights 57
BUERE R Films in progress o8
BERYRE Investment in film 29
H 5 Trade receivables 30
%Re - BERER Deposits, prepayment and
b fE UK IR other receivables 31
FERBHAATEBIEZ Financial assets at fair value
TRLEE through profit or loss 32
FEHE 3K Loan receivables 33
TEHTF K Time deposits 34
Re RRITHER Cash and bank balances 35
PERFFLEZEE Assets classified as held for sale 36
BEE Total assets
EARRFE Capital and reserves
B Share capital 37
& Reserves
KATEEABEESR Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
I IR A Non-controlling interests
g Total equity

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4E$R

N 2 Ay WOk B % Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—B-N\F —E—
2018 2017
FTHERT FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
88,608 12,190
53,409 55,282

- 81,100

- 173
327,903 293,371
270 384
470,190 442 500
2,508,568 2,107,376
11,478 12,049
201,005 168,992
29,939 -

- 3,099
451,826 289,981
453,481 725,816
200,000 200,000
269 155
1,156,466 424,200
5,013,032 3,931,668
- 725,635
5,013,032 4,657,303
5,483,222 5,099,803
28,011 9,037
4,403,951 3,272,537
4,431,962 3,281,574
(125) (114)
4,431,837 3,281,460

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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R-ZT—)\F+=-A=+—H At 31st December 2018

s A W IR I # Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Bz
Notes
kRBERE Non-current liabilities
EATE Promissory note 38
EERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 39
REBAE Current liabilities
B 5 IR Trade payables 40
BUEES - FEETIEE & Deposits received, accruals and
E B~ RRIE other payables 41
FEA FEVE AR i 25 SRR Amounts due to non-controlling
interests 42
DEAEBELHEEEZ Liabilities associated with assets
HEaE classified as held for sale 36
B EAHE Total liabilities
EzkaEEHE Total equity and liabilities
RBEEFEE Net current assets
HEERRBARE Total assets less current liabilities

A EMBRRR_E-NAF=_A-tBhEESH

ERRENELBTIEZTAREE

DE-3

Heung Wah Keung

BF

Director

BEM 2 M E BRI FERA M B RER 2 —#F D

R ) =t
2018 2017
FTHERT AT
HK$°000 HK$'000
- 173,817

- 173,817

38,421 26,589
509,848 294,070
503,116 503,116
1,051,385 823,775
- 820,751
1,051,385 1,644,526
1,051,385 1,818,343
5,483,222 5,099,803
3,961,647 3,012,777
4,431,837 3,455,277

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26th March

2019 and are signed on its behalf

by:

R B 3K
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
EFE

Director

The accompanying notes from an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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W % & BE 25 % B % Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-Z—)/\F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2018

ANRERAEL
Attributable to owners of the Company
HREXH  ARTRR &% 0% (2HEE)/
R4 RiEE HABR  ERER  fRERE  ZREBR  BBEE HEkE  EGEE  RE2EW 8 FERER L 3
Bonus (Accumulated
Share-based  convertible Capital Property losses)/ Non-
Share Share  Contributed ~ Exchange  Statutory payment bonds  reduction revaluation retained controlling Total
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests Equity
TiEn T T T Thn TER ThEL TEL TEL T T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Hidta) (Hste) (Histe) (Witd) (Wite) (s Wity (i)
(Note &) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note g) (Note e) (Note f) (Note g) (Note b)
RZE-t5-F-H At st January 2017 9,037 1,488,186 1,925,439 4 291 76,144 1,182 316,008 4817 (656,793) 3,208,362 (43) 3207927
EEET Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 73312 73312 % 73,336
FEEMZEEE Other comprehensive loss
for the year - - - 2 - - - - - - Y - 4
EERE(EE) /RASE  Total comprehensive (loss)income
for the year - - - 2 - - - - - 73312 73310 24 73,334
WE-EHBAF L Acquisition of additional interests
#iER in a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - (98) (98) 58) (156)
HEHBAF Disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - 45 45
ERENS Expiry of share options - - - - - (14,195) - - - 14,195 - - -
BREEN Lapsed of share options - - - - - (6,284) - - - 6,284 - - -
WEEE FERES Non-conirolling interests
arising on acquisition - - - - - - - - - - - (70) (70)
R-E-+E+-F=+-H At 31st December 2017
RR=%-)\5-A-H and at 1st January 2018 9,037 1,488,186 1,925,439 45 291 55,660 1,182 316,008 4817 (563,100) 3,281,574 (114) 3,281,460
EEEN/ (68 Profit(loss) for the year - - - - - - - - - 1093530 1,053,530 (1) 1053519
EEEM2E4AA Other comprehensive
income for the year - - - 90 - - - - - - 2 - L]
EEREYHN/(FE)EE  Total comprehensive
income(loss) for the year - - - 90 - - - - - 1,083,530 1,003,620 (1) 1,053,609
HEHBAR Disposal of subsidiaries - - - - (291) - - - - 1 - - -
BRENS Expiry of share options - - - - - (55,665) - - - 55,665 - - -
IERAREARE Issue of new shares by
way of rights issue 18,074 433117 - - - - - - - - 451,851 - 451,851
kiR Share issuing expenses - (3501) - - - - - - - - (3501) - (3501)
ERREREENRATAE  Recognition of equity setied
LA share-based payments - - - - - 18,344 - - - - 18,344 - 18,344
fiERkiE Exercise of share options 900 67844 - - - (18,344) - - - - 50400 - 50400
EAREER Transfer to retained eamings - - (1,382478) - - - - - - 1382478 - - -
BERRE(HH1) Dividend declared (note 12) - - - - - - - - - (420326)  (420,3%) - (420,326)
HZ®-NETZEZT-R  Atotst December 2018 BN 1986305 542961 8 - SR NS AT 1585 419 (1) 4431807
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HE-FT—)\F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2018

Hrat -

(a) BEBRE-AN-FRREEER) R2RZERN
BERBERMRADRZRETRN - ERBURA B
TTFARABER -

(b) AREZANBABBRDERR _TE-_FNA+RE
B2 AR BB R EAR % B AN R T 48 18 AR AR BR 2 TR

BEBRE-ANFRREKER) BARGBAHE
DRKREFERRBEA 2T ABRBUARBRIR ZER
B ERETRRBEEHEARRMERNRER - AW
RATER KRBT FEHARBTERIKMTRS
FIEH DK : (VAR B ERLHRIRMNZENEEDH
EEEBER  H(NARRAEZ AT HREREMIE
REEERESEHTRARBKD EERK -

(c) EXRBEEARBESNEB 2 FEEARDREEER
BEAKEZHEE BT (BT BBEZERLZE
BoOmMEAZBEDERNEM2ERARERLNEL
BRI - ZERERRBRITZELZERHEEINE
BREHSBEES -

(d) IRBORPIFEMEITTIR » A AR FIRPIEMA L2
B BB F R A 2 BB 25% B B E A TE A -
BEERBENEEARAEEBEZ50%BIE - EEARGFES
B ZERETAIUREBSLEMBADIR -

(e) DAY S 2 BOR RS - IHE N R B AR B AR R A&t
ARERRBREANRE . RBEZATEE  ERET)
NWEREERRHBREZATEERSEE - ENERY
Rz AERKERBREZAFEEERERREY
B (HE) NEDEHE - WIEREMEEHEARAK:
W AR B = AR AD 2 A 2 SRR

Notes:

(a)

72 thEREEBBRA A CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the share premium of the Company can be used in paying up
unissued shares of the Company to be issued to shareholders
of the Company as fully paid bonus shares.

The contributed surplus of the Group brought forward
represents the amount transferred from the capital account due
to the capital reduction effective on 10th September 2002 and
various capital reduction subsequently.

Under the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus is available for distribution or apply
the amount standing to the credit of the contributed surplus
account in such manner as the board of directors consider
appropriate, including but not limited to setting off against any
accumulated losses of the Company. However, the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
the contributed surplus if: (i) it is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (ii)
the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

Exchange reserve represents exchange differences relating
to the translation of the net assets of the Group’s foreign
operations from their functional currencies to the Group’s
presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollar (“HKS$”")) are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange reserve. Such exchange
differences accumulated in the exchange reserve are
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the foreign
operations.

In accordance with the article 377 of the Macau Commercial
Code, the Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in Macau are
required to transfer a minimum of 25% of the annual net profits
to a statutory reserve until that reserve equals 50% of the
nominal value of their capital. The statutory reserve may not be
distributed in the form of cash dividends or otherwise, during
the life of the companies.

Share-based payment reserve represents the fair value of
services estimated to be received in exchange for the grant of
the relevant share options over the relevant vesting periods,
the total of which is based on the fair value of the share options
at grant date. The amount for each period is determined by
spreading the fair value of the share options over the relevant
vesting period (if any) and is recognised in other operating
expenses with a corresponding increase in the share-based
payment reserve.
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HE-ZT—)\F+-F=+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2018

Wit - (&)

(f)

BEARRAR-ZF-—F+A-tTRBERITZERRES
RE BB ABETAMBN (A EEEKIAH
BB ES (AR ATRKRES ) ARELMER) 2 &
BARBRR RARBEANFRREESR0IBTETAE
BMRTRBRZAR AR ES o AR AR E S A s
RN A M AR E R E] 25 A M AR ES
YARETRAAEE  EHEENTRERSBBEA (A
FMARkESHEADBRARN HERENESRR
BARBALAZBITA ST RECZALABR D 8B - B0kt
R AR WAL R AT AR 55 o ALFI AT R AR 55 00 £
ARAREMBRRAEG 2 BEE o RIFERDH AR E
HZBRTEREBEZGERRGNE  ANTRRESRE
AR EBITAN AR R E S R BB 1T (IR -

& A HRL B e 7 — UL\ F i AR A §1332,640,0008%
BETRHZEEREREE1.00E T RESREE
0.05BTATESXY &% REFREARAARZAAMEY
B0 MBB 2 —HRER  EXREUREHETAES
RAAREREZSE AF ABE - URARAE
BEEAMER HEREKEMARAENTERZ
R -

MEEGREFTEHERBRERANEZYE - RE
BEMMEZATEERRAER BREDGANEE
hEE UHRERYEERRHERBRA (RFHE
B)/REEF -
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Notes: (Continued)

()

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 25th October
2012 in relation to the bonus issue of shares (with a right for
shareholders to elect to receive bonus convertible bonds
(“Bonus CBs”) in lieu of bonus shares), Bonus CBs can be
converted into ordinary shares at initial conversion price of
HK$0.01 per share were issued by the Company. The Bonus
CBs are recognised as equity and are presented in “bonus
convertible bonds reserve”. The Bonus CBs are unlisted
and irredeemable but have conversion rights entitling the
bondholders to convert into an equivalent number of shares as
the number of bonus shares which the bondholders (the “Bonus
CBs holders”) would otherwise be entitled to receive under
the bonus issue had the shareholder not elected for the Bonus
CBs. The Bonus CBs do not carry voting rights at any general
meeting of shareholders of the Company. The Bonus CBs
holders can exercise the conversion rights at any time after the
issue of Bonus CBs, subject to the terms and conditions of the

applicable deed poll constituting the Bonus CBs.

The capital reduction reserve represents the amount arising in
relation to the reduction of the nominal value of 332,640,000
issued shares of the Company from HK$1.00 each to HK$0.05
each in 1998. Pursuant to a resolution passed by the directors
pursuant to Bye-law 129 of the Company’s Bye-laws, the
capital reduction reserve shall be applicable for meeting claims
on or liabilities of the Company or contingencies or for paying
off any loan capital or for equalising dividends or for any other
purpose to which the profits of the Company may be properly
applied.

Property revaluation reserve relates the property transferred
from owner-occupied to investment property. The excess
amount between the fair value and the carrying amount of
the property at the date of transfer is included in the property
revaluation reserve, and will be transferred to (accumulated
losses)/retained earnings upon the retirement or disposal of the

relevant property.
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4% & Bl £ i & & Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
—Z—\E+-A=+—HILEE For the year ended 31st December 2018

it
Notes
REXBrRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
SR Y R BA (Loss)/profit before tax from
(E518) /5 Fl continuing operations
BERIFEEER BT Profit/(loss) before tax from discontinued
mfl/ (E18) operations
HRATSHEMEAE Adjustments for:
BMEKA Finance costs
FE WA Interest income
S ON Dividend income 8
EYEREE Amortisation of film rights 10
e iy Amortisation of interests in leasehold land
ME - BERFENE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
BHBETME s DRAREEE Impairment loss recognised in respect
of film rights 10
BRAME BEREZEZ Impairment loss recognised in respect
ERRRE®BE of property, plant and equipment 10
BAE SRR ZERER Reversal of impairment loss recognised
HEBEEED in respect of trade receivables 8
BHCNEeREMERRIEL Reversal of impairment loss recognised
ERAREBERRD in respect of deposits paid and other
receivables 8
BREBZUATEEIERZ Loss/(gain) arising on change in fair
CREEZATEEES value of financial assets at fair
FE£ZER/ (EF) value through profit or loss 10
RENELTEEZYZHF Gain on fair value change of investment
properties 10
HEWE  HaSREEER Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
HEM B AR 2% Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
REBEANRZEE Loss on early redemption of
promissory note 10
JEME—FIAS R/ CaFl)  Share of loss/(profit) of a joint venture
PARR 1 32 2 SRR & Share-based payment expenses
BEEEMR Write-down of obsolete inventories 13

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

—E-N\F —E—+F

2018 2017
TER TAT
HK$’000 HK$'000

(405,336) 110,036
1,458,855 (36,683)
2,835 63,961
(80,863) (78,616)
(1,366) (1,722)

- 8,373

1,873 21,649
4,293 59,814

571 1,024

3,601 -
(120) (135)
- (3,152)
360,209 (210,791)
(1,300) (4,120)
(9) (732)
(1,465,870) (551)
24,778 66,110
114 (223)
18,344 -

45 30
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EEMARE
B HE

REXBHARERR

REXKEERE

Bl
BIHE
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HEME  WEREFEMEHE
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BEERER

REXBHERERR
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Operating cash flows before movements

in working capital
Decrease in inventories

Increase in stock of properties

Increase in films in progress

(Increase)/decrease in investment in film
Decrease in trade receivables
Increase in deposits, prepayment and

other receivables

Increase in financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

Increase in amounts due from

non-controlling interests
Increase in trade payables

Increase/(decrease) in deposits received,
accruals and other payables

Decrease in amounts due to
non-controlling interests

Cash used in operations
Tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Dividend received
Interest received
Loan advanced to a director

Deposit received associated with the

discontinued operation

Increase in time deposits with original
maturities more than three months

Net cash outflow for acquisition of assets
through acquisition of subsidiaries

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Net cash inflow arising on disposal of

subsidiaries

Payments for purchases of property,

plant and equipment
Repayment of loan receivables

Net cash generated from investing activities

—E-N\E —tF

2018 2017

Wiz TERT FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
(79,346) (5,728)

382 10,175

(401,192) (136,051)

(32,013) (87,531)

(29,939) 11,325

35,794 175,530

(110,629) (156,307)

(87,701) -

- (371)

10,503 18,839

1,103 (9,015)

- (210)

(693,038) (179,344)

- (17)

(693,038) (179,361)

1,366 1,722

46,386 58,122

- (500,000)

- 200,000

(114) (155)

43 - (172)
1 1,089

44 1,760,594 72,298
17 (2,349) (11,339)
- 625,000

1,805,894 446,565
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MEEBZRERE

BERHE
AT A BT Z I ERR

TEBBIEZ SRR
BERTEE

EEREMERY
ERANE
BiDBITRX
RMEZBFAACREFE

ReRASSEEAEM (HD)
BREMOZRERAESEER
ENSEE/(B)2EAREE

HEZEE
NEEXZBD TE

BERARZRERAEEEER
ReRBITHES

BEMT 2 MR R EM B MK 2 — 810

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Interest paid
Proceeds from issue of new shares
by way of rights issue
Proceeds from exercise of share options
Repayment of bank borrowings
Repayment of obligations under finance leases
Repayment of promissory note
Share issuing expenses

Net cash used in financing activities

Increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the reporting period

Reclassification from/(to) assets
classified as held for sale

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the reporting period
Cash and bank balances

financial statements.

76 thEEEBBRA A CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

—E-N\E& —E—+F
2018 2017
THET FTHT

HK$’000 HK$'000

(5,416) (37,860)
451,851 -
5,040 -
(670,000) (133,513)
) (231)
(200,000) (400,000)
(3,501) -
(422,028) (571,604)
690,828 (304,400)
424,200 769,939
41,350 (41,350)
88 11
1,156,466 424,200

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
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1.

—REIE
ARADREREFIMA L2 ZHRRBRAF -
HBRODEBEBERZMBR AT ([HAF])
W o ARAIZEMMSERETESEME 2
#4555l ACanon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM12, Bermudak & & T # &t 168-
2005k (5127 L A R34IE09FE ©

AR RR BT (GB7)) I8 - BATBEL
AZPEEE BB EHPESN  FEEELT
HEBE 2 TR (THT) -

AEBZIBEBR/RE HERBETEFRE
REER  RUBATERBUARMERAERE
ié o
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1.

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and Unit 3409, Shun Tak
Centre, West Tower, 168-200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong respectively.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (HK$’000) except otherwise indicated.

The principal activities of the Group are investment,
production and distribution of films and television
drama series, provision of artist management services
and properties development and investment.

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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2. ERYHIRKIETE BT 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

gl: ‘_'/E_ ElJ (|_§ 5% /E\y‘l' i’% $b’-( %: i/iﬁ_ HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

EUJ) STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) EAR-ZE-NE—A—HBERZHITIR (a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs —
RIETEBHBREER effective on 1st January 2018
AEERAEEERERTAGHNAE In the current year, the Group has applied, for
(IBEEGEAE]) B M2 THETRE the first time, the following new and revised
BETER - BRI AR (RHEAFHIT R standards, amendments and interpretations
CETEBYBREED]]) » WRAAREER (collectively referred to as the “new and revised
BT - N\GF—A—HRBZHBRFELE HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
e REBERZHI MEEE BN Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”),
WMEER T EEHLMT which are effective for the Group’s financial year

beginning from 1st January 2018. A summary
of the new and revised HKFRSs applied by the
Group is set out as follows:

BRI ERFEST (FARBNEREEN =T HKAS 28 (Amendments) ~ As part of the Annual
(B3TR) —MEEZT-RFEEZ Improvements to HKFRSs
FEQE D 2014-2016 Cycle
BEAGIENEL0% EBRENE HKAS 40 (Amendments)  Transfers of Investment Property
(B3T7R)
ERUBRSEN  MUBROYARHZHERE HKFRS 2 (Amendments)  Classification and Measurement
F25% (BT K) of Share-based Payment
Transactions
EENBREERN EREENBHREEAER HKFRS 4 (Amendments)  Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
F45: (BFTX) PHTAREANBREE Instruments with HKFRS 4
BIB4RmB A4 Insurance Contracts
BENBREERN SBIA HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
Bl
ERMBRESEN REERFANZNERAE HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
F155 B3R Customers and the related
Amendments
BE (BERBBRE IERFHREGRE HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
REZE®) Advance Consideration
- REE2N,
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HE-ZT—)\F+-F=+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2018

ERHIIREETEERE 2
BEEA ((EEMBREE

2.

All) (&
BAR-S-NF—4—BEHZHTR (a)
EETEENBRERA (F)

(a)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs —

effective on 1st January 2018 (Continued)

NRERER
RIE—+F B SR & 2R R-EB-N\F
+=A=t+-H FIRMTE —-A-H
At 31st  Impact on initial At 1st
December application of January
2017 HKFRS 9 2018
TER TER TER
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THEE Financial assets
HLESRHEE Available-for-sale
financial assets 173 (173) -
RET—REZZER Loan to a director 293,371 - 293,371
B HRUER Trade receivables 3,099 - 3,099
Be  BARER Deposits, prepayment and
Hibelsom other receivables 289,981 - 289,981
BBRBERUNATEER Financial assets at fair value
SR @ BB E through profit or loss 725,816 173 725,989
JEUE R Loan receivables 200,000 - 200,000
EHER Time deposits 155 - 155
Re RBTHEH Cash and bank balances 424,200 - 424,200
1,936,795 - 1,936,795
THEE Financial liabilities
SN Promissory note 173,817 - 173,817
BHRENER Trade payables 26,589 - 26,589
BUEZS « FEFTIER Deposits received, accruals and
T fth & 5018 other payables 294,070 - 294,070
JE S 3E I R i 22 3R TR Amounts due to non-controlling
interests 503,116 - 503,116
997,592 - 997,592
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2. BRAFNITREEITEEME 2

HREER ((BERUBREE

all) (&

(@)
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ERAR-ZZE-NF-RA-BERZHITR
RETEBMBREER (&)
BB BHREEREIREMTA

AEE ARECEBEEMBRE LR
FORETHMTAREMBE BN RE LR
BRAMEZEBEAR - BEMBHREENE
MM EREENERBEZ S ERG
B QemEELRAEERE (B
FEEER]) K@) R PG EHRM

T o

AEBECRREBBREERESRAT
HBEEXERBEYBRELRFESE
MR -_Z-NF-A—-R@KXEAR
H)MARIERZTRERERSER
AEZRE (BRREEMEEERREN
ZRE) BEFER _FT—-NF—-F—
FEMRIEBRAZTARRBEBRRE -»
“E+tF+-A=t-AZHREEHRER
—E-N\F-A-HZEEERNERTD
REBIRE RN R E s 5D #ER -
TEEIILBRER -

RRELRERTIRIEE L G5 ER$39
WEMTA  BRRAERE At &
THRERATREEELR -

EREEMHEREENFIRMIB2E
AHERPBRERMEIKE

VIRIEHE BB & ERBINRTEL

FEIHE

TEREBR-_F-NF-—A—B(IKE
BEHM RETEHMBERELERFIR &
BEGMERNFR L EMEERER
BEREMERR  ZRAEEERETZ
DERGE -

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs —
effective on 1st January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
consequential amendments to other HKFRSs.
HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for (1)
the classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities, (2) expected
credit losses (“ECL") for financial assets and (3)
general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance
with the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9,
i.e. applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment under ECL
model) retrospectively to instruments that have
not been derecognised at 1st January 2018
(date of initial application) and has not applied
the requirements to instruments that have
already been derecognised at 1st January 2018.
The difference between carrying amounts at 31st
December 2017 and the carrying amounts at
1st January 2018 are recognised in the opening
retained earnings and other components of
equity, without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information
may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 9 are disclosed in note 3 to the financial
statements.

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities and other items subject to ECL under
HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the date of initial
application, 1st January 2018.
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2. ERANIRREIEEREMKE 2
WMEER ((ERMBREE
Al]) (&

(a) ERR-ZE-NE—A—-BEMZHFITR
BIETEBUBRREER (F)

BB BHREERFIREZHBT R ()

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs —
effective on 1st January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

R-ZB—tF RZZB-N\F
+=ZA=+—8 —HA—H
EBg EBNE
#ERI5E395% HREEREIR
ZEREE ENSE ZEREE
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
carrying carrying
amounts at amounts at
31st December 1st January
2017 Reclassification 2018
FHER FTExT TERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EiB 1825 L A F B8 75 Financial assets at fair value
([EBEZLULFEE through profit or loss
R ZEBEE (“FVTPL”)
FELEmEMES Unlisted club debenture
(Hista) (Note a) - 173 173
RHT—RBEFZ Call option embedded in
BERREZ loan to a director (Note b)
REEEARE (fatb) 213,944 - 213,944
DEABIEEERE Y Listed securities classified as
EWES (B itc) held for trading investments
(Note c) 511,872 - 511,872
725,816 173 725,989
REZESER Financial assets classified as
FEFE T EETHLE  available-for-sale (“AFS”)
((T#HEE]) 2F@EZE financial assets under
ZEHBEE HKAS 39
FELEmEMESR Unlisted club debenture
(Hiita) (Note a) 173 (173) -
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2. ERAHIRKIEE R 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

ﬁ % E EIJ (|_§ *}% /E\7_|' i% ﬁ % @ HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
Al (& STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
(a) EAR-ZE-NF-A-—BERZHFIR (a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs —

82

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

RETEBMBREER (&)
BB BHEERFIREMT A (F)

Het -

(a)

FLMEMES

BREE#173,000 Tt 2 E E MG FT &
HADEAHEESRMEESHHESR
BERBHEURAFEEIEZ SREE -
WRMEAEEEBEXARKE
CREENKRDRANESLRE  ZE
BREZBRGREVIARABAMBR
SEAUBRAEAT ARG RAEE
B 2R BRI B 2 R o

ERAEBMBMEERNESRE A%
SEEZERACRAUBERATE -

FEBBEUADFEEIERREE
RREBBRENATEEIEK ISR
BE

RYRERBE BRERUT—RES
ZERNEZ REHERIRATE
BEEEERRTHERAZ RBE -
AEBTHBETERMREBEZN
NTEBEINEANE AAZSeRE
EFRBEEBUBRELAESRIRE
BEHZAATEEIRSE - AUt
ZERE213,944,0008 T BT A
BERBERALNTEBEIEZEME
EENHOHEZEBBERIATEET
RZeMEE -

effective on 1st January 2018 (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Unlisted club debenture

The unlisted club debenture with the carrying
amount of approximately HK$173,000 were
reclassified from AFS financial assets to
financial assets at FVTPL. This is because even
though the Group’s business model is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, the cash flows of these investments
do not meet the HKFRS 9 criteria as solely
payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

There was no material impact on the amounts
recognised in relation to these assets from the
application of HKFRS 9.

(b) Financial assets at FVTPL and/or designated at
FVTPL

At the date of initial application, the Group no
longer applied designation as measured at
FVTPL for the call option embedded in loan to
a director and the call option is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, as these financial asset is required to
be measured at FVTPL under HKFRS 9. As a
result, these investments of HK$213,944,000
were reclassified from financial assets
designated at FVTPL to financial assets at
FVTPL.
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2. ER¥IREEITEEYE 2

WMEER ((ERMBREE

Al]) (&

(a) ERR-ZE-NE—A—-BEMZHFITR
BIETEBUBRREER (F)

BB BHREERFIREZHBT R ()
Hiit : (%)

(c) FRERALNTFEEIEZEREE
DEARFEERE

MEEBGHEUNFEREAEES
HAEES>EAREEEREZR

BHEERE HONAEERTKE
AEHBAZSERE - ERTKRE
AEEZEENER AEEZ2KE
511,872,000 T HFEEER & R
BREBBHENATEMEENE -

(d) BEEREEBEEN ZRE

REE e &M% 3RS R SE 05 i
ETERFEEREEEE BME
BEHRUEFRERABPEDREEESE -
BREEZE S ERERETAE
BEREEN BBEIREBBEARK
Ao AEERMBREEE
B RURRESERE -

BREZE S ERNERETARE
BEREEN AMRBHEKAGEZ
TREE(BEESRKER BENE
2 HEMEEHE RETFT-—RES
RRITHS) 2 BRERERTRI2E
RESEEBE (12EARBEES
B EREFE RAEERABRAETR
FE SR A SR MR BRE R AN o

(e) TRERA
SRR E KA RIDBRBEEBH B
WEREFIRIZBHRAE - Y

AEBAFHERABAZEIREYE

=47
WE -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs —
effective on 1st January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) Financial assets at FVTPL classified as held for
trading investments

The Group has reassessed its investments in
equity securities classified as held for trading
investments under HKAS 39 as if the Group
had purchased these investments at the
date of initial application. Based on the facts
and circumstances as at the date of initial
application, HK$511,872,000 of the Group’s
investments were held for trading investments
and continued to be measured at FVTPL.

(d) Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure ECL which uses a lifetime
ECL for all trade receivables. Except for those
which had been determined as credit impaired
under HKAS 39, the remaining balances are
grouped based on past due analysis. The
Group has therefore estimated the expected
loss rates for the trade receivables on the same
basis.

Except for those which had been determined
as credit impaired under HKAS 39, ECL for
other financial assets at amortised cost,
including trade receivables, deposit paid,
other receivables, loan to a director, loan
receivables, time deposits and cash and
bank balances, are assessed on 12-month
ECL (“12m ECL") basis as there had been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

(e) Financial liabilities
There is no impact on the Group’s accounting
for financial liabilities previously carried at

amortised costs remained to be measured at
amortised costs under HKFRS 9.
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it Notes to the Financial Statements
HE-_Z—)\E+-A=+—HI5EE For the year ended 31st December 2018

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs —
effective on 1st January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first
time in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded
HKAS 18 Revenue and HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying
this standard recognised at the date of initial
application, 1st January 2018. Any difference
at the date of initial application is recognised in
the opening retained earnings and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore,
in accordance with the transition provisions
in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply
the standard retrospectively only to contracts
that are not completed at 1st January 2018.
Accordingly, certain comparative information
may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 18 and
HKAS 11 and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following
major sources which arise from contracts with

customers:
° Artist management service income
o Distribution fee income

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations and the accounting policies resulting
from application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in
note 3 to the financial statements.

The application of HKFRS 15 does not have a
material impact on the timing and amounts of
revenue recognised in the respective reporting
periods.
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it Notes to the Financial Statements
+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2018

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs —
effective on 1st January 2018 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of
Investment Property

The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or
from, investment property necessitates an
assessment of whether a property meets, or
has ceased to meet, the definition of investment
property, supported by evidence that a change
in use has occurred. The amendments further
clarify that situations other than the ones listed
in HKAS 40 may evidence a change in use, and
that a change in use is possible for properties
under construction (i.e. a change in use is not
limited to completed properties).

At the date of initial application, the Group
assessed the classification of certain properties
based on conditions existing at that date. There
is no impact to the classification at 1st January
2018.

Except as described above, the application of
other new and revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and financial positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective:

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
(Amendments)

HKAS 19 (Amendments)
HKAS 28 (Amendments)

HKFRS (Amendments)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)
HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement!

Long-term interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle!

Definition of a business?

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Leases'

Insurance Contracts*

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1st January 2019.

2 Effective for business combination for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning
of the first annual period beginning on or after
1st January 2020.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1st January 2020.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1st January 2021.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after a date to be determined.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model
for the identification of lease arrangements and
accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17
Leases and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service
contracts on the basis of whether an identified
asset is controlled by a customer. In addition,
HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback
transactions to be determined based on the
requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether
the transfer of the relevant asset should be
accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes
requirements relating to subleases and lease
modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured
at cost and subsequently measured at cost
(subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well
as the impact of lease modifications, amongst
others. For the classification of cash flows, the
Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation
to leasehold lands for owned use while other
operating lease payments are presented as
operating cash flows. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease
liability will be allocated into a principal and
an interest portion which will be presented as
financing cash flows by the Group.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required
by HKFRS 16.

At 31st December 2018, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
approximately HK$18,589,000 as disclosed
in note 45 to the financial statements. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a
lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the
Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-
term leases.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above. The Group
intends to elect the modified retrospective
approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as
lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect
of initial application to opening retained earnings
without restating comparative information.

Except disclosed above, the directors do not
anticipate that the application of other new and
revised HKFRSs will have a material impact on
the Group’s financial performance and financial
positions.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

(b) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain properties and financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair

value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and
measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value
in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

For financial instruments and investment
properties which are transacted at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is
to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at initial recognition the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.
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it Notes to the Financial Statements

+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2018
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes,
fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices included within Level
1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs
for the asset or liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the

investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect
its returns.
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3.

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to
give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it
power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion
of holdings of the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group,
other vote holders or other parties;

. rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances
that indicate that the Group has, or does
not have, the current ability to direct
the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in profit or loss from the date
the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2018
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s relevant components of equity and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant
reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group’s
and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary
and non-controlling interests (if any) are
derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary attributable to owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and
assets or liabilities related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition
date (see the accounting policy below);
and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are
classified as held for sale in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that
standard.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer's previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition
date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair
value. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

Acquisition of subsidiaries not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the
Group identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed by allocating the purchase price first
to stock of properties and financial assets at the
respective fair values, the remaining balance of
the purchase price is then allocated to the other
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of
their relative fair values at the date of purchase.
Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill
or bargain purchase gain.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units (the “CGU”) (or group of CGUs)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest
level at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes and not larger
than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently when there is indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU
(or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the
end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any
of the CGU within the group of CGUs, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of
an operation within the CGU (or a CGU within
a group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill
disposed of is measured on the basis of the
relative values of the operation (or the CGUs)
disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or the
group of CGUs) retained.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Interest in a joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint
venture are incorporated in these financial
statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of joint
venture used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, an investment in a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the joint venture. Changes in net assets of
the joint venture other than profit or loss and
other comprehensive income are not accounted
for unless such changes resulted in changes
in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests
that,
net investment in the joint venture), the Group

in substance, form part of the Group’s

discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint venture.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Interest in a joint venture (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an
objective evidence that the interest in a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the
joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are
classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when
the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for
sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its
sale is highly probable. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected
to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all of
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether
the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in
the relevant subsidiary after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving disposal of an investment, or a portion
of an investment, in an associate or joint venture,
the investment or the portion of the investment
that will be disposed of is classified as held
for sale when the criteria described above are
met, and the Group discontinues the use of the
equity method in relation to the portion that is
classified as held for sale from the time when
the investment (or a portion of the investment) is
classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups)
classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of their previous carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell, except for financial
assets within the scope of HKFRS 9/HKAS 39
which continue to be measured in accordance
with the accounting policies as set out in
respective sections.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Revenue and other income

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises
revenue when (or as) a performance obligation
is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

. the Group’s performance creates and
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the
distinct good or service.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer. A contract asset and
a contract liability relating to a contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligations, the Group allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation
on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sales of goods, the
provision of services or the use by others of
the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the group’s business.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the customer,
at the amount of promised consideration to
which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the customer for more
than 12 months, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable,
discounting using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest
income is accrued separately under the
effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides
a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under the contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.
The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and
does not adjust the consideration for any effects
of a significant financing component if the period
of financing is 12 months or less.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

Artist management service income

The Group provide artist management service
by arranging for the provision of artist services
to counterparty under fixed-price contracts.
Artist management service income is recognised
in which the services are rendered. Some
contracts include multiple deliverables. Where
the contracts include multiple performance
obligations, the transaction price will be
allocated to each performance obligation
based on the stand-alone selling prices. Artist
management service income is recognised at a
point in time.

In the comparative period, artist management
service income is recognised when the services
are rendered.

Distribution fee income

The Group licenses of the distribution rights of
films and television drama series internationally
through its sales agent. Distribution fee income
is recognised when the Group’s entitlement to
such payments has been established which,
subject to the terms of the relevant agreements,
is usually upon the master materials have been
delivered or the sharing of the relevant revenue
have been reliably ascertained. Distribution fee
income is recognised at a point in time.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Revenue and other income (Continued)
Distribution fee income (Continued)

In the comparative period, distribution fee
income from the licensing of the distribution
rights of films and television drama series is
recognised when the Group’s entitlement to
such payments has been established which,
subject to the terms of the relevant agreements,
is usually upon the master materials have been
delivered or the sharing of the relevant revenue
have been reliably ascertained.

Consultancy fee income and management fee
income

Revenue from the consultancy and management
services are recognised over the scheduled
period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group.

In the comparative period, consultancy fee
income and management fee income is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Rental income

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits to
be derived from the use of the leased asset.

Dividend income

Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investments goes ex-dividend.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Revenue and other income (Continued)
Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset.

Income from investment in film

Income from investment in film is recognised
when the Group’s entitlement to such payment
has been established, which is subject to the
terms of the relevant agreements.

Revenue from hotel accommodation, food
and beverage sales and other ancillary hotel
service

The Group provide hotel accommodation, food
and beverage sales and other ancillary hotel
service to customers. Revenue from hotel
accommodation, food and beverage sales and
other ancillary hotel service is recognised when
the relevant services provided by the Group to
customers. Revenue from hotel accommodation,
food and beverage sales and other ancillary
hotel service is recognised at a point in time.

In the comparative period, revenue from hotel
accommodation, food and beverage sales and
other ancillary hotel service is recognised when
the relevant services have been rendered.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Service income from mass marketing, table
gaming operations, VIP rooms table gaming
operations and slot machines operations

The Group provide right to occupy and use
space for gaming service provider for mass
marketing, table gaming operations, VIP rooms
table gaming operations and slot machines
operations. The Group recognised service
income from mass marketing, table gaming
operations, VIP rooms table gaming operations
and slot machines operations in accordance with
the license and site agreements and are based
on certain percentage of monthly gross gaming
wins in the mass market, VIP table gaming and
slot machines in the casino. Service income
from mass marketing, table gaming operations,
VIP rooms table gaming operations and slot
machines operations are recognised at a point
in time.

In the comparative period, service income
from mass marketing, table gaming operations,
VIP rooms table gaming operations and slot
machines operations are recognised over the
periods for which right to occupy and use
spaces are established according to the license
and site agreements and are based on certain
percentage of monthly gross gaming wins in
the mass market, VIP table gaming and slot
machines in the casino.

Revenue from sales of health products

Revenue from sales of health products are
recognised on transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership, which generally coincides with
the time when the products are delivered to
customers and title is passed.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()]

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded
as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination
with finite useful lives are reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.
Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset,
measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including
buildings and leasehold land (classified as
finance leases) held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase
in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of the property, plant and
equipment, the expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of that asset.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Assets held under finance leases are
depreciated over their expected useful lives on
the same basis as owned assets. However, when
there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term,
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the
lease term and their useful lives.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

The principal annual rates are as follows:

2%—5%
20%-33%
10%-50%
15%—-20%

Buildings

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Interests in leasehold land

When the Group makes payments for a property
interest which includes both leasehold land
and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element separately based
on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire
property is accounted as an operating lease.
Specifically, the entire consideration (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “interests in
leasehold land” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis. When the
payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the leasehold land and building elements, the
entire property is generally classified as if the
leasehold land is under finance lease.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

(n)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair
values. All of the Group’s property interests held
under operating leases to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation purposes are classified and
accounted for as investment properties and are
measured using the fair value model. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be
impaired.

The recoverable amount of tangible and
intangible assets are estimated individually,
when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an asset individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the CGU to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets
of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(0)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or
CGU) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘(loss)/profit before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated income statement because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and interest in a
joint venture, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such
investments and interest are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment properties are depreciable and are
held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0)

(p)

Taxation (Continued)
Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their

intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

0]

Stock of properties

Stock of properties, which are held for trading,
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost and net realisable value are
determined as follows:

Properties under development held for sale

The costs of properties under development
held for sale comprises specifically identified
costs including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, borrowing
costs capitalised, material and supplies, wages,
other direct expenses and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
determined by reference to the sale proceeds of
properties sold in ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses and
the anticipated costs to completion, or by
management estimates based on prevailing
marketing conditions.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs of inventories are
determined on a first-in, first-out or weighted
average method as appropriate. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as cost of
sales in the period in which the related revenue
is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as cost of
sales or administrative expenses as appropriate
in the period the write-down or loss occurs as
appropriate. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is offset against the
cost of sales in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Film rights

Film rights represent films and television drama
series produced by the Group or acquired by
the Group. Film rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. The Group begins
amortisation of the capitalised costs of film
rights when a film is released and it begins to

recognise revenue from that film.

The Group reviews and revises estimates of total
projected revenue and total production costs of
film rights at the end of each reporting period.
If estimates are revised, the Group adjusts the
amount of total projected revenue from the
period when such changes in estimates take
place and re-calculated the ratio for amortisation
of film rights. The effect from changes in
estimates is recognised on a prospective basis.

Amortisation expense is charged to profit or loss
based on the proportion of actual income earned
during the year to the total estimated income
from the sale of film rights. The amortisation of
In the
case where there is any impairment in value, the

film rights will not exceed twenty years.

carrying amount is written down to its estimated
recoverable amount.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal
and external market information are considered
to assess whether there is any indication that
film rights are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the carrying amounts of such assets is
assessed and where relevant, an impairment
loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its
estimated recoverable amount. Such impairment

losses are recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®)

(u)

Films in progress

Films in progress represents films and televisions
drama series under production and is stated
at cost at the date incurred, less any identified
impairment losses. Cost includes all costs
associated with the production of films including
remuneration for the film director, casts and
production crew, costumes, insurance, makeup
and hairdressing as well as rental of camera
and lighting equipment. Films in progress
is transferred to film rights when the film is
released.

At the end of each reporting period, both
internal and external market information are
considered to assess whether there is any
indication that films in progress are impaired. If
any such indication exists, the carrying amount
of such assets is assessed and where relevant,
an impairment loss is recognised to reduce
Such
impairment losses are recognised in the profit or

the asset to its recoverable amount.

loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in
the market place.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1st January
2018. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest and dividend income which are derived
from the financial assets and shareholders’
rights are presented as other revenue and other
income.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to
collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”):

o the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling; and

. the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the date of
initial application/initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading
if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate
a financial asset that are required to be
measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other revenue and other income” line item.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
ECL on financial assets which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade
receivables, deposit paid, other receivables,
time
The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting

loan to a director, loan receivables,

deposits and cash and bank balances).

period to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting period. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting period as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

For all other instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood
or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting period with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

. significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (Continued)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under
liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available,
the financial instruments are grouped on the
following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the
Group’s trade and other receivables and
amounts due from customers are each
assessed as a separate group. Loans to
related parties are assessed for ECL on
an individual basis);
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
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The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk

characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1st January 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial asset FVTPL,
AFS financial assets and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchase or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial asset is (i) held for trading or (ii) it
is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading
if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling it in the near term;

o on initial recognition it is a part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1st January 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset
held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise;

o the financial asset forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally
on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives, and
HKAS 39 permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair
value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on
the financial assets and is included in the other
revenue line item. Fair value is determined in
the manner described in note 5 to the financial
statements.
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it Notes to the Financial Statements
—N\E+ZA=+—HI-EE For the year ended 31st December 2018
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1st January 2018) (Continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as AFS or are not classified
as loans and receivables or financial assets at
FVTPL.

AFS debt security that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of each reporting period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade receivables,
deposits paid, other receivables, loan
receivables, time deposits and cash and bank
balances) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any

impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.
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it Notes to the Financial Statements

+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2018
3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1st January 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default

or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

° disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1st January 2018)
(Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period of 60-
90 days, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the amount of the impairment loss recognised
is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1st January 2018)
(Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to the
profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the investment at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS debt security, impairment
losses are subsequently reversed through profit
or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as financial liabilities or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including bank borrowings,
promissory note, obligations under finance
leases, trade payables, deposits received,
accruals and other payables (excluding
receipt in advance) and amounts due to non-
controlling interests) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at
the date when derivative contracts are entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

(w)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short
term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of
that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

(x)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities
of the Group’s operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised
as assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position
under the heading of “obligations under finance
leases”.

Lease payments are apportioned between
finance costs and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance costs are recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable
to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
general policy on borrowing costs.

Operating lease payments, including the cost
of acquiring land held under operating leases,
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed.
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it Notes to the Financial Statements
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Employee benefits
Annual leave

Employee entitlement to annual leave is
recognised when it accrues to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees during the year. Employee
entitlements to maternity leave and sick leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability for bonuses
when there is a contractual obligation and the
amount can be estimated reliably.

Retirement benefit obligations

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), pension fund
schemes and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are
held in separate trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme,
its employees are each required to make

the employer and

contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, with the employers’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000. The Group’s contributions
to the scheme are expensed as incurred are
vested in accordance with the scheme’s vesting
scales. Where employees leave the scheme prior
to the full vesting of the employer’s contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions is used to
reduce the contributions payable by the Group.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit obligations (Continued)

The Group’s subsidiaries operate a defined
contribution scheme for eligible employees in
Macau. The defined contribution scheme is
established and managed by an independent
management company. Both the Group and
the employees make equal share of monthly
contributions to the scheme.

The employees employed by the Group’s
subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) are members of state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the
government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a specific percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits
schemes operated by the government of the
PRC is to make the specified contributions under
the schemes.

Social security fund

Full-time employees of the Group are covered
by a government-mandated defined contribution
plan pursuant to which a fixed amount of
retirement benefit would be determined and
paid by the Macau government. Contributions
are generally made by both employees
and employers by paying a fixed amount
on a monthly basis to the Social Security
Fund Contribution managed by the Macau
government. The Group funds the entire
contribution and has no further commitments
beyond its monthly contributions.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payment expenses

Equity-settled share-based payments to
employees and others providing similar services
are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share- based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity
under the heading of share-based payment
reserve. At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share options reserve. For
share options that vest immediately at the date
of grant, the fair value of the share options
granted is expensed immediately to profit or
loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share-based payment reserve will be transferred
to (accumulated losses)/retained earnings.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(2

(aa)

Share-based payment expenses granted to
consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
with parties other than employees are measured
at the fair value of the services received, except
where that fair value cannot be estimated
reliably, in which case they are measured at
the fair value of the equity instruments granted,
measured at the date the entity obtains the
counterparty renders the service. The fair values
of the services received are recognised as
expenses (unless the goods or services qualify
for recognition as assets).

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision, including
those arising from the contractual obligation
specified in the service concession arrangement
to maintain or restore the infrastructure before
it is handed over to the grantor, is the best
estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(aa)

(ab)

Provisions (Continued)

When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(ac)

(ad)

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is
not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably. When a change
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, they will then be recognised
as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.

Related party transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group
if:

(a) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key

management personnel of the

Group or the Group’s parent.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(ad)

Related party transactions (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of

the following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are
members of the same Group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a Group of which the
other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity);
or

the entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group or
to the Group’s parent.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(ad)

(ae)
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Related party transactions (Continued)

A related party transaction is a transfer of
resources, services or obligations between the
Group and a related party, regardless of whether
a price is charged.

Close family members of a person are those
family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of
the Group’s business, the operations and cash
flows of which can be clearly distinguished from
the rest of the Group and which represents a
separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single
coordinated plan to dispose of a separate
major line of business or geographical area
of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired

exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale if earlier.
It also occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented on the face
of consolidated income statement, which

comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised

on the measurement to fair value less
of the
assets or disposal group constituting the

costs to sell, or on the disposal,

discontinued operation.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3 to the financial
statements, the directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The followings are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred tax on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising
from investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the directors have reviewed the
Group’s investment properties portfolios and concluded
that the Group’s investment properties are not held
under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time. Therefore, in
determining the Group’s deferred tax on investment
properties, the directors have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. The
Group has not recognised any deferred tax on changes
in fair value of investment properties as the Group is not
subject to any income taxes on the fair value changes
of the investment properties on disposal.

Classification of Sparkle Star Entertainment Limited
(“Sparkle Star”) as a joint venture

Sparkle Star is a limited liability company whose legal
form confers separation between the parties to the joint
arrangements and the company itself. Furthermore,
there are no contractual arrangements or any other
facts and circumstances that specify that the parties
to the joint arrangements have rights to the assets and
obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangements.
Accordingly, Sparkle Star is classified as a joint venture
of the Group.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Control over Over Profit International Limited (“Over
Profit”) and its subsidiaries (“Over Profit Group”)

The directors assessed whether or not the Group has
control over on Over Profit Group based on whether
the Group has the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of Over Profit Group unilaterally. In making
the judgement, the directors considered the Group’s
absolute size of holding in Over Profit Group and the
relative size of and dispersion of the shareholdings
owned by other shareholders. After assessment, the
directors concluded that the Group has sufficiently
dominant voting interest to direct the relevant activities
of Over Profit Group and the Group has control over on
Over Profit Group.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
under Level 3 fair value hierarchy

Certain of the Group’s financial assets classified as
FVTPL under Level 3 fair value hierarchy amounting to
approximately HK$222,921,000 at 31st December 2018
(2017: HK$217,579,000) are measured at fair values
with fair values being determined based on unobserved
inputs using valuation techniques. Judgement and
estimation are required in establishing the relevant
valuation techniques and the relevant inputs thereof.
Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could
affect the reported fair values of these instruments. See
note 5 to the financial statements for further disclosures.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Prior to 1st January 2018, when there was an objective
evidence of impairment loss, the Group took into
consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss was measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows
were less than expected or being revised downward
due to changes in facts and circumstances, a material
impairment loss/further impairment loss may arise.

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period.

Assessment of economic useful lives of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated or amortised over their
economic useful lives. The assessment of estimated
useful life is a matter of judgement based on the
experience of the Group, taking into account factors
such as technological progress, changes in market
demand, expected usage and physical wear and tear.
Useful lives are periodically reviewed for continued
appropriateness. Due to long life of assets, changes
to the estimates used can result in variations in their
carrying amounts.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of films in progress

The directors review films in progress at the end of
each reporting period, and identify the slow-moving
films in progress that is no longer suitable for use in
production. The directors estimate the net realisable
value for such films in progress primarily based on
the latest available market prices and current market
conditions. In addition, the Group carries out review
on each film at the end of each reporting period and
makes allowance for any films in progress which no
longer proceeds.

Impairment of film rights

Impairment assessments on film rights are performed
at the end of each reporting period with reference
to both internal and external market information, for
example, sales forecast based on expected popularity
of the respective titles, the expected production, sales
and distribution costs to be reviewed to conclude
the sales, and the general economic condition of the
relevant markets. Changes in assumptions used in this
assessment, including the forecasted revenue, may
result in additional provision being made in the financial
statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining provision for taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises tax liabilities based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the year in which such determination is
made.

Estimated net realisable value on properties under
development classified as stock of properties

In determining whether allowances should be made for
the Group’s properties under development, the Group
considers the current market and the estimated market
value (i.e. the estimated selling price less estimated
costs of selling expenses) less estimated costs to
completion of the properties. An allowance is made if
the estimated market value is less than the carrying
amount. If the actual net realisable value on properties
under development is less than expected as a result of
change in market condition and/or significant variation
in the budgeted development cost, may result in
material provision for impairment loss.
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policies

The Group’s major financial instruments from
continuing operations include AFS financial
assets, financial assets at FVTPL, loan to a
director, investment in film, trade receivables,
deposits paid, other receivables, loan
receivables, time deposits, cash and bank
balances, promissory note, trade payables,
deposits received, accruals and other payables
(excluding receipt in advance) and amounts
due to non-controlling interests. Details of the
financial instruments for the Group are disclosed
in respective notes to the financial statements.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (foreign
exchange risk, equity price risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of
the Group’s exposure in respect of financial
instruments or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risks.

Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong,
Macau, Netherlands and the PRC and
majority of transactions are denominated
in HK$, US dollar (“US$”"), Macau Pataca
(“MOP”), Euro (“EUR”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”).
from future commercial transactions,

Foreign exchange risk arises

recognised assets and liabilities, which
are denominated in a currency that is not
the functional currency of the Group.

The Group is not exposed to material
foreign exchange risk exposure in respect
of HK$ against US$ and MOP as long as
these currencies are pegged. Therefore
US$ and MOP are excluded from the
analysis below.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

a8

Liabilities

—E-N\F

2018
FTiERT

HK$’000

79,663

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The transactions and monetary assets
denominated in EUR is minimal, the
Group considers there has no material
foreign exchange risk exposure in respect
of EUR. Therefore EUR are excluded from
the analysis below.

At the end of each reporting period, the
carrying amounts of the monetary assets
and liabilities of the Group, which are
denominated in RMB, are as follows:

BE
Assets

—E-N\F —E—tF

2017 2018 2017
TAT FTET FTET
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

79,915 225,140 104,106

ARG BB A I B B SN EHE
ZEERABBONEEIMERE -
ERERTYEREIIERR
YRBEREEEHERIIER
B o
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The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy
in respect of assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency. The
management will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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5. ﬁﬁ‘ﬂl =1 (/“,_5, 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) cHEREEEERBE(Z) (b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
mEEE (E) Market risk (Continued)
(i) SN E JE i () (i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
HEE ST Sensitivity analysis

THREDETE AR E IR The following table details the Group’s
LE%E AN E 2 BRKRE © %5% )0 sensitivity to a 5% increase and
FrABRELER RREEBEY decrease in HK$ against RMB. 5% is the
SNEERE R & B A AL BB 2 AT Ak o sensitivity rate used which represents
ZHBREITERERHREEMN management’s assessment of the
SNESHEZ EWIEB R INEE reasonably possible change in foreign
RZ5%EBRABENBENR L exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
BmE- Ti%ﬂtﬂﬁ’ﬂﬁ%mﬁm?éﬁﬁ includes only outstanding foreign
ARBEEBS%RERAER) & currency denominated monetary items
Flzigme-stB TR EBEE®E and adjusts their translation at the end of
BE5%E - H(EB)/ HEF AR the reporting period for a 5% change in
SMERzZEE T FXPOE foreign currency rates. A negative number
R R IE S below indicates an increase in pre-
tax (loss)/profit where HK$ weaken 5%
against RMB. For a 5% strengthening of
HK$ against the relevant currency, there
would be an equal and opposite impact
on the (loss)/profit and the balances

below would be positive.
—E-N\F —E—+tF
2018 2017
FERT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
RNIBHE RMB 7,274 1,210
EREBERRBZEREST AR Management considered the sensitivity

160 hE R EB AR 2O CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

KEBIINERR - FHRERE S
RZBEBRTRBREANZER

analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent foreign currency risk as the
exposure at the end of each reporting
period does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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it Notes to the Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price
risk through its investments in equity
securities measured at FVTPL. For equity
securities measured at FVTPL quoted
in the Stock Exchange, the directors
manage this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different
risks. In addition, the Group also invested
in equity security listed in the Stock
Exchange without quoted market price.
The management has monitor the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been
determined based on the exposure
to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period. Sensitivity analyses
for equity security listed in the Stock
Exchange without quoted market price
with fair value measurement categorised
within Level 3 fair value hierarchy were
disclosed in note 5 below. For sensitivity
analysis of equity and debt securities with
fair value measurement categorised within
Level 1, the sensitivity rate is increased to
5% in 2018 (2017: 5%) as a result of the
volatile financial market.

If the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 5% (2017: 5%)
higher/lower, the pre-tax (loss)/profit
for the year ended 31st December
2018 would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$11,524,000 (2017:
HK$25,412,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of listed equity
securities under Level 1 fair value

hierarchy classified as FVTPL.
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5. ﬁﬁﬂl =1 (/f/%g 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) SREREEEEREEE) (b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

T E b (E) Market risk (Continued)

(i) FEE R (i) Interest rate risk
RZE-NFE+ZA=+—82" At 31st December 2018, the Group has
KEBVEFERE A & no interest-bearing borrowings. Therefore,
NEBEASLBAZNRER - the Company is not exposed to significant

interest rate risk exposure.

R-_EB2—+HF+-_A=+—8" At 31st December 2017, the Group had
REBVWRERZEMEE - At no material variable rate interest-bearing
RARHEERZTBENERR - borrowings. Therefore, the Company was

not exposed to significant interest rate
risk exposure.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to loan to a director, loan receivables, deposits,
other receivables, time deposits and bank
balances. At 31st December 2018, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk, which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties arising from the carrying amounts
of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements to cover its credit
risks associated with its financial assets, except
that the credit risks associated with loan to a
director is mitigated because loan to a director
is secured by way of a share charge over the
entire issued share capital of Reform Base
Holdings Limited (“Reform Base”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI”) and wholly owned by Ms. Chen Ming Yin,
Tiffany (“Ms. Chen”).

At 31st December 2017, the Group has certain
concentration of credit risk as 99% of the
trade receivables of the Group were due from
two customers. Management of the Company
considered the credit risk is limited since
the Group only trade with customers with an
appropriate credit history and good reputation.
The management monitored the financial
background and creditability of those debtors on
an ongoing basis.
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it Notes to the Financial Statements
—N\E+ZA=+—HI-EE For the year ended 31st December 2018
5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model
upon application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred
loss model) on trade balances individually or
based on provision matrix. In this regard, the
directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The directors considered the credit risk of the
Group’s other receivables is relatively low as
they have a low risk of default and the issuer has
a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term.

The Group had advanced a loan to a director
and certain loans to third parties. The directors
considered the credit risk is limited since the
Group only provides loan to whom has an
appropriate credit history and good reputation.
The directors monitored the financial background
and creditability of borrow on an ongoing basis.

The Group actively monitors the outstanding
amounts owed by each debtor and uses past
due information to assess whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The Group deposited time deposits and bank
balances with approved and reputable banks.
Bankruptcy or insolvency of the banks may
cause the Group’s right with respect to time
deposits and bank balances held to be delayed
or limited. The directors monitor the credit
rating of these banks on an ongoing basis, and
consider that the Group’s exposure to credit
risk at 31st December 2018 and 31st December
2017 were minimal.

The Group does not have any other significant
concentrations of credit risk. The exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate cash and cash equivalents, monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring
by the management. Reports with maturity
dates of bank borrowings and thus the liquidity
requirement are provided to management for
review periodically. Management will raise or
refinance bank borrowings whenever necessary.

At 31st December 2018, the Group has available
unutilised banking facilities of approximately
HK$1,600,000,000.

The following table shows details of the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
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5. 4R TA(& 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)y 2BEAREBEBEEREE(E) (b)

mBEZmE (E)

FTESRABEZEHA T A EERA
HREERS - RAFADREADORES
BNRBENT

BRAE

Effective
interest rate

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity dates for non-derivative financial
liabilities are prepared based on the agreed
repayment dates. The amounts disclosed in the
table are based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, are as follows:

RER AHR
FR-FR ZEIER RENE REREEH  REEL
On demand Total Total
or within Within Over undiscounted carrying
1 year 2-5 years 5years  cash flows amount

Tén TEx TR T TR
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

WZZ-NE+ZA=+-8 At 31st December 2018

FEeRER Non-derivative
financial liabilities
BHRAER Trade payables -
BYERS - EHTEE Deposits received,
REfMERNFIE accruals and other payables -
[ SRR E Amounts due to

non-controlling interests -

@it Total

166 hEEEB AR 2O CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

38,421 - - 38,421 38,421
509,848 - - 509,848 509,848
503,116 - - 503,116 503,116

1,051,385 - - 1,061,385 1,051,385
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5. &@MI A (£ 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)y 2BMEABREEBEERBE(E) (b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

REBELERE (&) Liquidity risk (Continued)
REX AHH
ERFE  SR-FR ZE0ERM RENE RERBEH  REELH
On demand Total Total
Effective or within Within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 2-5 years 5years  cash flows amount
T AL AL TAL THRL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZF—+FTZFE=1—H8 At 31st December 2017
Hitenat Non-derivative
financial liabilities
EAIES Promissory note 17.49% - 212,500 - 212,500 173,817
BIRAER Trade payables - 26,589 - - 26,589 26,589
BliEs - EitEE Deposits received,
REMENFE accruals and other payables - 294,070 - - 294,070 204,070
e RiER R Amounts due to
non-controlling interests - 503,116 - - 503,116 503,116
it Total 823,775 212,500 - 1,036.275 997,592
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

168 hEFEEB AR 2O CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Fair value of financial instruments

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages independent
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
management works closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model.
The management reports the findings to the
directors at the end of each reporting period to
explain the cause of fluctuations in fair value of

the asset.

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

° Level 1 valuations: fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 valuations: fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are input for which
market data are not available; and

o Level 3 valuations: fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.
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5. €@ TR (/Z/%g 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) L2RMIAZATEEE) (c)  Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)
28 EZER E=ER @zt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
TER FET TER TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

R=ZE-NF+=H=+—-H At 31st December 2018

BREEREEZ N TPER Fair value on a recurring basis
BREFZNATEENE Financial assets at FVTPL
ZEREE
~EER LT REES - Equity securities listed
in Hong Kong 230,480 - 3,549 234,029
~EEEzELmEMES - Unlisted club debenture
in Hong Kong - 80 - 80
-RET-RESZEFAME - Call option embedded in
L RIEHE loan to a director - - 219,372 219,372
230,480 80 222,921 453,481
£-5H E-ER E=EH ety
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
THT THT THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WZZE—+tF+ZA=F+—H At 31st December 2017
B E I REZ NP EE Fair value on a recurring basis
BRBENATFEEYR Financial assets at FVTPL
JEREE
—EBB LT RAES - Equity securities listed in
Hong Kong 508,237 - 3,635 511,872
~RET-ZEZZEFAME - Call option embedded in
2RI loan to a director - - 213,944 213,944
508,237 - 217,579 725,816
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
into and out of fair value hierarchy levels at
the end of the date of the events or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

On 27th November 2017, one of the Group’s
equity securities listed in Hong Kong classified
as financial assets at FVTPL was suspended
trading, therefore, no unadjusted quoted price
in an active market is available. The Group
measured fair value of suspended trading
security by reference to the valuation carried out
by Graval Consulting Limited in which fair value
was measured by using significant unobservable
inputs, thus, the fair value of suspended trading
security was reclassified from Level 1 to Level 3
valuations.

During the year ended 31st December 2018,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3.

During the year ended 31st December 2017,
there were no transfers between Level 1 to Level
2 and Level 2 to Level 3.

The following table presents the changes in
financial assets at FVTPL which are classified

BRzERBEEUNATEEIKRZCRE as Level 3 category for the year ended 31st
EMEE December 2018 and 2017:
FHEIT
HK$'000
RZE—tF—H—H At 1st January 2017 -
RHT—RBESZEFMEEZ Call option arising on advance from
R R loan to a director 228,092
EREE SR Transfer from Level 1 34,500
FRBEEUATEBEIRZEREE Y Loss arising on change in fair value of
N EEESEECEBE financial assets at FVTPL (45,013)
RZE—tF+=-A=+—H At 31st December 2017 and at
&75/\7? NF—HA—H 1st January 2018 217,579
FERBEEUATEBEIRZSRHEE Gain arising on change in fair value
/N ?FE“‘EJJEEZ@TU of financial assets at FVTPL 5,342
R-ZE—-N\FE+=-A=+—H At 31st December 2018 222,921
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5. ¢@MIAE(E 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) SRMIBECRAFEEE) (c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)
RS Eg AT EENESEN Information about Level 3 fair value
- measurements
BETAEHE BEETAHE
fRE BABE BABBEAFEEZBER
Significant Relation of significant
Valuation unobservable unobservable
techniques input inputs to fair value

RET—REEFZ
BERREZ
RS AR

Call option
embedded in
loan to a director

“IRA B ERN HEEEEE

Binomial option
pricing model

Underlying
assets value

BB IR

Expected
volatility

TEEERALMHS mHE 5% B
853.15%
(ZZ2—+%F:
21.65%)

Holding return
basis of
negative
53.15%

(2017: 21.65%)

Market
approach

Suspended trading
security listed in
Hong Kong

&R E 42713
—T
51.47)
Price-to-earning
basis of 27.13
(2017: 51.47)

IREET78.01%
—E—tF:
84.61%)
Discount rate of
negative 78.01%
(2017: 84.61%)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4E$R

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

HEAEEEERRBHR A FEETER
HIEERIF

The underlying assets value is
positively correlated to the fair value
measurement of the call option

T ER R 8 B R B 2 N B ERT B FELE
ERR

The expected volatility is positively
correlated to the fair value
measurement of the call option

FROREEREEEERB LHEF LA
FEEFEFELERER

The holding return basis is positively
correlated to the fair value
measurement of the suspended trading
security listed in Hong Kong

MREXELERTEEERE LMESFZAF
BEEFELERR

The price-to-earning basis is
positively correlated to the fair value
measurement of the suspended trading
security listed in Hong Kong

FRFELEERERE LMESFZATEE
AAEFERERER

The discount rate is negatively correlated
to the fair value measurement of the
suspended trading security listed in
Hong Kong
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5. €®MIA(E
(c) EMIBECAFEE(E)

EFHE=ERAFEETBZEHN (%)

RIEFEEZAYEER  EEEBREE
CEEMARARNEINAE  UHELEE
BERMERZEAZHABE - EEER
EREPRNESERANGER - UFE
BEERATEERESZRA -

BRAEE LA FEEMRA . GERM
RBABIRZER TR EXHRE -

LRI 2 AERE A BEE
BRA -R_F-NFER-_FT—tF+=
A=+ —BA&BRAZHABENT

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the
management work closely with Graval Consulting
Limited to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The
management reports the findings to the directors
at the end of each reporting period to explain
the cause of fluctuations in fair value of the
asset.

Information about the valuation techniques and
inputs used in determining the above fair value
are disclosed above.

Binomial option pricing model is used for
valuation for the call option component. The
inputs into the model at 31st December 2018
and 2017 are as follows:

—E—tF

2017

HEEEEE(THET) Underlying assets value (HK$'000) 507,478 384,000
TEE(FAET) Exercise price (HK$'000) 500,000 500,000
T8 HA I 18 (%) Expected volatility (%) 43.00 38.59
fg B Wz (%) Dividend yield (%) N/A REH N/A 3 F
HARE B R () Option life (years) 3.27 4.27
1 3 B 1 2 (%) Risk free rate (%) 1.72 1.58

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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5.

ERMITA(E

(c)

CRMIBEZDAFEEE)
BAFEEU T RZEHBEERBREZ
AFEHE
BTITXHEN R NER-_T—+
F+-A=Z+—8  REBEEK A
KAz eREERSREEZERE
HENFEETESALA

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

BHYF—2ESE
ZER
AR

Loan to a director

Promissory note

RAFEEBRRERT - RESZESRR
ENENRFEEDBRE=SH DHE
RER/RRBERIME—RERZEEE
NEF EEBREOARBRAITRXAR
RIFEAARBRENBOSBR T ARERD
Bl 35
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Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

Except as disclosed below, the carrying amounts
of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost were
not materially different from their fair values as at
31st December 2018 and 2017:

—E-N\E T —tF

2018 2017
ARE{E AFEE BREAE NEEE
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
F#&xT F#&T FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
327,903 330,923 293,371 294,636
- - 173,817 184,059

The fair values of loan to a director and
promissory note are classified as Level 3
category in fair value hierarchy which have
been determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on a discounted
cash flow analysis, with the most significant
inputs being the discount rate that reflects the
return required by the holder for investing in
similar financial instrument.

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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5.

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

SRITA(Z

(d)

BEXE®

AEBEREEBEAR  UHEERAEE 2 (EE
BARFELE  TEBBCERRESS
REFNEEREFALEE - NBEFE
ARECBEBREESTE -

AEBZEXNGEBRERERFR (R
RITEE ANELBREBERES) KA
DEHAAEGEE  HBRRERAREE -

R 6% B3 4 T R (E TSP SR BB A B AR K e

BEERMBHFE
EERFEEEENELA SR - FRUE
Mz—8fn EEEEEANAREESE
MEAHEBZER - AREHREAAF
ESTVHBEZEBIMNKRE  BITHK
DEBRBAERNDARBETHEEIED
REEGMPEREREBENGE -

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
net debts (which includes bank borrowings,
promissory note and obligations under finance
leases) and equity attributable to owners of
the Company (comprising share capital and
reserves).

The Group is not subject to any external imposed
capital requirements.

Gearing ratio

The directors review the capital structure
on annual basis. As part of this review, the
directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on the recommendations of the directors
of the Company, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through payment of
dividends, issue of new shares or repurchase of
existing shares as well as issue of new debts or
redemption of existing debts.
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5. ﬁﬂl =1 (/f/%g 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) EXEE#E) (d)  Capital management (Continued)
BEEBEHRE(E) Gearing ratio (Continued)
AEEEERBEEABELRTBE The Group aimed at maintaining a gearing ratio
50% - RMEBMAZEEBGBL RN ¢ of not more than 50%. The gearing ratio at the

end of the reporting period was as follows:

S S N
2018 2017
FHT Fhx

HK$’000 HK$'000

BEK (H772) Total debts (Note) - 844,170
A EBETARR S Less: Time deposits and cash and bank
RIBITHE balances (1,156,735) (424,355)
(Re) /BEBFE Net (cash)/debt (1,156,735) 419,815
RARER AELER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 4,431,962 3,281,574
BRFEE AL X Net debt to equity ratio N/A TEA 13%
BEBHERLE Total debt to equity ratio N/A RiE A 26%
Wi HEBEERTEERREEERR Note: Total debts comprises bank borrowings and

(DEESEABELEEAEZIEESE
&)  URANZE (FBED BRI BER
K MI7E361%38) °

obligations under finance leases which are
classified as liabilities associated with assets
classified as held for sale, and promissory note
as detailed in notes 36 and 38 to the financial
statements respectively.
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6.

TREH

AEEREAANES (NEEREARE (T
BREARE]) BN REEEHAESE
N LU T T B
B -

HEZT—+tHFERFT-NF+ZA=1+—H8L
FE ASEENEATHREDH-—SXHE@AE
BREER MERERBRELEES  BER
BERECEXEFURMIITREER - ZEA
TREDEDRBEEAAEBLEEB 2 EN (B
BERNELHAE)ED °

AREATREDENRETRERES 2 KK
EBEMN - mREEXBEEIATERTETR
R TS 1 R RS - MR EIE o

AEBRELEEBREREBEXBREATR
SNEZFHBMT

FREGEER

EEZiE R - RE - RE-ETR

REE REEZLERE
BE - ARRBRHE
it ERHERSE &
BEAEIR RS

MERER - RERRABUNEE

RERLEER KRR

6.

176  hEEEB AR 20 CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”),
for the purpose of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments and that are
used to make strategic decisions.

For the year ended 31st December 2017 and 2018,
the Group has four reportable segments — film related
business operations, property development and
investment operations, hotel and gaming service
operations and Nam Pei Hong operations. The
segmentations are based on the information about the
operations of the Group that management uses to make
decisions.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business
units that operate different activities. They are managed
separately because each business has different
markets and requires different marketing strategies.

Particulars of the Group’s reportable segments for
continuing and discontinued operations are summarised

as follows:

Continuing operations

Film related - Investment, production,
business distribution and licensing of
operations films and television drama

series and provision of
other film related services
including artist management
services

Property — Investment and development of

development properties located in Hong

and investment Kong and Macau

operations
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6. ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁl (/f/%g 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

ERIEEEER Discontinued operations

B E MR RS — RBMBEEDBER Hotel and gaming - Provision of hotel services,

R ORISR - B & service operations food and beverage

MR 4 & 75 AR operation services,

% - RS A provision of right to occupy

ERBRELEER site and marketing services

Z IS ERE for gaming operation in

Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau

RALITA & T — HEP R HE M Nam Pei Hong — Sales of Chinese and other
Em REER - operations medicines pharmaceutical
SEGWRERTI products, health products,
EERTEEUR ginseng and dried seafood
R B8 B IR AR 7% products to wholesalers and

retailer as well as Chinese
clinical services

UTHRENDEEH T TEREERIEREELR The segment information reported below does not

T &% HRPERRMFE1SEEAMBEE - include any amounts for the discontinued operations,
which are disclosed more detail in note 13 to the
financial statements.
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TRER (& 6.
B RGE R
AMZSEEEH 2 A BANZHNT

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Continuing operations

Segment information about these operations is

presented as below:

() FAEMEREEIWEDZWHEREEADN (a)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by operating segments

2 8W PRER
Segment revenue Segment results
“E-)\F “EtE ZB-0\F ERtE
2018 2017 2018 2017
THAL TAT ThR TERL

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

SYREEBEERE Film related business operations 3,493 9,264 (14,477) 3,817
MERERWELLEE  Property development and
investment operations - 8 (9,206) 3,935
3,493 9,272 (23,683) 7,752
RE#EREEK22E  Reconciliation from segment results to
EEERHA(ER)/ (loss)/profit before tax from
wHZH kR continuing operations
RABRLERA Unallocated corporate income 83,437 75,147
FBEEUATEREE 2 (Loss)gain arising on change in fair
SHEEZATEEZHM  value of financial assets at FVTPL
EEZ(BB)/8H (360,209) 210,791
ElE-BAELE Share of (loss)/profit of a joint
(B1]B) /&7 venture (114) 223
APEAERR Unallocated corporate expenses (104,767) (183,877)
BitA (B58) /A (Loss)/profit before tax (405,336) 110,036

EXMERZ D BREHEREIAEFZ
Yogk o MIEFERISES BRIHE

NERREREDPBERIEEIRNED
ERAXIBATZRBTRAS  HFoRE
RARBOEMBERS  [ROBREZE
BAJETHOEM B S REMBKA &
BRGEARNTFERIIKZEREEZAT
BEEZHMEL 2 (BB 8 H A KE
E—HAELE(BR), I8 MaT (FAE
ZER) PR ZE A - T REER
BERRELMEFBRD BN HERZ
FHEIE -

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Segment revenue reported above represents
revenue generated from external customers.
There were no inter-segment sales for both
years.

Segment results represent the (loss suffered)/
profit earned by each segment without allocation
of central administrative expenses, partial
finance costs, and partial other operating
expenses under the heading of “unallocated
corporate expenses”, partial other revenue and
other income under the heading of “unallocated
corporate income”, (loss)/gain arising on change
in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL and
share of (loss)/profit of a joint venture. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance
assessment.
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6. ﬁ}ﬁﬁ*ﬁl (/ég 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
BEKEER(E) Continuing operations (Continued)
(b) AEMRELEDPFEEA D 2 HBMRRDN (b)  An analysis of the Group’s financial position

by operating segments

—E-N\E —E—+F
2018 2017
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
NEEE Segment assets
—EYRBEBKCEERS - Film related business operations 526,100 296,211
—MERERIKRE — Property development and
A investment operations 2,596,602 2.216,602
DIEERT Total segment assets 3,122,702 2512,813
BRACKRIEEEEK 2 EE Assets related to discontinued operations - 725,635
KOBEE Unallocated assets 2,360,520 1,861,355
5,483,222 5,099,803
—E-N\F —FtF
2018 2017
FTER FAT
HK$°000 HK$’000
=R LIABILITIES
NEEE Segment liabilities
— B HBEEBLLEET  — Film related business operations 76,074 76,967
—MEREREE — Property development and
K FT investment operations 538,365 528,303
DEBERTE Total segment liabilities 614,439 605,270
R RIEEEER Liabilities related to discontinued
ZEfE operations - 820,751
Ko aE Unallocated liabilities 436,946 392,322
1,051,385 1,818,343
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6. PHEM(E 6.

FERER% (F)
(b) FEERKEIBVUIZHBRRDAN
(&)

MR BEREEERD KR BEMME ¢

. FMEBEDNNETATHRENER
WAL ESREE RBHT—
FEFEZER R-RAAELE
Bam- ®MHOme ANRERE
EWKE ERBEEARTE
BIfRce®MBEE BEREX-
MRS RRITAER  (FEITT
BR&ZZBNDME HERRE
RHE T SR K

o FEREDNNETATHRENER

WANE S fine R ER
TR E K H B FRIRRRS

180 hEEEB A2 O CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Continuing operations (Continued)

(b)

An analysis of the Group’s financial position
by operating segments (Continued)

For the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment between segments:

° all assets are allocated to reportable
segments, other than AFS financial
assets, loan to a director, interest in a
joint venture, partial deposits, prepayment
and other receivables, financial assets at
FVTPL, loan receivables, partial cash and
bank balances, partial property, plant and
equipment and interests in leasehold land
for central administrative purposes; and

° all liabilities are allocated to reportable
segments, other than promissory note,
partial deposits received and accruals
and other payables.
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6.

6.

REKEXRK (F)

(c)

Hitv o BEH

FAHBYERRAD REELAA:

SYMERE
BETEads

ng mERaERE
FEEYNE CRIRERR

BENE BERREL
BRARERR
ERRZERUERL
BETRERREE
FECARERAMEANEL
BRZREREAE

HENE RERFEEL
B/ (&7)
RENFLYREERDZEH

FENE BERRE

ERNIREEARERM
BT A EDREET
PEEEZRE:

N-HRELR 2R
RTHERA

ERHEHA

EfpHERA

BERE

EE-MAELEZ (BE)/EH
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Amounts included in the measure of
segment results or segment assets:

Amortisation of film rights

Amortisation of interests in
leaseold land

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of film rights

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of property, plant and equipment

Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in respect of trade receivables

Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in respect of deposits paid and
other receivables

Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Gain on fair value change of
investment properties

Additions to property, plant and equipment

Amounts regularly provided to
the CODM but not included in
the measure of segment results
or segment assets:

Interest in a joint venture

Bank interest income

Loan interest income

Other interest income

Finance costs

Share of (loss)fprofit of & joint venture

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Continuing operations (Continued)

(c)

Other segment information

YRR
EHEERH
Film related

business operations

=t
2018
TER
HK$'000

193

571

(120)

“E-tF

2017
TAT
HK§ 000

(139)

(3.152)

960

HELES
RELERER AR
Property development and
investment operations Unallocated
2205 Pl -\ g
2018 2017 2018 2017
TiEn T TiEn THL
HKS'000 [GISIO0N  HKS'000 [ie3u)
- - 1,873 1,873
1,350 12 2,750 2,839
3,601 - - -
1 - (10) (225)
(1,300) (4,120) - -
1,018 163 1,333 2,021
- - 270 384
15 10 14,938 8,865
- - 65,532 63,202
- - 87 120
- - 2,835 63,896
- - (114) 223

&8

Consolidated

“E-)\§
2018

TR
HK§'000

1,873

4,293

51

3,601

(120)

®

(1,300)
2,349

m
15,204
65,532
&
283
(114)

i
217
TiET
HKS 000

8,373
1,873
3,007

1,024

(135)

(3.152)
(225)

(4,120)
3,144

384
8,922
63,202
120
63,896
223
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6. 7 ﬁﬁ*ﬁl (/Z/%g 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
BELEER(B) Continuing operations (Continued)
(d EEXEEFzEH (d)  Information about major customers
RIEEFEEMASEAHEEI10%MU L Revenue from customers of the corresponding
ZEPZWENT years contributing over 10% of the total sales of

the Group is as follows:

—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
FET FHT

HK$°000 HK$'000

HHEBERREEL Film related business operations

=R Customer A 1,541 4.446
B (KE0) Customer B (Note (i) 718 N/A T3 A
EPW (K aE) Customer C (Note (i) 358 N/A i
BET (Ba0) Customer D (Note (i) 360 N/A i
BRI (R aE) Customer E (Note (ii)) N/A TER 1,664
B EXETIEEN  AMEAFE  SEEM Except disclosed above, no other customers
BEPERAEEW 0% £ - contributed 10% or more to the Group’s revenue

for both years.

et - Notes:

(i) REEPZ BEPAREPT 2H#= (i) Revenue derived from Customer B, Customer
VTESHMAEEEE T —tF+= C and Customer D did not contribute over 10%
A=+—HIEFEZRE10%HA E - of revenue of the Group during the year ended

31st December 2017.

(ii) RERPR WS EERASEEEH (i) Revenue derived from Customer E did not
EZE-)N\F+ZA=+—BLFE contribute over 10% of revenue of the Group
2 W EE10%8 A £ o during the year ended 31st December 2018.
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6.

BESEER(F)
(e) ih & & B

TR#FEB>)REINREP 2 Wz K (i)
FERBEE (TEBEEZRIA) 2MER
BRZER FPMELRTYEREHRS
FRXNERZAERE - EREEEZ PR
HEYERZEEEZARNUE -

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Continuing operations (Continued)
(e) Geographical information

The following table sets out information about
geographical location of (i) revenue from external
customers and (ii) non-current assets (excluded
financial instruments). The geographical location
of customers is based on the location at which the
services were provided or the goods delivered. The
geographical location of non-current assets is based

on the physical location of the assets.

REINR
BEF 2 Wz

IRBEE
(TrEfEFLmIA)
Non-current assets
(excluded financial
instruments)

Revenue from
external customers

—2— ¢ PRESE —2—)\F el
2018 2017 2018 2017
Fi Fit Tl FHIT

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

20

P

Gl

D
(BEEE)

i
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Hong Kong

Macau

The PRC

Southeast Asia
(including Taiwan)

Others

719 768 141,289 148,809
- - 995 141
1,233 2,260 3 6
- 1,723 - -
1,541 4,521 - -
3,493 9,272 142,287 148,956
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7 W=

BE-_2-\F+-A=1+-RALEE
(i) DHFBREFANZRE

7. REVENUE
For the year ended 31st December 2018
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers

UTHIETE A4 s maEEE Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue
i ESEE Y ¥ - from contracts with customers with the amounts

disclosed in the segment information.

—B-N\F
2018
TEx
HK$°000

FREEEER
BITERA
BAERRBEA

Continuing operations

Distribution fee income 1,541
Artist management service income 1,952

Revenue from contracts with customers 3,493

—E-N\F
2018

TR
HK$°000

FEKEXR
Ui 2 FE 7R By
K —Ers a2

Continuing operations
Timing of revenue recognition
A point in time 3,493
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7 W (& 7. REVENUE (Continued)
BE-_E2-\E+-A=+-HLEE#E) For the year ended 31st December 2018 (Continued)
(i) PHREHREBEFEABTEANEIZRS (ii)  Transaction allocated to the remaining

performance obligation for contracts with
customers
AEBBEZEAECERBWATERE S The Group has applied the practical expedient
BREEREISREIRZATRER in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its artist
% ERMBEH TR RERN —Fk management service income such that the Group
UTHIR  BEAKETAREEELRE does not disclose information about revenue
ERBITEAEEANBRTENERRS that the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies
EEhmER - the remaining performance obligations under
the artist management contracts as all contract
works have an original expected duration of one
year or less.
HE-_Z—+F+-_A=1+—BILEE For the year ended 31st December 2017
—E—+F
2017
FAT
HK$'000
RELE B Continuing operations
BITERA Distribution fee income 6,559
HABERBHEA Artist management service income 2,392
BRIREZHA Income from investment in film 313
He W ALE Gross rental income 8
9,272

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4E$R

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

185



BN [ ¥ #Ht % B #F Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-Z—)\&+-A=+—HIFE Forthe

8. HitWmRkEMKA

year ended 31st December 2018

8. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

FEEEEY

R AR A5 A

P B A
HEME - HERRBZER

HE— KB AR 2R
RITHBIRA
ERFBWA
H At F B A

EEERA

BEE 34, )i 1) 75 88
EREZREER 2
BRI E R R
BRBMNEZEE REMEYK
IR Z EERRE
B A E

FETRWA

9. BEMRA

Continuing operations

Consultancy service income

Dividend income

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Bank interest income

Loan interest income

Other interest income

Management fee income

Net foreign exchange gain

Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in respect of trade receivables

Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in respect of deposits paid and
other receivables

Sundry income

9. FINANCE COSTS

FRSEXER
RITBEEZHE
ENEZHE

186 hEREEB ARG CHINA STAR ENTE

Continuing operations
Interests on bank borrowings
Interest on promissory note

RTAINMENT LIMITED

—E-N\E —FE—tF
2018 2017
FERT TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
972 959
1,366 1,722

9 225

639 1,150
15,244 8,922
65,532 63,202
87 120

720 340

- 16,237

120 135

- 3,152

36 221
84,725 96,385
—E-N\F —FtF
2018 2017
FHET THETT
HK$°000 HK$'000
964 25,933
1,871 37,963
2,835 63,896
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4 ¥t # B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements
HE-ZT—)\+-A=1+—BI9FE For the year ended 31st December 2018

10. BRBAT(BR) EF 10.

BRBLAT (BE) SEMEMB(GEA) THI%=E :

FEEEEK
ME i e 5
EXREEE Gt AHERAE)

REE M KA MR
— B R
—IREA R

EERNRAX (BREEHFH)
(Hf15)

FREXMEZERABERR
(FFAEMEERX)

BREME BARREBEZICER
RERE (GF AR K L)

REBERANFEZER
GFAHMEERX)

REMEZATEEEDZ
A (G ARMBEERX)

BERSUATFEERNEZ
PREEZATEEED
FEEZEE/ (i)

ELERCEN) FE

BRWEzRLHERS

AREREBEARNDNZ
FIRR X

REMEZHT WAL

B FRNRBEMEMELZ
BEREERX
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Continuing operations
Amortisation of interests in leasehold land
Amortisation of film rights
(included in cost of sales)
Auditors’ remuneration and other services:

— audit services
— non-audit services

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Employee benefit expenses
(included directors’ remuneration) (note 15)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of film
rights (included in other operating expenses)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment (include in
other operating expenses)
Loss on early redemption of promissory note
(included in other operating expenses)
Gain on fair value change of investment
properties (included in other
operating expenses)
Loss/(gain) arising on change in fair
value of financial assets at FVTPL

Net foreign exchange loss/(gain)
Operating lease rental in respect of premises
Share-based payment expenses in

respect of consultancy fee

Gross rental income from investment properties
Less: Direct operating expenses incurred for
investment properties during the year

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

(Loss)/profit before tax has been arrived at after
charging/(crediting):

—B-N\F —E—tE
2018 2017
FTEx FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
1,873 1,873

- 8,373

1,219 1,002
186 1,207
1,405 2,209
4,293 3,097
58,740 40,789
571 1,024
3,601 -
24,778 66,110
(1,300) (4,120)
360,209 (210,791)
4,253 (16,237)
5,791 4,823
1,839 -

- (8)

- 127

- 119

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

187



S— T B R W

HE=%
11.
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it Notes to the Financial Statements

—N\E+ZA=+—HI-EE For the year ended 31st December 2018

Fr& BB 1.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

—E-N\E —E—+F
PORE: 2017
FTER FAT
HK$°000 HK$’000
HEREER Continuing operations
BEARR I8 Current tax:

— RSN - PRC Enterprise Income Tax - 5
RZE-—NF=ZA=-+—H BFBLELBE= On 21st March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative
z— {E%ﬁ?}%({ T) (FB79) 1661 B 2= ([Z1& 45 Council passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No.
BR])  SIATGHMRS - ZEHNERN-F 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered

—NFEZA-+NRAEEEATNAEXHL
REHFF - REFNESHMAS - 2 EREEE
BREMABB TR 1L8.25%0 R - 8
BRAEPB T IRI65% R EME - TRHAMNE
MGG ERNEBEEEHEEMNBNARER
16.5% H) 5t — B A -

EERAEHRFESHMASMSREBYHEAY
BREFEDK - EEFEH A EFERE
JERBEF 2 16.5%5F & °

HRAEEMETFRE BB Z BRI N %
FERATGMN D 2B AAR G HERE - &
I Bt b WA F 2 B MG BRAE L BME -

o B A )R B 6 1R 25 %8 A P B 1 E A
BR < BPIM B A RN MEEE IR G ERT R
Fzse RERR12%HARFIFT SR ITR © A
1 B B 2 )32 £ FR200,0008k 7T A BRI A 2
20% M ET - =R I AR T o5 %M T

BHRAEELENRFRABELERTUEN
MY \RZMEFERFIAEHAR AR L
EL AL

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law
on 28th March 2018 and was gazetted on the following
day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the
first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million
will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
for both years as the Group has no assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong or taxable profits were wholly
absorbed by estimated tax losses brought forward.

The PRC subsidiaries are subject to the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax at 25% for both years. Macau subsidiaries
are subject to Macau Complementary Tax at the
maximum progressive rate of 12% on the estimated
assessable profit for both years. Netherland subsidiary
is subject to the corporate tax at 20% of the taxable
income up to and including EUR200,000, above which
the rate is 25%.

No provision for Macau Complementary Tax and
Netherland corporate tax has been made for both years
as the Group has no assessable profit arising in Macau
and Netherland.
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HE-Z—)/\F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2018
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

. FEHMAX(E

HRAEERBE_Z-—NF+_A=1+—HI
FREILENPRELERTOEN - FUb I EEH

FRIERSH AR -

FAFEEARARAKRTA (B18) 85 3

No provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax has
been made for the year ended 31st December 2018 as

the Group has no assessable profits arising in the PRC.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled

to the (loss)/profit before tax per the consolidated

ZRBREAIOT

income statement as follows:
BEREXR Continuing operations
BE A (BB), 5T (Loss)/profit before tax

REMPISH MR R BIA

MEEE
EhE—RaBERHE
2B Ca )
TRERBUA
AR
REER Z A HBEE
PRBERERZHAEE

FEMBHREX

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4E$R

Tax at domestic income tax rate

Tax effect of:
Share of loss/(profit) of
a joint venture
Income not taxable for tax purpose
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose
Estimated tax losses not recognised
Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised

Income tax expense for the year

—E-N\F —T—+F
2018 2017
FH&ERT FHEIT
HK$’000 HK$'000
(405,336) 110,036
(66,650) 19,104
19 (37)
(16,396) (60,846)
83,060 29,665
181 12,161
(214) (52)
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BN 1 B #Ht % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements
HE-_Z—)\E+-A=+—HI5EE For the year ended 31st December 2018

12.

13.

@)

FAEEREBIRN FTAR R EBRBER ZBE

12.

DIVIDEND

Dividend declared and to be paid for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during the year:

—E-N\F —EtF
2018 2017
TEx AT

HK$’000 HK$'000

5 RIS 1578l

RZE-NFF+ZAT+NB ESERARZE
—NF-ANBRIARAAKRFEEMZRE &
BINARFANTRBRESHEA (FEAER
TEHARNARREMRARCERER) G2 F
HRREFBEBEATRSRE GRS EA15E
e BRI EER—Z—NE—B-_+tAB A
BIRAT ©

FRYERNLERRNRARE - RBSHR
% ERENERFIROEMRS (ZT—LF:
) o

s

CRIEREEK

RZTE—tF=ZA=+NB AEEFTLHGKH
BEMFALELLEMITEEER 2ARAZ
‘E}ft /8 A 7]Ace Season Holdings Limited ([Ace
Season|) R EME ARz 2 BRAE A KAce
Season# R 2 #H & &5 - # K {E 585,000,000/
T HEmMIETEEEBREAEBTINAE
BHEMEBRMEE REHEERZ-ZZ—+t
FRA=ZTHREK - MmdbTE e E% 2 EmlE
ERZBRIE-MEEEERB BN R EEACe
SeasonZ EB 2 St EF BRI IS MR GE443 58 o

Special dividend of HK15 cents

13.

190 hEFEEB A2 O CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

420,326 -

On 18th December 2018, the board of the directors
declared the payment of a special dividend of HK15
cents per ordinary share of the Company to the
shareholders whose names appear on the Company’s
register of members and the Bonus CBs holders whose
names appear on the Company’s register of Bonus CBs
holder (holders conferred the holders with the same
economic interests attached to the shareholders of the
Company) on 9th January 2019. The special dividend
will be paid on or around 25th January 2019.

No final dividend was paid or proposed during the year,
nor any dividend has been proposed by the board of
directors subsequent to the end of the reporting period
(2017: nil).

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 29th March 2017, the Group entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement to dispose
the entire equity interest in Ace Season Holdings
Limited (“Ace Season”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and its subsidiaries which carried out the
Nam Pei Hong operations, and a sale loan due by Ace
Season at total consideration of HK$85,000,000. The
disposal of Nam Pei Hong operations was consistent
with the Group’s long-term policy to focus its activities
on the Group’s other business. The disposal was
completed on 30th June 2017, on which date the
control of Nam Pei Hong operations ceased. Details of
the assets and liabilities disposed of and the calculation
of the loss on disposal of Ace Season, are disclosed in
note 44 to the financial statements.
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HE-ZT—)\+-A=1+—BI9FE For the year ended 31st December 2018

13.

BERIERERR (&

RZT—tF+ATH AEBITYEKHEE
EhaE Bt AEERELEMERREEA
A A2 & K B2 RICharming Era Investment
Limited ~ Exceptional Gain Profits Limited &
Most Famous Enterprises LimitedbA } 1% & &
BEZHEBAR (MBIHEEE]) 22HKRE
REhHEEEMERBEEER LREB
2,000,000,0008 L (TR FERELEE S TIAH
B)((WMEHHESEE]) HESEERMAKE
BERBERBEEES BEHHESEER
ZE-NF-AZBRK - MBEREYREL
EEBIUVBEFEDDBEABRILEEEER - 1
EEERGEEHREBBC Y EARELEEREY
RZE—+FF+Z A=+ —BZEREMBHRRE
HEBEI  HEAEREBENRBEEHES
B 2R F A B BRI SRR 44K -
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13.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(Continued)

On 10th October 2017, the Group entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement, in which
the Group agreed to sell and the purchaser agreed
to buy the entire equity interest in Charming Era
Investment Limited, Exceptional Gain Profits Limited
and Most Famous Enterprises Limited, wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, and their respective
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Disposal
Group”), and sale loans due by the Disposal Group
at total consideration of HK$2,000,000,000 (subject
to adjustment of actual working capital) (the “LKF
Disposal”). The Disposal Group is engaged in hotel
and gaming service operations in Macau. The LKF
Disposal has been completed on 3rd January 2018 and
the financial results for the hotel and gaming service
operations have been classified as discontinued
operation. The assets and liabilities attributable to the
Disposal Group have been classified as assets held for
sale and are presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31st December 2017.
Details of the assets and liabilities disposed of and
the calculation of the gain on disposal of the Disposal
Group, are disclosed in note 44 to the financial
statements.
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HE-_Z—)\E+-A=+—HI5EE For the year ended 31st December 2018

192

13. DRILEEERL (&

AEERBERILEEEBEFN, (BR) A

13.
(Continued)

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Profit/(loss) for the year from the discontinued

T operations are analysed as follows:
FEREBBIERIERERD Loss for the year from hotel and

TEEBZEE gaming service operations
SR E R SR RS Gain on disposal of hotel and

QT 2w (B iF44) gaming service operations (note 44)
FEREBMILITREEEDR Profit for the year from Nam Pei

2 Al Hong operations
HEMILITEEEK 2 ER Loss on disposal of Nam Pei Hong operations

(Htita4) (note 44)
FEREEHRILELEER Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued

2, (E1R)

operations

D2 LB AR AT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

BE-Z2—N\F BT —tF
—A—BZE —H—H=ZE
HEKBEARZ —E—+F
ElA=Eil - — A=+ —H
From
1st January
2018 to From
respective 1st January
date of 2017 to
Gl eI 31st December
subsidiaries 2017
THERT FAT
HK$°000 HK$'000
(6,376) (36,965)
1,465,231 -
- 869
- (599)
1,458,855 (36,695)
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HE-ZT—)\+-A=1+—BI9FE For the year ended 31st December 2018

13. DRILBEERE (&

AFEEERIEBEEB 2 FE (B ARAKRAR)

13.
(Continued)

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The result of the discontinued operations for the year,

which have been included in the consolidated income

mE
statement, were as follows:
L& Revenue
$HE A AN Cost of sales
EH Gross profit
HAth Uz R E A A Other revenue and other income
TEF Administrative expenses

MIGHEE - HEREITHAX

B &R

B 3 A B 1R
TS

HEBRIEEEEB2EF,
(BR)

FERADRUIELZEEKZ
#AL(ER)

MTALEEFERBDKL
e RN (BR)

AREEAR A

SRR R
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Marketing, selling and distribution expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs

Loss before tax
Income tax expense

Gain/(loss) on disposal of
discontinued operations

Profit/(loss) for the year from
discontinued operations

Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued
operations attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

B=Z—N\F BT —+t%F
—A—HBZE —H—H=ZE
HEM R AR Z —T—tF
=R - — A=+—H
From
1st January
2018 to From
respective 1st January
date of 2017 to
Gl e 31st December
subsidiaries 2017
THERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
3,957 715,494
(1,985) (403,056)
1,972 312,438
465 17,393
(8,561) (308,445)
(252) (57,405)
(6,376) (36,019)
- (65)
(6,376) (36,084)
- (12)
(6,376) (36,096)
1,465,231 (599)
1,458,855 (36,695)
1,458,855 (36,701)
- 6
1,458,855 (36,695)
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BN 1 B #Ht % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements
HE-_Z—)\E+-A=+—HI5EE For the year ended 31st December 2018

13. DRILEEERL (&

13.

ERIEREEK Discontinued operations
TG + e o Amortisation of interests in leasehold land
ZEE & R E MR Auditors’ remuneration and other services:
— &5 R — audit services
— IEEET RS - non-audit services

BEGFERA (FTAHEMZA) Cost of inventories sold

(included in cost of sales)

VxR RRETE

equipment
I 35 R F A
BEMEZREHEED
BB 17 E MR

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
EEEFAY (BEEEHH) Employee benefit expenses

(included directors’ remuneration)
HEWEE  WENREZHR  Gain on disposal of property, plant and

Net foreign exchange gain

Operating lease rental in respect of premises
Write-down of obsolete inventories

D2 LB AR AT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(Continued)

Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operations
has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

B=Z—N\F BT —+F
—HA—B=%E —HA—RZE
HEMBARZ —E—+tF
el - — R =+—H
From
IR ELTETY

2018 to From
respective 1st January
date of 2017 to

Gl eI 31st December
subsidiaries 2017
TERT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000

- 19,776

- 292

- 292

110 65,397

- 56,717

813 140,596
- (507)
(1) (1,132)

16 10,191

45 30
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HE-Z—)\E+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2018
13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

13. DRILEEERL (&

AFEEERIEBEEB RERENT

(Continued)

were as follows:

rmEEBEE (FA)
ZReFHE

REXBELEZRSFER

RMERHMA RS FE

BenA/ Orit) F#&#
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Cash flows of the discontinued operations for the year

B-2—N\E BT —tF
—HA—B= —HA—HB=%
HERBE AR Z T —tF
Elch=Eil - — A =1+—H

From

LR ELTETY
2018 to From
respective 1st January
date of 2017 to
Gl 31st December
subsidiaries 2017
TERT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000

Net cash generated from/(used in)

operating activities 34,719 (820,158)
Net cash generated from investing activities - 392,972
Net cash used in financing activities (966) (159,880)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) 33,753 (87,066)
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HE-_Z—)\E+-A=+—HI5EE For the year ended 31st December 2018

14. BRER (B1E) 14.

REFEKERCRIERER
ARRHBEAREFELERCRIELEE 2
BREAREERNTRIATEIEAE

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per
share from continuing and discontinued operations
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

—E-)\F —E—+F
PORE: 2017
FTExT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ZR Earnings
RARETEGRERNREEAT Earnings for the purpose of basic
ZEBM(RRBHEEB A and diluted earnings per share
FEAE FZ % A1) (profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company) 1,053,530 73,312
—TLtF
2017
F &
‘000
(&)
(restated)
RO EE Number of shares
BRAEGRERNREE Weighted average number of ordinary
Bz I A Em AR 8 B shares for the purpose of basic and
diluted earnings per share 1,674,902 951,765

BBAFATRRES 2 TERE - AR AT RRE
FWTFEBAEAERRRREMME 2R K
B E o Bt - AR EEL265,0008 T (ZF
—+ 4 : 265,000/ 7T) 2 A R AT ALFI AT AR B
£ EHE1,060,3170% (ZZF—+ % :1,060,3170%)
SREEOCOIE T ZARE BRI AARTES
BRERZF, (BE) 2 MEFHLRBRHE -

196 hEEEB A2 O CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Pursuant to the deed poll of the Bonus CBs, the
Bonus CBs conferred the holders with the same
economic interests attached to the shareholders of the
Company. Accordingly, 1,060,317 (2017: 1,060,317)
fully paid ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each which
shall be convertible from an aggregated amount
of approximately HK$265,000 (2017: HK$265,000)
outstanding Bonus CBs are included in the weighted
average number of ordinary shares for calculating the
basic earnings/(loss) per share.
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14.

BRERN(BR) (&

HE-Z—tF+- AT ALFERARHE
SREARBERFZ METHERRKEEH
—B—\ENAXN AR R BITH R
L

RNAREHARITEZBRESERERAN 2
ARAARBEYE HAHEEE-_T—tFR
—E-N\FEFT A=t BLFEEREERTN
B I MR R 1T LB EEE D -

REFERCEREER

ARRFEBEARERFBELERB BRERN RS
F(BR) BN TRAT 8BS

14.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
(Continued)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the year ended 31st December 2017 for the purposes
of calculating basic and diluted earnings per share
have been adjusted for the issue of new shares by way
of rights issue which took place on 6th August 2018.

As the Company’s outstanding share options where
applicable had an anti-dilutive effect to the basic
earnings per share calculation, the exercise of the
above potential dilutive shares is not assumed in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share for the years
ended 31st December 2017 and 2018.

From continuing operations

The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per
share from continuing operations attributable to owners
of the Company is based on the following data:

(EB8]) BF

AR ESRERNREE
(B8 BNz (BER)
B (KREHEA ARBIEFE
FEEEEBZ (BER)8H)

(Loss)/earnings
(Loss)/earnings for the purpose of basic
and diluted (loss)/earnings per share

the Company)

BLBR FTER AR 2 DN P19 B B B B XX PR At
ARBNFERBECERERIEEEEB Z2EBR
ERREERNMEREMRR -
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((loss)/profit for the year from continuing
operations attributable to owners of

—E-N\F —ELF
2018 2017
TERT FiET
HK$’000 HK$'000
(405,325) 110,013

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used herein are same as those detailed above for the
purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share from
continuing and discontinued operations respectively.
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14. BEREAN(EFE)(

15.

RECKEREER

ARAFEBEARECREREEBZERELRR
AR, (BB VRATHENE

14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(Continued)

From discontinued operations

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(loss)
per share from discontinued operations attributable to

owners of the Company is based on the following data:

BF (B8

ARG ESRERREERT,
(B1#8) z&8H/ (BE) (A2F
BEANREFEERILEE

g oad,/ (ER)

JLBR FTER A 2 DN P19 R AR B B B X EE At
ARBNFERBELERERIEEEEB 2 EBR
ERREERNMERERR -

BERBFMX

Earnings/(loss)

Earnings/(loss) for the purpose of
basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share (profit/(loss) for the year from
discontinued operations attributable
to owners of the Company)

—E-N\F
2018

Fi#T
HK$’000

1,458,855

—E—tF
2017
FET
HK$'000

(36,701)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used herein are same as those detailed above for the

purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share from

continuing and discontinued operations respectively.

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

FEREXER
B
—Exwe

—Fe MEAMER
—RIRAE R B R

o kEMmRRE
BERREEABRH X
ZFIBR X
RRAEFET B R
(TEREEEZRAREMN
BE )

B BRI

Continuing operations

Directors’ remuneration

— directors’ fee

— salaries and other allowances

— retirement benefits scheme contributions

Salaries and other allowances

Share-based payment expenses in respect
of employees

Retirement benefits scheme contributions
(excluded directors’ retirement benefits

scheme contributions)
Staff welfare expenses

198 hE R EB A2 O CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

—E-)N\F —F—+tF
PLRE:] 2017
FB T T T
HK$’000 HK$'000
360 360
15,827 10,891
36 36
16,223 11,287
25,202 28,621
16,505 -
687 735

123 146
58,740 40,789
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15. {EEE*U 5 3'2 (/f/éﬁ 15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Continued)

(a) EEWHS (a) Directors’ Emoluments
ARABEECHABH=ZR(ZE—tF: The Company’s board of directors is currently
SHR)BURTEEFR=F(ZF—+ composed of three (2017: three) independent
F=RB)PITESMHEK - non-executive directors and three (2017: three)

executive directors.

BHEEEER Continuing operations
e HeRHtRE BRIERIT LS 4%
Salaries Retirement
and other benefits scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
“E-\F e “E-\F e “E-N\%
2018 2017 2018 2018 2018
T TEL T i T T
3T Name of director HKS'000 [GLEIM HKS' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
g Executive directors
mEBLHE Mr. Heung Wah Keung
(T (‘Nr. Heung’) - - 7,340 4940 - - 7,340 4940
Bat Ms. Chen - - 7,080 4,680 18 18 7,098 4,698
ZIRNT Ms. Li Yuk Sheung - - 1,407 1,271 18 18 1,425 1,289
BukHnEs Independent non-executive
directors
HA2EE Mr. Hung Cho Sing 120 120 - - - - 120 120
feExE Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul 120 120 - - - - 120 120
BEMRE Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert 120 120 - - - - 120 120
360 360 15,827 10,891 36 36 16,223 11,287
TR LT 5 Discontinued operations
e HeREtRE BB RS 2
Salaries Retirement
and other henefits scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
ot SN — 5+ F ZE-tF B TR -1E Z5-1E
2018 2017 2017 2018 2017 2017
TEL e TR TEL e TR
BEHE Name of director IGO0 HKS'000 HK$'000 BLEHUIIE  HK$'000 HK$'000
HTES Executive directors
miE Mr. Heung - - - 960 - - - 960
Rat Ms. Chen - - - 960 - - - 960
EXY e Ms. Li Yuk Sheung - - - - - - - -
BUFHAES Independent non-executive
directors
HERRE Mr. Hung Cho Sing - - - - - - - -
fEsEE Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul - - - - - - - -
BEMLE Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert - - - - - - - -

- - - 1,920 - - 1,920
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15. EERFBEX (& 15.

(a) ESHMe(E)
HE-_Z-—-N\EER=-Z—tF+=A
ET-BUEFER AEEHBERESY
R & 1R I & B 3k 0 BB 2 52E) 3
REBUZHE - R EVMEFEHESE
EHEIRERETABE o

BEBRRMEOZERBEALRS
PR BEEIN  RERIFAEMER - &K
RAIRARBEMKER RS ESEITY
BRAKREXEMESTERLARNEERE
REZZHEMRZ S RHRAH -

200 hEEEBBRA A CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Continued)

(a)

Directors’ Emoluments (Continued)

During the year ended 31st December 2018 and
2017, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the directors waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments in both years.

Except for those disclosed in material related
party transactions in note 49 to the financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any subsidiaries of the
Company was a party and in which a director
had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

15. EERFBEX (& 15.

by ETEREFMAL
AEBAFEAAESTHZALTEE
ME(ZE—tF WEB)EF - AMec
R £ 3 (a)5 /R A14,438,0008 L (= F
—+ % 111,558,000 7t) BHERAEE
BREFBRERIEEEB G - F
NEMESB=FZ(ZT—EF =R)ZA
T(BRELEEBZEB) ZHa0T !

(Continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year include
two (2017: two) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in (a) above and amounted
to HK$14,438,000 (2017: HK$11,558,000),
including those from continuing operations
and discontinued operations. The emoluments
payable to the remaining three (2017: three)
individuals during the year which are employees
of the continuing operations were as follows:

BHEEEXER Continuing operations
—E-N\F —E—tF
PLORE: 2017
FBT FiET
HK$’000 HK$'000
o R EAMER, Salaries and other allowances 4,341 8,344
VARR 9 32 1+ 2 R I8 Bl 52 Share-based payment expenses 5,509 -

RURAE FIET S50 Retirement benefits scheme

contributions 54 54
9,904 8,398

ZR(ZE—+FZR)RSFMAT
BEME (ZF—tF: —R)R[EFK
SREBAERE| -HRBELSRER
AEB -

FA - BFESHFTHRET 2 &= T
EEREATEERBREAR N RIERE
HEERE THERE - BRESEEE
P T SRR BT 548 ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4E$R

The three (2017: three) individuals include two
(2017: one) senior management as disclosed
in the section “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management”.

During the year, certain share options were
granted to non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees, in respect of their
services to the Group under the share option
scheme of the Company. Details of the share
option scheme are set out in note 48 to the
financial statements.

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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15. EERFBEX (&

(b) ITEREFMAL(E)

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

HB =2 (-ZT—+F =Z2) 55 The aggregated emoluments of each of the
ATBuz e BEEENTATER : remaining three (2017: three) highest paid

individuals fell within the following bands:

1,500,001 7T &2,000,0007% 7T
2,000,001/ 7c £2,500,000/% 7T
3,000,001/ 7t £3,500,000/% 7T
4,000,001/ 7T £4,500,000/% 7T

AE

Number of individuals
—E-N\§F i
2018 2017
FExT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 - 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3 -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 - 1
3 3
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16. R IKIEFI 5+ &

(a)

AREERRE G DTS B 502 5 8
EROIAEMEEEARAZEER A
BeitE AEBERAREBEREHEEASMN
BELHE - AEERBRESEETMHK
HE NEEREESREBKBAZS%
B AKA LR REE 230,000
T MARELEREREBARNR -4
BB EAERASB  EES AR
B UTHBUEEESHE -

AEEZMBRARAERMIERZAER
BB R EEHEHRGE - EEENEETS
HEBEYEBRARRINER AEEAKE
BRZTEELERAMRNK - HRARNELE
BR&EAKRARATIX -

ARBEZMBRANTEMEFERE AT
BT P& o 3 BB R B IR 2 RIRAE AT
KB ZEMBRARARFMEZE
T B D AR KGR B - AR5
FRBG S RINENBIFAE—&
Mm% EFBELAFE K - HARTDR
EEBRNGEERARAIIX -
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16.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(a)

The Group operates the MPF Scheme under
rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all its employees in
Hong Kong. All employees of the Group in Hong
Kong are required to join the MPF Scheme.
The Group has chosen to follow the minimum
statutory contribution requirement of 5% of
eligible employees’ monthly relevant income but
limited to the mandatory cap of HK$30,000. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated
income statements as incurred. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administrative
fund.

The Group’s subsidiaries operate a defined
contribution scheme for eligible employees in
Macau. The defined contribution scheme is
established and managed by an independent
management company. Both the Group and
the employees make equal share of monthly
contributions to the scheme. The contributions
are charged to the consolidated income
statement as incurred.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in the
PRC are members of state-managed retirement
benefit schemes operated by the government of
the PRC. The subsidiary is required to contribute
a specific percentage of payroll costs to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits schemes operated
by the government of the PRC is made the
specified contributions under the schemes. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated
income statement as incurred.

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HENE B
BF R  HBERRE AE X
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles Total
FEL FET FAT FEL TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
KA Cost
RZE—+%—-A—H At 1st January 2017 297,870 317,228 334,327 17,781 967,206
NE Additions - 1,368 8,466 1,505 11,339
L& Disposals - (56) (5,096) (2,244) (7,396)
HENBRE (fit44) Disposal of subsidiaries
(note 44) - (3,693) (2,486) - (6,179)
EFPEENEABELE  Reclassified to assets classified
ZBEWE36) as held for sale (note 36) (285,590) (308,374) (326,357) (3,977) (924,298)
W-Z—+%+-A=1+—H At 31st December 2017 and
ER=ZE-\E—A—H at 1st January 2018 12,280 6,473 8,854 13,065 40,672
NE Additions - - 429 1,920 2,349
HE Disposals - - (694) (1,444) (2,138)
HENB LA (Hi244) Disposal of subsidiaries
(note 44) - - - (8,123) (3,123
BEREMEHE19) Transfer from investment
properties (note 19) 82,400 - - - 82,400
RZE-\F+ZA=+—H At 31st December 2018 94,680 6,473 8,589 10,418 120,160
RifHE Accumulated depreciation
RZE—+t5—-A—8 At 1st January 2017 84,106 289,448 221,632 10,163 605,349
ERHE Charge for the year 5,897 27,334 23,877 2,706 59,814
HERHH Eliminated on disposals - (56) (5,076) (1,907) (7,039)
L B 8 A1 B ) 4 Eliminated upon disposal of
(Hiit44) subsidiaries (note 44) - (3,090) (1,380) - (4,470)
ENPBENBEAFIELE  Reclassified to assets classified
ZEE(}i36) as held for sale (note 36) (83,165) (308,013) (231,361) (2,633) (625,172)
W-Z—+t%+-A=1+—H At 31st December 2017 and
kRZZ-\5—R—H at 1st January 2018 6,838 5,623 7,692 8,329 28,482
FRTE Charge for the year 1,526 252 463 2,052 4,293
ERRAESE Impairment loss recognised 3,601 - - - 3,601
HERHE Eliminated on disposals - - (692) (1,444) (2,136)
B A IR 8 8 (75744)  Eliminated upon disposal of
subsidiaries (note 44) - - - (2,688) (2,688)
WZE-A\F+=A=+—H At 31st December 2018 11,965 5,875 7,463 6,249 31,552
REE Carrying amounts
RZZ-NE+=ZF=1+—H At31st December 2018 82,715 598 1,126 4,169 88,608
WZZE—+F+ZA=1+—H At 31st December 2017 5,442 850 1,162 4,736 12,190

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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17.
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M MEBRRRE(E 17.
RZB-NF+-_A=1+—H EE2ZTHBY
REREXGHEMITRNEEBRBRARET
ZEEHARERT  ARESBETEN A

15 i w2 3L 18 T 7 22 RL 1B 85 18 493,601,000/8
TLoHABEBEIEANSZ BT LB E

ZEE WEREMK -

R-ZE—+tF+_AZ+—HB HKHEHEY
202,425,000 T2 EFERIFED K IELEE
BRE—RBITEEEIER AR _T—+4F
TZA=T—HEETHDEENBEARIELEZ

RZZE—+tF+ZA=+—8 GH KEERZ
BeEAEREEERBERAMANREZEE
B @ FAI353,0008 L HR T —tF+=A
=T HEENSHEZEIEARELECEE -

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

At 31st December 2018, the directors conducted
a review of the recoverable amount of the Group’s
buildings with reference to valuation performed by JP
Assets Consultancy Limited, a firm of independent
qualified professional valuers, and concluded that
impairment loss of approximately HK$3,601,000
has been recognised in respect of buildings. The
impairment loss recognised mainly due to the lower
of market value by reference to recent sales price of
comparable properties.

At 31st December 2017, buildings with carrying
amounts of approximately HK$202,425,000 have been
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted
to the discontinued operations which was reclassified
to assets classified as held for sale at 31st December
2017.

At 31st December 2017, the carrying amounts of
furniture, fixtures and equipment includes an amount
of approximately HK$353,000 in respect of assets held
under finance leases which was reclassified to assets
classified as held for sale at 31st December 2017.

EXFIREFERERE The carrying amounts of buildings shown above
comprise:

—EB-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000

UREBZETF Buildings located in Hong Kong:
— R EARE A - Medium-term lease 5,015 5,442
—RHEMEL - Long-term lease 77,700 -
82,715 5,442

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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18. *ﬂ%iiﬂ_’,%é 18. INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND
—E-N\F —E—+F
PLRE:] 2017
FHET FAET
HK$°000 HK$'000
A Cost
n—HA—H At 1st January 69,660 590,385
ENOBENBEABELEZ Reclassified to assets classified as
BE(WiE36) held for sale (note 36) - (520,725)
R+=—ZA=+—8~ At 31st December 69,660 69,660
-5 £ Accumulated amortisation
R—HA—H At 1st January 14,378 195,088
NEFEFTETIRE Amortisation provided for the year 1,873 21,649
EMOEENEARBELE Reclassified to assets classified as
ZEE(Kit36) held for sale (note 36) - (202,359)
R+ZA=+—8H At 31st December 16,251 14,378
REE Carrying amounts
Rt+=—A=+—H At 31st December 53,409 55,282

EXRRRHEL RS REERE

The carrying amounts of interests in leasehold land

shown above comprise:

—E-N\&
2018

FTERT
HK$°000

REPEBBORE ZUREE Leasehold land located in Hong Kong,
R E L held on medium-term lease 53,409

RZE—+tF+_A=Z+—H EKHAABEY
318,366,000/ T2 HE L Em B M BIER &
IHEEEBME—RIBITEEEIER  ERXZ
Z—+tH+ A=+ HEEFIEENEAR
EHEZBE -

206 hEEEBBRA A CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

—E—LtF
2017
FHBTT
HK$'000

55,282

At 31st December 2017, interests in leasehold land with
carrying amounts of approximately HK$318,366,000
have been pledged to secure general banking facilities

granted to the discontinued operations which was

reclassified to assets classified as held for sale at 31st

December 2017.
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REWZE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

—EB-N\F —T—tF
2018 2017
FTHET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Bn—A— At 1st January 81,100 82,620
tH%MTE/A R (Htita4) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 44) - (5,640)
NYEEEHEE Gain arising on change in fair value 1,300 4,120
BT E  WERRE(HFE17)  Transfer to property, plant and equipment
(note 17) (82,400) -
R+ZA=+—8 At 31st December - 81,100
—E-N\F —E—LF
2018 2017
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FFAGZEWMARZIEE Unrealised gain on fair value change of
MEANFEEEGSHZ investment properties included
R F in the consolidated income statement
(FFAEMEERS) (included in other operating expenses) 1,300 4,120

RZZ-\FHA=+H —EREVEBKE
N {E{E82,400,0008 T BB =YX - B LK
B ZAFEENSEBUAEKBEEGEMT
RIEERMARDBNER A HETZHE -

AEBEREBEEROBANRBES L ERER
REzMERSDRARATEERAFE  IH
BEARRBREWE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4E$R

On 30th April 2018, an investment property was
transferred to property, plant and equipment at its
fair value of HK$82,400,000, which was reference to
valuation performed by JP Assets Consultancy Limited,
a firm of independent qualified professional valuers, as
at the date of transfer.

The Group’s properties interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purpose are measured using the fair value model
and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

19. REWME (&

EXFRREBREMEZREERSR

19.

The carrying amounts of investment properties shown

above comprises:

RBRBEOMBALNEE

ESg=E7ES

in Hong Kong held on long-term lease -

20. BEVE 2 AT EEFE

(a) ALDFEEER
TREJAEEREVERREHRRE

B

RABTRBBR=ESRLFEE

BR (ERRBEAUBMEEAEIIRL
FEE;E)NRTEE R FEEFE
DR ERRBEHERNARBE AR
BzRUBREEREEMMmMETNT

208

—EREE: ATEEERA
—ERBABEE DRE
ERHEREELXBERNERMS
ZREABERE

W

E_ERHE-AFEERAS
—ERBARE (ARTESE—F
MM EREARIE) 5 ERTME

BEOARBATAESMEH
BzBARE &

F-ERHBEATVTEEERAR
ETAEEBAREBIE -

20.

Investment properties located

—E-N\F =
2018 2017
TET FiET

HK$’000 HK$'000
81,100

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(a)

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s investment properties measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified and determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

° Level 1 valuations: fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 valuations: fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available; and

. Level 3 valuations: fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.
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20. REWMEZAFEEFE(E) 20

(@)

(b)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

AFEEER(E) (a)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
E—FR BEH F=%Y et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FAT FAT FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-T—+%F At 31st December 2017
+t=ZA=+—A8
AR EE > N (EE Fair value on a recurring basis
URBREZLEYE Investment properties located
in Hong Kong - 81,100 - 81,100

AREZBRAERNEREHE S X
BRAEBPHLAZANATEEERABE
B-HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HBRZ
E—tHE+_A=+—RHLFEAN AE
EE-SRRF_SHMETER XHE
ASBHE=FHK -

AREZRENEREREPROABL
REREXHEMTREFEEERARA
A(EETAGERAEMBEGEERZE
1% HEREENEMECERAMBERA
BOHMABZEELR) ETEHRMEE-
REBREMKR  ARBERECHNETT
MEFARAGERRIIGAEERZIE
BT RS

BEMEZRATEER  NE2&D LK
EREREBRRMAE -

E-ERQTEEFERRAZEERN
R@ABE

REMEZ X FEEDRATSLEEE
o AMAAFASTZEEBE2ZTLRY
ROMHEBRESY T RREBZELES

st
B o
T
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(b)

The Group’s policy is to reorganise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at
the end of the date of the events or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer. During
the year ended 31st December 2018 and
31st December 2017, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued
at the end of each reporting period by JP Assets
Consultancy Limited, a firm of independent
qualified professional valuers, who have among
their staff member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors with recent experience in the location
and category of property being valued. The
management of the Company have discussion
with the surveyors on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at the end of each reporting period.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties are their
current use.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level
2 fair value measurements

The fair value of investment properties is
determined using the market comparison
approach by reference to recent sales price of
comparable properties on a price per square
foot basis using market data which is publicly
available.

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

21, JHHEESRHEE 21.

ASSETS
—T—+F
2017
FAET
HK$'000
FETEEES Unlisted debt security
—REBZEMES — Club debenture in Hong Kong 173

AR —Z—-N\F-A—-HEREEVBRSEL
FOR AEBEECKEMAHRLESREEEN
DERBEBBENRNFEEINRZEREE -

I LTREBEFDRRBERRZKARRE
dE ARAEAFEEMGBIABERKN HEZS
RRERFEETEAEMHEFTE -

R-B—tF+-_A=+—H EE5|BHEAD
BLALBEERBYR/REKANR R AT
[ HBE-FT-—tF+T_A=t—RBLFER
BB RERRE -

210 hEREEBBRAa CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Upon application of HKFRS 9 on 1st January 2018,
the Group has reclassified all AFS financial assets to
financial assets at FVTPL.

The unlisted debt security measured at cost less
impairment at the end of reporting period because
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directors are of the opinion that the
fair value cannot be measured reliably.

At 31st December 2017, the directors had referenced to
comparable sales evidence as available in the relevant
market and considered that the cost of investment are
still considered to be recoverable, thus no impairment
loss was made during the year ended 31st December
2017.
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292. ﬁ% 22. GOODWILL
R A Cost
Hn—HA—H At 1st January
ENOBENEARBELE Reclassified to assets classified as held
ZEE for sale
®R+=—A=+—8 At 31st December
At REESE Accumulated impairment losses
n—HA—H At 1st January
ENOBENERBIELE Reclassified to assets classified as held
ZEE for sale
R+=-—A=+—8 At 31st December
BREE Carrying amounts
R+-—A=+—H At 31st December

EXAEERBYRBEREEBIHEIN-F
—tF+ A=+ -REFDBEDERFIEDL

EZBE-

AR ER R

REZRREEERN  7EEReELENEAZ

HEERmAENT :

—EB-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
FERT FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
108,703 109,614

- (911)

108,703 108,703
108,703 109,614

- (911)

108,703 108,703

for sale at 31st December 2017.

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill generated from hotel and gaming service
operations has reclassified to assets classified as held

Before recognition of impairment losses, the carrying

amounts of goodwill were allocated to groups of CGUs

as follows:

EXHBAEBRRERD

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4E$R

Film related business operations

—E-N\F

2018

FTERT
HK$°000

108,703

2017
THET
HK$'000

108,703

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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23. B EE

23. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

R-ZE—tF+=-A=+-—H
ER=ZZ—NE+=A
=+-H

HRHEHRBERIER T ERFH

AR
R HE

R-E—+EXNA=Z1+E AEEBHLEKE R
EE R ITEE E 5 2 Ace Seasont) 2 SBI% A#E

Ny
o

Bl

At 31st December 2017 and
at 31st December 2018

amortisation:

THETE

3.5%F Exclusive distribution right

(5L BRHE Bt
Exclusive
distribution
Trademark right Total
FHET FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
5% Cost
RZE—tF—H—H At 1st January 2017 12,483 2,021 14,504
HEHB AR (M iF44) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 44) (12,483) (2,021) (14,504)
RZZE—+F+ZA=+—H At31st December 2017,
RZZE—-—N\EF—A—BRK at 1st January 2018 and
RZZT—N\F+=ZA at 31st December 2018
=+—H - - -
BtBERRESE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses
RZE—tF—H—H At 1st January 2017 4,901 2,021 6,922
k= =BT Eliminated upon disposal of
(Htztaq) subsidiaries (note 44) (4,901) (2,021) (6,922)
RZT—tF+ZHA=+—H" At31st December 2017,
RZE-NF—A—8K at 1st January 2018 and
RZZT—N\F+=A at 31st December 2018
=+—H - - -
BRMEE Carrying amounts

Trademark

Group’s Nam Pei Hong operations.

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

The following useful lives are used in the calculation of

Indefinite
3.5 years

On 30th June 2017, the Group had disposed the entire
equity interest in Ace Season, which carried out the

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4F§R



24.

4 ¥t # B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements
HE-ZT—)\+-A=1+—BI9FE For the year ended 31st December 2018

24, REF-BESZER

LOAN TO A DIRECTOR

—EB-N\F —T—tF

PLORE: 2017

TR FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

m—HR—H At 1st January 293,371 -
TR ERE R 2 R MH Loan portion advanced at initial recognition - 271,908
HER BUA Imputed interest income 59,532 39,955
B U 5% pE R B Interest received and receivables (25,000) (18,492)
R+=—A=+—AH At 31st December 327,903 293,371

RZT—A"F+—AZ+NH KAAFZ2E&EN
J&B 2 A]Best Combo Limited ([Best Combo] * £
REFN) BRELLT (EREBRAN)FILER R
(TEFiH#]) - E it - Best ComboB A & [ &
LI —% A4 % A500,000,0007 7T (5 T E
REBEELHAR) 2EHER(ER] - EFRIR
FHESEFE - EARERZIREA B 51601E
AERzBESR RURZT2EREZRRE
BZ BB AR 2 A RIReform Base? #f i %
TRARG MR IERER -

MRzt R iR B BEEEERCGERAFE)M
% S50 A AIBest ComboZs A A+ {E &
E¥ENELEEAN -

HE_Z-—\GFR_F—+tF+ZR=+—
AEFER MAEBETALEEZEREHEA
500,000,000/% 7T ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4E$R

On 29th November 2016, Best Combo Limited (“Best
Combo”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as a lender, and Ms. Chen, as a borrower, entered into
a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) pursuant
to which Best Combo has agreed to grant a fixed
term loan (the “Loan”) to Ms. Chen in the principal
amount of HK$500,000,000 (subject to the loan amount
adjustment). The Loan is interest bearing at 5% per
annum, repayable on the date falling 60 months from
the drawdown date of the Loan and secured by way
of a share charge over the entire issued share capital
of Reform Base, a company incorporated in BVI and
wholly owned by Ms. Chen.

Ms. Chen can repay the Loan (together with accrued
interest) in full after the date of drawdown without
penalty provided not less than ten business days’ prior
written notice has been given to Best Combo.

During the year ended 31st December 2018 and 2017,
the maximum amount outstanding to the Group is
HK$500,000,000.

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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BHE—T

24, RUTF—BES2ER (&)

RIEERHE M2 EREZM Best Combo #
LRERRE ([REA#]) - 2 #Best Combor
B RIRE A R E601E A 2 2 T BN E KR 2
=+ £A500,000,000% 7T (47 F* & 5 & #8 1F 3 2)
i & Reform Base2 Z0 2 # /TR AN o

24.

R-_ZE—+FWANE NEZ fEEXE BRE

BUBEHEMTEECEBRERARETL
HEMSHHATER EEHER mf’n‘&w
BHEIRE A 2 € 5 9 Bl 4 73271,908,0007% Tt &
228,092,000 T Rt T —REFEZEHRER
R ERNER20.76% °

25. 25.

—N\E+ZA=+—HI-EE For the year ended 31st December 2018

LOAN TO A DIRECTOR (Continued)
Ms. Chen has
agreed to grant the call option (the “Call Option”) to

Pursuant to the Loan Agreement,

Best Combo which allows Best Combo to require Ms.
Chen to sell the entire issued share capital of Reform
Base at HK$500,000,000 (subject to the loan amount
adjustment) during the exercise period falling on the
expiry of 60 months from the drawdown date of the
Loan.

On 6th April 2017, the drawdown date of the Loan, the
directors has recognised the amounts of approximately
HK$271,908,000 and HK$228,092,000 for the loan
portion and the call option portion respectively by
reference to the fair value arrived on the basis of
valuation performed by Graval Consulting Limited, a
firm of independent qualified professional valuers. The
effective interest rate of loan to a director on initial
recognition is 20.76%.

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

—E-N\F —E—+tF
PORE: 2017
FTExT FH&TT
HK$’000 HK$’000

A—HEELEZREKA Cost of investment in a joint venture,
WEE - FLED unlisted in Hong Kong - _

EE—EeaELEWER Share of post-acquisition profit and other
R EH A2 EA comprehensive income in a joint venture,

MR EWARE net of dividend received 270 384
270 384
SECEEMCERIFLTOEMEE  HEERE The Group’s joint venture is unlisted corporate entity

BEMISRHRE -

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

which quoted market prices are not available.
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25. )‘J"\Q— Fﬁéﬁﬁ* Z*Eﬁ (/ﬁgg 25. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
(Continued)
KEBAEPERRER R ZFBEHINMOT - Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of the

reporting period are set out below:

rEEFREHER
RELEER BEREYY EMAYHE  HAERGHER PEEY Faidl] TEEH
Form of Proportion of ownership
Business Place of Class of interest and voting power
Name of joint venture structure incorporation  shares held held by the Group Principal activities
ZB-N\fE CE+F
2018 2017
% %
RE s AL BE LaER 50 50 REZBAEERBER
Sparkle Star Incorporated  Hong Kong Ordinary SUET G EER
Provision of artist
management
services and
production of
television drama
series
ZABPEDNEAER IR EMBERRAALE - The joint venture is accounted for using the equity

BRFEAZEELEZASER

method in these financial statements.

Aggregate information of a joint venture that is not
individually material

—EB-N\F —T—tF
2018 2017
TExT TR

HK$’000 HK$'000

AEBEEFE (BE) 8T R
2 (BB A eE

AEER-—HRELERAEY
fREfE

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4E$R

The Group’s share of (loss)/profit and
total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year (114) 223

Carrying amount of the Group’s
interest in a joint venture 270 384

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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26. Y¥FE 26. STOCK OF PROPERTIES

—EB-N\F —T—tF
2018 2017
T TR

HK$°000 HK$'000

BEHEZRRTYE Properties under development held
for sales
R—H—H At 1st January 2,107,376 583,240
NE Additions 401,192 136,051
FERWEMNE QA Acquisition of assets through acquisition
BEEE (Wi#43) of subsidiaries (note 43) - 1,388,085
R+=—A=+—8 At 31st December 2,508,568 2,107,376

WMEFEMMRMYLRESHELOFE -

REHEZERTOEEHNBR —FREMD -

RZE-—NF+_A=+—8B FRLEHE—
MRTER ASEZNEFEEEEY
1,113,595,0008 L (ZF —+F : &) « Wk L H
PRz TR E 2 A BRRR AR AR E 2 A RIER -
B —BHE 1 {E A & LUEUS £491,600,000,0007%
T2 A B ARITERE -

R-FB—=F1A RFEHTERERBA (HEF
BT B # L0k ([ %)) YR -F
—WE=ZRER - HLMERTE - RFABFEE
RKRENREINRAMEMRTRZDEERRR
S HRBEE D LR R AT DI GR ¢ By L T A
FYEREEAETMEEE -

216 hEEEBBRAa CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

The stock of properties is located in Macau and held
under medium-term leases.

Properties under development held for sales are
expected to be recovered after more than one year.

At 31st December 2018, the Group’s stock of
properties with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$1,113,595,000 (2017: nil), personal guarantee
provided by Mr. Heung and Ms. Chen and corporate
guarantee provided by the Company together as
securities, have been pledged to obtain the available
banking facilities with the amounts of approximately
HK$1,600,000,000 which liaised with a bank during the
year.

In September 2013, the government of Macau Special
Administrative Region (the “Macau Government”)
promulgated the Macau New Land Law (the “MNLL”")
which came into effect in March 2014. The MNLL
provides that the Macau Government will have the right
to resume the land of any property development that is
not completed and/or where the conditions as stated in
the land concession for which have not been fulfilled by
the stipulated expiry date without any compensation to
the property owner.
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26.

—N\F+-RA=

MEEFE (E)

F AR PR T JE R BE A R SN B R B [ 526Bit
B ([E6BHER ) 2 MEMERE TR RTA -
EHFBH R T FABERMAPI RN EMSA
el 3t 7 7T TAE - 6B A —AEFRIEB
BmmEmE s —  mEeBBREERE A/
KEHE - AEBER T —AFTA=1H
FURFIRFERR RIBE E5F - RZT—NFERX
A+—8 AEBWIRPIBUN & E LR B A
ZZE-N\ERANBHRME - EPEREERKE
B EFRE R - Bt - FeBHER K BRMIBAT
WE - REARD EHX’E'E’JE?&:‘,% CAREBEASR
NEERASERARSEZ 2 BESRKEE  mE
i ERLERAMAEZS  SIFRMBRTERZ
TR B AEBESRKEBMERERRZE
BER UEERATENRLELAFZ - RNZF
—N\F+ZA=+—8 AEBEHEEERRFH
HBESkRERBO AN  EREEETEM
TER AN EEERBERTHESE -

EXE2EFUABRIRMEMTE K FE#E
HORF) ERARMEFEEERARAFME

THEMFEERTMEZATZEFE UnE
HAERFESNEARAE URRELEHRHE
R A ) 5 2 R T B AR R
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+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2018
26.

STOCK OF PROPERTIES (Continued)

Owing to the delays caused by the Macau Government
in granting the requisite approvals and permits for
the development of the property located in Lot 6B at
Zona de Aterros do Porto Exterior (ZAPE) (“Lot 6B”),
Lot 6B could not commence development and the
Macau Government has started the administrative work
to reclaim it. Lot 6B is one of the four lots of land in a
project held under development and Lot 6B is intended
to be developed as recreational area. The Group
has filed an appeal to the president of the Macau
Second Instance Court on 30th December 2016. On
11th June 2018, the Group received a letter dated 8th
June 2018 from the Tribunal de Ultima Instancia of the
Macau Government, in which the Tribunal de Ultima
Instancia rejected the application of the final appeal.
Accordingly, Lot 6B will be reclaimed by the Macau
Government. According to the legal opinion obtained
by the Company, the Group has strong legal ground
to seek compensation for damages sustained by the
Group as a result and the Court will consider and rule
taking into account all the essential points including
delays caused by the Macau Government. As such,
the Group has seek legal advice from its Macau legal
representative and consider to make an application
in this regard if necessary. At 31st December 2018,
the Group is still considering the possibility of seeking
civil claims against the Macau Government and have
to assess its damages in this situation before it can
proceed with any actions.

The directors had assessed the net realisable value
of the properties under development with reference to
valuations performed by Savills (Macau) Limited and
JP Assets Consultancy Limited, firms of independent
qualified professional valuers, and concluded that no
write-down of carrying amounts of the properties under
development are considered necessary as the net
realisable value are greater than the carrying amounts.

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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27. EFHE

27. FILM RIGHTS

—E-)N\fF —F—+F
2018 2017
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
2% Cost
R—A—BE®R+=ZB=+—H At st January and at 31st December 758,178 758,178
ZitBHRREEE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses
n—H—H At 1st January 746,129 736,732
RFE TR IR 8 Amortisation provided for the year - 8,373
ERZBEEE Impairment loss recognised 571 1,024
R+—-—A=+—8H At 31st December 746,700 746,129
IREE Carrying amounts
R+—-—A=+—H At 31st December 11,478 12,049
BEYMEZRENR Impairment testing of film rights
BBENANE  EXHRECHREEFHEBL For the purpose of impairment testing, film rights have

ERBREELEM -

been allocated to the CGU of film related business

operations.

RZZE—\F+-A=+—H EFCLEBY
EERBEEMHEMITETEERNARRRET
ZEE FIHEEREZRSEEEM 2 AIRE
SR WETFEEZRERELS71,0008T(ZF
—4F 11,024,000 7T) °

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

At 31st December 2018, the directors assessed the
recoverable amount of the CGU of film rights with
reference to the valuation performed by JP Assets
Consultancy Limited, a firm of independent qualified
professional valuers, and determined that film rights
was impaired by approximately HK$571,000 (2017:
HK$1,024,000).
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FILM RIGHTS (Continued)

Impairment testing of film rights (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGU of film rights has

—)\E+=—A=+—BIFE For the year ended 31st December 2018
E=7 mi*g (/IE, 27.
FREZHENH(E)
BB REESEM 2 AIREEEDRIER
REEAEEEE  ZAEEERKERELE

CHEHYRBEAEEZRESREN  URE
F17% (ZF—LF 17%) 2R RFE > A F
UNEzBeRRMEFENERASEREKE
ZMRERTEBHEEEXTHORBIERE - F
RAEBENEEZZEERFHBRETEA L E5
B DREEHEERENX EBRERNER

ZEFTAKBERATKBRREEERTEER
ZTEE -

FABERZAEBEEEAEE EYHBE
BREEBER BRZRSELBUBHIRE
HA el & 8411,478,0008 0 (Z T —tF:
12,049,000/ 7T) * MErHE AW E € AR A 2
B2 EATFIE 5| B — P REFIE -
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been determined based on a value in use calculation
which uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period and discount rate of 17% (2017: 17%) per
annum and cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using zero growth rate for both years. This
growth rate does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry. Key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation
of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales
and gross margin, growth rate and discount rate,
such estimation is based on past experience and
management’s expectations of the market development.

The impairment loss recognised during the year
solely relates to the Group’s film related business
operations. As the CGU has been reduced to its
recoverable amount of approximately HK$11,478,000
(2017: HK$12,049,000),
assumptions used in the calculation of the recoverable

any adverse change in the

amount would result in further impairment losses.

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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BHE—T

—N\E+ZA=+—HI-EE For the year ended 31st December 2018

28. WEFEL 28.

FILMS IN PROGRESS

n—HA—H At 1st January
NE Additions
R+=—A=+—H At 31st December

SERBERARKNB R REBE(WE)FE -

—EB-N\F —T—tF
2018 2017
T TR
HK$°000 HK$'000
168,992 81,461
32,013 87,531
201,005 168,992

The films in progress were measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

29. EXRE 29. INVESTMENT IN FILM
—E-N\F T4

PORE: 2017

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

B RMERE Investment in film production 29,939 -

%%%WZ&ﬁEE@H%%?%#@ﬁZ%
CAARENAREEY B ERREARHE
E°&§x$%lﬁ%¢@ﬂﬂi%ﬁ@%%ﬁ
B BUASESZHMAERRITME ﬂ“°
NEBEREAREREAHAERRETNE
W FRWBEENBERE  Z2BHhAERIE
DR R R

TEBZEZREDAAREIIE -

220 thEREEBBRAa CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Investment in film production represents fund advanced
to licensed production house for co-financing the
production of film, which is freely exploited by the
production house. The investment is governed by the
relevant investment agreement entered into between the
Group and the production house whereby the Group
is entitled to benefits generated from the distribution
of the related film. The amount will be recoverable
by the Group from a pre-determined share of the net
distribution revenue of the respective co-financed
film to be provided and confirmed by the relevant
production house.

The Group’s investment in film is denominated in RMB.
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HE-Z—)\E+-A=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December 2018
30. ﬁ% @LI&;E\E:‘-‘% 30. TRADE RECEIVABLES
—B-N\fF —E—tF
PORE: 2017
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
2 5 AR Trade receivables 1,201 4,435
B EEBEEE Less: Allowance for credit losses (1,201) (1,336)
- 3,099

NTAREEZAH (RS ARKERER R NREE)
252 BFRERFREEBBREE RO -

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables,
presented based on the invoice dates, which
approximates the respective revenue recognition dates
and net of allowance for credit losses:

0&30H 0 to 30 days

31£260H 31 to 60 days
61290H 61 to 90 days
HBiB0H Over 90 days

BTEFZFAREHNTI0REWANTE -

RIZB—tHF+-A=1—H BEZERUERS
# 43,068,000 T VAARB ZMERAEP
BER

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4E$R

—E-N\E —E—+tF
2018 2017
FExT FH&T
HK$°000 HK$'000
- 2,758

- 341

- 3,099

The average credit period granted to customers ranges
from 30 to 90 days.

At 31st December 2017, trade receivables with the

amounts of approximately HK$3,068,000 is due from
the Group’s top two customers.

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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FAEMEZRIESNEEERERBRZHOT

30.

HE-FT—)\F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2018

30. ESEWERRR (&

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movement in the allowance for credit loss in
respect of trade receivables during the year is as

follows:
—2-N\F —TtF
2018 2017
FHERT T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
wn—A—H At 1st January 1,336 1,437
AR Reversal of impairment (120) (135)
i & BB A A Disposal of subsidiaries - (11)
SNEETE N Ca F)) /518 Foreign exchange translation (gain)/loss (15) 45
R+-—_A=+—H At 31st December 1,201 1,336

RIZFEE R ER|FEGRZ L KEH
EXFEBEZEFRUEREERNRERRE B
Hlzef HEAKEYERMEIRERE T
MREGEERTEEALZY MAFLRNK
BRAETKRE - REBY B ZEEHTATAE
o

NTREBHERREZESEUER KRN
#r

Comparative information under HKAS 39

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts
which are past due at the end of the reporting period
for which the Group has not recognised an allowance
for doubtful debts because there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are
still considered recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables
which are past due but not impaired:

—F—tF
2017
FET
HK$'000

##3B90H

EETEZRUER 2T REER EEERE
SRUEERZ EEZGANSRLAPEERE
R EME -

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Over 90 days 341

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable,
the directors consider any change in the credit quality
of the trade receivable from the date credit was initially
granted up to the end of the reporting period.
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31.

32.

%%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁ&@%ﬁm-

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENT AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

[EENEFER Deposits paid
TEfT KIE Prepayment
Hh fE W RIE Other receivables

W_Z—NF+-_A=+—H EtEKZELY
12,880,000 T RN FETEBEEAS ©

EREZULNFEEIKRZ 32
TWMEE

—E-)N\F —F—+F
2018 2017

F# T Fi T
HK$’000 HK$'000
181,072 6,183
6,039 4,532
264,715 279,266
451,826 289,981

At 31st December 2018, other receivables with amounts
of approximately HK$12,880,000 was advanced to
certain key management personnel.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

—E-N\E ZZE—+F
PLORE: 2017
FTHExT F#&IT
HK$’000 HK$’000
DERFIEFEEREY Listed securities classified as held for trading
EmES investments:
—REB LT ZRAES — Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 234,029 511,872
JELMIRA : Unlisted investment:
~REBZIELEMEHES - Unlisted club debenture in Hong Kong 80 -
TESmI A : Derivative financial instruments:
— M F—REEZEFRA - Call option embedded in loan to a director
P 2 REE B 219,372 213,944
453,481 725,816
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32. ZEBHRUNFEEIIKZ

TREE (&

=B —/\E— 7 — B A E SR
Fo¥  AEEE NI LD EAES S THLE
SRAREH S AAEBARULT HESIEY
SREE-

N

RBEMR MEEBREGNDFEEIKRZS
BMEEOURAFEEIR DEAREERERE
ZEMEHF(EEREEBRELMERKIN 2RF
BEDZERBzMSRMEMEE °

RZZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H8 EEFEEFHL
MEH 7 A FEELS,549,0008 L (ZF—+F -
3,635,000 7T) &L Z B S EREEGERM
TEECEBRARATETZEERSL - »
ZE-NF+ZA=F+—H ZEEFEEALEL
MEHZ AT EEDRAMSEENIRET8.01%
ZE—LF 84.61%) EITMHE  FRAZINIRE
EERMBEAWEEEEMERES Y ENRN
ZTG2REMBRBERACEER ROTRBE
M K B BUER ) S R B A o

RZB-NFE+-_A=1+—H FLWEMEH
ZAFBEXB0,000BT(ZE—+L5F: £)H2
ZEBON AL EE E NI E BT R R
BEBE UNSEREREME -

32.

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
Upon application of HKFRS 9 on 1st January 2018, the
Group has reclassified unlisted club debenture from
AFS financial assets to financial assets at FVTPL.

At the end of the reporting period, all financial assets
at FVTPL are stated at fair values. Fair values of listed
securities classified as held for trading investments
(other than suspended trading security listed in Hong
Kong) are determined with reference to quoted market
closing prices.

At 31st December 2018, the fair value of suspended
trading security listed in Hong Kong with the amount
of approximately HK$3,549,000 (2017: HK$3,635,000)
was reference to valuation performed by Graval
Consulting Limited, a firm of independent qualified
professional valuers. At 31st December 2018, the fair
value of suspended trading security listed in Hong
Kong was valued by using the market approach
with a discount rate of 78.01% (2017: 84.61%). The
discount rate is used to reflect the risk of exposure to
corporate governance, illiquidity and financial distress,
etc perceived by market participants who hold the
suspended shares with remote likelihood of trade
resumption.

At 31st December 2018, the fair value of the unlisted
club debenture with the amount of approximately
HK$80,000 (2017: nil) was arrived on the basis of
market approach by reference to value of asset through
an analysis of recent sales or offerings of comparable
assets.
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ERBERULNTEEIERZ
TREE (&

73_/\ i_)\¢+ H:—'—_El wu\gﬁﬂgz
ANFEEL219,372,0008 L (Z T —+F -

213,944,000/%7z>m«1<%%%j ERFEME
TSN EBERERARBEIT ZEEMSH o
REEE 2D ﬂ?f;‘:‘;fﬁ)ﬁ%ﬁ:lﬁit%ﬁ%ﬂ%&ﬁ
NZF—NF+ZA=+—B 28R E21.12% (=
T F 21 26%)ETHE BREAKRES
BERBZERE MTRENERREMIEE R
HEEZSEREMARE ZBHER (L)

K o

-

RLEZERBEHRERAY  AEEZEHE LTk

KEH(TEER-_Z—N\F+_B=+—8<
TeEEHF) <A FBEHF249,733,0008 7T °
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
At 31st December 2018, the fair value of the Call Option
with the amount of approximately HK$219,372,000
(2017: HK$213,944,000) was arrived by reference to
valuation performed by Graval Consulting Limited,
a firm of independent qualified professional valuers.
The fair value of the Call Option was valued by using
the binomial option pricing model with discount rate
of 21.12% (2017: 21.26%) at 31st December 2018. A
discount rate is the expected rate of return (or yield)
that an investor would have to give up by investing
in the subject investment instead of other available
alternative investments that are comparable in terms of
risk and other investment characteristics.

The fair value of the Group’s equity securities listed
in Hong Kong (excluded suspended trading security
at 31st December 2018) at the date of approval
of these financial statements were approximately
HK$249,733,000.
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34.

it Notes to the Financial Statements

—N\E+ZA=+—HI-EE For the year ended 31st December 2018

FE K & =X

33.

LOAN RECEIVABLES

JEU E BB R

W ER R FEFRIE (ZF—tF :3E) &R
WARERERA PR B24EAERER - BY

ERBREEERERBEE KR HHEIER
bm§I§E§°
EHER

Fixed-rate loan receivables

34.

—E-N\E —E—+tF
2018 2017
FExT FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
200,000 200,000

Loan receivables are interest bearing of 3% (2017: 3%)
per annum and repayable on the date falling 24 months
from the first drawdown date. Loan receivables contain
a clause of repayable on demand and thus classified
as current assets.

TIME DEPOSITS

RIBITHR A 2 E#ER

RZF—NFE+-_A=+—"8 THEZUEF
ENTFO7EZ09E (Z T — £ F :0.225[E) 5
B TR FEHRAE3B5E (ZE—+F :92H) "
FE o

RZZE-NE+_A=+—8 FHEZLDH

249,000/ 70 (ZZF —+ % : 136,000 7C) 1B &
WEARERMNEMNMEFTELS TRMBM
R

RIBTTHA ZEMFRIIARFIEDIE -

Time deposits held at bank

226 thEREEBBRAa CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

—E-\£F —EF—+F
2018 2017

T T FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
269 155

At 31st December 2018, the time deposits are interest
bearing ranging from 0.7% to 0.9% (2017: 0.225%) per
annum and mature within 365 days (2017: 92 days)
from the placements date.

At 31st December 2018, time deposits with amounts
of approximately HK$249,000 (2017: HK$136,000),
are pledged for guaranteed to Macau Government for

development of stock of properties located in Macau.

Time deposits held at bank is denominated in MOP.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4F§R



4 ¥t # B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements
HE-ZT—)\+-A=1+—BI9FE For the year ended 31st December 2018

35.

RERBITER

RITERIRFEF LTS UHERRAHRETR
R BREERT RHMTHTERZFHHE—A
EZEANE BFAEENSFREFTEZME -
TEkRE B 28T RTRFEMNENTF0.125E
E295E (ZF—tF:0.13EE1.3E) BEF B -

HEmeReRNERMS  ReRBIERBETF
RS RORSREBHERATER -RZZT—)
FH+-_A=+—RBAEZZE—+E+-A=1+—H
EReReRERLIT RS RRITEBTE
BEEEHENT

=

35.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates and
placed with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default. Short-term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day to three months depending
on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and
earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit
rates ranging from 0.125% to 2.95% (2017: 0.13% to
1.3%) per annum.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and bank balances include cash on hand
and cash at banks and short-term time deposits. Cash
and bank balances at 31st December 2018 and 31st
December 2017 as shown in the consolidated statement
of cash flows can be reconciled to the related items as
follows:

—E-N\#F —F—+F

2018 2017

FE T FH T

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHEREEMRITRS Cash on hand and cash at banks 86,597 43,755
METEEE R Short-term time deposits 1,069,869 380,445
1,156,466 424,200

RZZ-—NF+_A=Z=+—B AELBEZES
RBITEGBP  UET - BFIE BRTRARE
SHEE D B4 54,264,0008 70 (ZF — £ F ¢
574,000 7£) ~ 1,140,000 & (=T —+ :
825,000/ L) ~ 81,0008 L (Z T — L F :
752,000 7T ) }32,459,000/8 7T (ZZ —+ 4 :
34,218,000/ L) °

ARBHEPEYFAAMABRIEE  AELS
BZESRTEBNETHINEEHRE - KK
BUARBIEZR S RRTEBUNEE LR
Pl EASIMNEEH -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4E$R

At 31st December 2018, the Group’s cash and bank
balances denominated in US$, MOP, EUR and RMB
are approximately HK$4,264,000 (2017: HK$574,000),
HK$1,140,000 (2017: HK$825,000), HK$81,000
(2017: HK$752,000) and HK$32,459,000 (2017:
HK$34,218,000) respectively.

RMB is not a freely convertible currency in the PRC
and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject
to the foreign exchange control promulgated imposed
by the government of the PRC. The Group’s cash and
bank balances denominated in RMB which located in
Hong Kong and Macau are not subject to the foreign
exchange control.
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35.

36.

it Notes to the Financial Statements

—N\E+ZA=+—HI-EE For the year ended 31st December 2018

RERBITERR(E
BE_Z-\FT-_A=+—HILEEFE K5H
UIRITASRETREN - L EEFHRITH
BRUREEE  BEFREEBEREE -

TERABELEZEE

MESHEERY HESBEERMREEER
BYRBEEEH —FT-N\F-A=ZBAEXRH
EHEERER  HEEEELHEEREECHE
REELHEIR -_Z—+F+-R=+—HZ#&H
AMBRRRTEFZ -

AERBELENLESB EER
AT

BEFERE

35.

36.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

For the year ended 31st December 2018, the Group
performed impairment assessment on bank balances
and concluded that the probability of defaults of the
counterparty banks are insignificant and accordingly,
no allowance for credit losses is provided.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE

In the LKF Disposal, the Disposal Group are engaged
in hotel and gaming service operations in Macau. The
assets and liabilities attributable to the Disposal Group,
which the disposal of the Disposal Group has been
completed on 3rd January 2018, have been classified
as held for sale and are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position at 31st
December 2017.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the
Disposal Group classified as held for sale are as
follows:

—E—+F
2017
FAET
HK$'000
HESBE EEDBERARFIELRE Assets of the Disposal Group classified as
held for sale:

W - MRS (HE17) Property, plant and equipment (note 17) 299,126
HE T (Hi718) Interests in leasehold land (note 18) 318,366
A= Inventories 3,616
E 5 KRR Trade receivables 49,487
& - FBT FRIE B H th B UK Deposits, prepayment and other receivables 13,690
Re RIBTER Cash and bank balances 41,350
725,635

PEESEBEPEARIELE Liabilities of the Disposal Group classified as

held for sale:

B SRR Trade payables 34,233
BUEZ S - BRTIEE REMEMFKIE  Deposits received, accruals and other payables 35,277
RITHEE Bank borrowings 670,000
BEHERR Obligations under finance leases 353
RIETIR B & (A17239) Deferred tax liabilities (note 39) 80,888
820,751
HEEEZAEFH Net liabilities of the Disposal Group (95,116)

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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SHARE CAPITAL

R4 #E

Number of shares

37. BRAK

37.

N 1} 7% H 7 B 3 Notes to the Financial Statements

o |

Amount

TE-\F s
2018 2017
FHE T AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BREE.0IB T Ordinary shares of
ZEKR HK$0.01 each
EERA Authorised:
R—A—HBHK At 1st January and
+=—A=+—H 31st December 50,000,000 50,000,000 500,000 500,000
BETRERZKRAE : Issued and fully paid:
R—HA—H At 1st January 903,704 903,704 9,037 9,037
ABtRE R BT Issue of new shares by
(Ktzta) way of rights issue
(Note a) 1,807,407 - 18,074 -
1TERE AR (B a2b) Exercise of share options
(Note b) 90,000 - 900 -
Rt+—_A=+—H At 31st December 2,801,111 903,704 28,011 9,037
Het Notes:
(a) AZZE-NENAXNE KRB AHEF AR (a) On 6th August 2018, the Company allotted and issued

)

KA A E KRR B # & ¥ 171,807,406,986
B Limik RBEBASRSE T EEA
RZZE-N\FLtA+—BEHE—REEY
BREEMBRERRG o HRMERIBFELY
448,350,000 T i AR EMMERRB KRR E
CEBEE URAREYRERBER ZE
EKEE -

HE-_Z-N\E+-_A=+—BLHFER &
THEBRESBATELSREREN ROEES
f%0.567% 7T 72 B90,000,000/% & 3 % -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4E$R

1,807,406,986 new ordinary shares at a subscription
price of HK$0.25 per share by way of rights issue to
the qualifying shareholders of the Company on the
basis of two right shares for every one existing ordinary
share held on 11th July 2018. The net proceeds from
the rights issue of approximately HK$448,350,000
will be used to finance the business operation of the
property development and investment and fund the
film and television drama series related business

operations.

During the year ended 31st December 2018, certain
share option holders exercised their option right to
subscribe for 90,000,000 ordinary shares at exercise
price of HK$0.56 per share.
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38. PROMISSORY NOTE

38. AR

w—H—H

BITANR (Hita)
ANREZHEERNE

BN REMF S

EEANE (H72b)
REFEBOANREZ BE (F72b)

At 1st January

Issue of promissory note (Note a)

Imputed interest on promissory note

Interest paid and payable

Repayment of promissory note (Note b)

Loss on early redemption on
promissory note (Note b)

At 31st December

—z— N5 P
2018 2017
FExT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000
173,817 -
- 483,913

1,871 37,963
(466) (14,169)
(200,000) (400,000)
24,778 66,110

- 173,817

R+=B=+-8
UG
() RZT—LEMAXA AR FKEModern

VisionZ & i A 4 25 X Modern Vision# /R 2 84
& E 3 £ 18 A1,000,000,000% T
600,000,000/ 7T By 78 A &) LA [A) BR 20 4 2% 17 &
NEFREE RN E R EEIFIL SR R5E
HE WA —F365H At B AR LREEFH
Bk Wi AN 2T A BB Et24(E A 5
Ho RRAAARLTBELETORTELEAR
ZELXEMBHN KRTHABREERRNERE
BAGHEZAMIE S REEBHRFENE
FBE - ANERETHEZRAFEBEY
483,913, 0008 T 2 EB U A ERFEMLE
TS EERARARBIT Z(AEMSL
ANERETARZ BB EA17.49% °

BE-_Z—+tE+-_A=+—HLEER"
ARBEMRETHNERANEAREE
400,000,000 7 IR FERANFZCHR
B 18 & % 566,110,000 L - R=ZZT — )\ F
—A+tN B AREIBEARLZLTERASE
200,000,000 2 A T RIEEHEMNE - 1RFE
Bl&MN R 2 BB S 24,778,000 TE VKA
WA KRR

230 thEREEBBRAa CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Notes:

On 6th April 2017, the Company acquired the entire
equity interest in Modern Vision and the sale loan
due by Modern Vision with total consideration of
HK$1,000,000,000, in which HK$600,000,000 was
settled by issue of promissory note to Ms. Chen by the
Company. The promissory note was unsecured, interest
bearing at 5% per annum calculated on the basis of
365-day year and payable semi-annually in arrears
and mature 24 months from the date of issuance of
the promissory note. The Company can give a notice
to Ms. Chen not less than ten business days’ prior
notice in writing of its intention to repay any part of
the outstanding principal amount of the promissory
note. The early repayment option is closely related to
the host contract. The fair value of promissory note
with the amount of approximately HK$483,913,000 at
the issue date have been arrived by reference to the
valuation performed by Graval Consulting Limited, a
firm of independent qualified professional valuers. The
effective interest rate of the promissory note at the
issue date is 17.49%.

During the year ended 31st December 2017, the
Company has partially redeemed promissory note with
principal amount of HK$400,000,000 to Ms. Chen.
Loss on early redemption on promissory note with
the amount of HK$66,110,000 was recognised. On
18th January 2018, the Company has redeemed the
remaining outstanding promissory note with principal
amount of HK$200,000,000 to Ms. Chen. Loss on early
redemption on promissory note with the amount of
HK$24,778,000 was recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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—NE+ZR=
39.
NTAREERRZ TR ERRBGEHRREES

it Notes to the Financial Statements
+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2018

39. EEHIEAE

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following is the major deferred tax balances
recognised by the Group and movements thereon:

BB E AR 2
AFEEAE
Fair value
adjustment on
acquisition of
subsidiaries

FAT
HK$'000
RZE—tF—H—H At 1st January 2017 82,948
S M B R B (K iE44) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 44) (2,060)
EOBRENBEABEHEZ Reclassified to liabilities associated with assets
EEMIEBABE(WL36) classified as held for sale (note 36) (80,888)
R=—ZF—tHE+=-A=+—8" At 31st December 2017, at 1st January 2017
R=-E—+tHE—-—HF—HBK and at 31st December 2018
R=-E-NE+=-A=+—H -

ERAEEZBRAEYE  BRUEREMEIR
%Wﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ MR EERRE M ER

ENBABOLEN = (MILIFEBHE) - &K
%lﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬂxﬁ%%@?E{E@E%WEHLL
BiE AASEEERLEEREYENMNTM
FRiGHE -

MRS BIR  ANEE B £606,442,0008 7T (=8
—+4F 1 555,719,000/ JT) AJ 4K 88 R HOR F 2
REFAMBFTRBEER - R REETETT AR 205
E MU ERRAELEREEE MABRZH
BEEERALE -

With regard to the Group’s investment properties,
as none of the investment property is held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through
sale, the Group has not recognised any deferred tax on
change in fair value of the investment properties as the
Group is not subject to any income tax on disposal of
its investment properties.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unused estimated tax losses of approximately
HK$606,442,000 (2017: HK$555,719,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams and
unrecognised tax losses could be carried forward
indefinitely.

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

231



BN 1 B #Ht % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements
HE-_Z—)\E+-A=+—HI5EE For the year ended 31st December 2018

232

40.

41.

B 5 EMNKRM

UNTREZERNERFIZEZ A ZREDIT

40. TRADE PAYABLES

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables,
based on the invoice dates:

0&30H 0 to 30 days

31£60H 31 to 60 days
61E90H 61 to 90 days
BiE90R Over 90 days

HEEE T2 FORKEMA30E0R 15 -

EWEZEE - BFFRE REM

—EB-N\F —E—+tF
2018 2017
TR FHBT
HK$°000 HK$'000
34,932 23,328
225 211

3,264 3,050
38,421 26,589

The average credit period granted by suppliers ranges
from 30 to 90 days.

41. DEPOSITS RECEIVED, ACCRUALS AND
OTHER PAYABLES

—E-N\F —T—tF
2018 2017
FExT FH&T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BWERIR S (Hfita) Deposits received (Note a) 81,301 82,693

HERIEEXBBER Deposit received associated with the
B IZ & (A itb) discontinued operation (Note b) - 200,000
FEETIR B Accruals 7,092 9,344
H A FE A RIB (M ate) Other payables (Note c) 421,455 2,033
509,848 294,070

Mt - Notes:

(a) EhBREEEIEREY LERINEFMKA
BITERE -

(b) RZFE—tF+-A=+—0 HELKLEZ
EBEARCURRERABEETNESA
e kmz®e -

(c) HtENRERER=_Z—/\F+=_A+/\H
BT S R 5 B AR B, FE {5 2 3R I8 #9420,326,0005%8
ﬁ: o

(a) Deposits received mainly represented deposits
received from distributors prior to the theatrical release
and delivery of master materials of film.

(b) At 31st December 2017, deposit received associated
with the discontinued operation represented the
deposit received in relation to the LKF Disposal.

(c) Included in other payables with the amounts of
approximately HK$420,326,000 was payable of special
dividend declared on 18th December 2018.

P EBGERAD CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %k
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42, ERFERERRE

ENFERES KEARERR 2ERARE

HIFEE -

ZRWENBARBEERE

43.

B=
(a)

T-tFT-A=t-ALFR

Iz BEModern Visionf
RZE-RE+—-—AZ+HA "
Best Combo (fERE ) EfR &+ (fEA
E7) BB U EEModern Vision® 2 %
AN HE % BModern Visionf&E X 2 $HEE
AL -—BEERGEEHRA BHREAR
1,000,000,000/% 7T (1 F B E B EHF
) + H $1400,000,0007% T (fEAEZES)
LA3R % 1 32 }600,000,0007% T bA 28 17
R Z 41 - Modern Visions — B #% & 1%
B @ fModern Visionts Bl H) £ & %
BRVERERZER HFrEEEAUR
MPTEFEENK - RWEFER-Z
—tFMANBRENR WEEETERE
BeHLERAREEANR -

Iz BModern Vision's £ #& K A& & B 7 )2
FIR M EREET -
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42.

43.

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

The amounts due to non-controlling interests are

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31st December 2017

(a)

Acquisition of Modern Vision Group

On 29th November 2016, Best Combo as
purchaser and Ms. Chen as vendor, entered into
a conditional sale and purchase agreement in
relating to the acquisition of entire equity interest
in Modern Vision and a sale loan due by Modern
Vision at total consideration of HK$1,000,000,000
(subject to purchase price adjustment), in
which HK$400,000,000 as a deposit was settled
by cash and HK$600,000,000 was settled by
issue of a promissory note. Modern Vision is an
investment holding company and the principal
activities of Modern Vision Group is property
investment and development and its major asset
consist of stock of properties located in Macau.
The acquisition was completed on 6th April
2017. The acquisition, being not constituted as
business combination, has been accounted for
using the acquisition method.

Modern Vision was acquired for expanding
the Group’s property investment business into
Macau.

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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43. ;ﬁ BKEKHEAREEGE 43 ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH

,,,E

BHE_Z—+H+_A=T—RHBLFE#E)

(@)

I BEModern Visiont: B (4&)

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

For the year ended 31st December 2017 (Continued)
(a) Acquisition of Modern Vision Group (Continued)

HreEEZC1E - Consideration transferred:
REZ
[EEE] nNEEE
Fair value
of the
Face value consideration
FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RWEENReES Cash deposit paid for investment 400,000 400,000
BATHEN R (K75238) Issue of promissory note (note 38) 600,000 483,913
BHRE Total consideration 1,000,000 883,913

ZWEERCRERBEEEABARST
B -mUMBEHEIFEHRANT :

The acquisition has been accounted for as an
acquisition of assets and liabilities. The effect of
the acquisition is summarised as follows:

FET

HK$'000

METE (Hi726) Stock of properties (note 26) 1,388,085
FEETIER Accruals (1,126)
FETIE I AR R 2 2 BRIE Amounts due to non-controlling interests (503,116)
BEEFE Net assets 883,843
FEPE N Non-controlling interests 70
Frus b 2 & &= F1E Net assets acquired of 883,913

W fEModern Visionfr E 4+ 2 B % 7 1 F
&F -

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition of
Modern Vision:

TR
HK$'000

REmhFE

REEREZLE  NEERKESZERT
FYCBS U B T #9499,909,0008 T 2 SHE E
%’K °

Net cash outflow 400,000

According to the deed of assignment of loan,
the sale loan amounted to approximately
HK$499,909,000 was acquired by the Group
upon completion of the acquisition.

P EBGERAD CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %k
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43. ﬁ BYEKHEATBEEE 43 ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
For the year ended 31st December 2017 (Continued)

HE-ZT—)\+-A=1+—BI9FE For the year ended 31st December 2018
/,,E
HE-_ZT—tF+_A=+— EIJtiF(f“*)

(b)

WHEERBEZAERAR ([EREF])
RZZ—+FZA+tA AEETHKMK
BERBZ 2 2HBRAEERERGTE
RZBEER R ER173,000/4 T
ERXBY I FEEBRETEYRERE
BEl - WHFETEREBEHLERA
LB R

(b)

Acquisition of Riche Video Limited (“Riche
Video”)

On 17th February 2017,
the acquisition of the entire equity interest in

the Group completed

Riche Video and a sale loan due by Riche
Video at total consideration of HK$173,000. The
principal activity of Riche Video is distribution
of films and television drama series. The
acquisition, being not constituted as business
combination, has been accounted for using the
acquisition method.

V-1 Pdav/ - Consideration transferred:
FAET
HK$'000
BaRE Cash consideration 173

ZWBERCRFERBEERA B ARG
B -RUWBFHEIZEHRLADT

The acquisition has been accounted for as an
acquisition of assets and liabilities. The effect of
the acquisition is summarised as follows:

FHEIT

HK$'000

At EeREE AFS financial assets 173
RekBEFHEIEE Cash and cash equivalents 1
FEETIE B Accruals (1)
T > EEFE Net assets acquired of 173

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4E$R
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%.%ﬁ%ﬁwgﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁé 43.

=

BE-Z—+H+-RA=T—HIEFEE)
(b) WBERBFERIA([ERHEF]) (F)

WEERBEZNELZHLTLFE -

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
For the year ended 31st December 2017 (Continued)
(b) Acquisition of Riche Video Limited (“Riche
Video”) (Continued)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition of Riche

Video:
FHET
HK$'000
ENBReRE Cash consideration paid 173
BB R RIReEMEIER Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired of (1)
WemEFE Net cash outflow 172

REEREZLE  AEFRWESZER
RS U EE T 4939,851,000/8 T Z $HE B ©

44, HEKE A T
BE-ZE-N\E+=-A=+—HLEE
(a) HEHEER

RZE—+F+A+H AEEFTIHK
HEEHE NWHEXZERMYFEE
RETRBEEEXB o HEEE 2 28R
AgEmkHEEEMERHEREN B8R
{& /2,000,000,0007% 7T (7] T A ) - &
EEZHERZT-N\F—A=BREK -
EEENLERBZABFENAT

44.

According to the deed of assignment of loan,
the sale loan amounted to approximately
HK$39,851,000 was acquired by the Group upon
completion of the acquisition.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31st December 2018
(a) Disposal of the Disposal Group

On 10th October 2017, the Group entered into
a conditional sale and purchase agreement to
dispose the entire equity interest in the Disposal
Group, which principally engaged in the hotel
and gaming service operations in Macau, and
a sale loan due by the Disposal Group at total
consideration of HK$2,000,000,000 (subject
to adjustments). The disposal was completed
on 3rd January 2018. The net liabilities of the
Disposal Group, at the date of disposal were as
follow:

FrEZEzAE: Consideration transferred:
FHET
HK$’000
NEHEKE Initial cash consideration 2,000,000
AR EESFE L Cash consideration received related to
BUESNE adjustment for net working capital 34,417
HARE Total consideration 2,034,417

236 hEEEBBRAa CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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44. Hj % Mﬂ'% NI (/f/éﬁ 44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
BE-E-—\E+-A=+—-RILEEE) For the year ended 31st December 2018 (Continued)
(a) HEHEER (Z) (a) Disposal of the Disposal Group (Continued)
KEZHBEZEEHE GBS Analysis of assets and liabilities over which
control was lost:
Fox
HK$’000
MEE - HERE KRR Property, plant and equipment 299,126
HE TR Interests in leasehold land 318,366
T8 Inventories 3,189
B 5 YRR Trade receivables 16,912
RE - TERFRIE KA WA Deposits, prepayment and other receivables 7,544
RekBEFEIER Cash and cash equivalents 75,103
2 5 e IR Trade payables (33,729)
Btz - EETIEE R EMFERFRIE Deposits received, accruals and
other payables (36,086)
MEMERR Obligation under finance leases (351)
EN EEER A RFIE Amount due to immediate holding company (779,958)
EERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities (80,888)
FFHEzEERH Net liabilities disposed of (210,772)
HEHELEBZHF - Gain on disposal of the Disposal Group:
FHExT
HK$’000
HARE Total consideration 2,034,417
FrEzaEEsE Net liabilities disposed of 210,772
ERTER RN Amount due to immediate holding company
BEZERARNIEA assigned to the purchaser (779,958)
HEHEEEZER Gain on disposal of the Disposal Group 1,465,231

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %k B2 ERBBIE AT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED 237



BN 1 B #Ht % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements
HE-_Z—)\E+-A=+—HI5EE For the year ended 31st December 2018

. HEWMB QR (&)

BE-Z2-\F+-A=+-HALFE#H)
(a) HEHERE(E)

44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
For the year ended 31st December 2018 (Continued)
(a) Disposal of the Disposal Group (Continued)

HEHEEBFELZEEHAFE: Net cash inflow arising on disposal of the
Disposal Group:

FHEx

HK$’000

BUIRENRE Cash consideration received 2,034,417

B BE_E—+F+-_A=1+—H Less: deposit received during the year

IEFEABWRES ended 31st December 2017 (200,000)
FrHEzReREEEEER cash and cash equivalents disposed of (75,103)
RERABE Net cash inflow 1,759,314

(b) HEERBERIA(TER]

S
g

ZE-NF+A+HE AEEEKILE
BrERBRARERBEFERHEES
F #7990,000% 7t £ B /£1,280,000/%
Lo ERRHERBZEEFENT

(b) Disposal of Ever Journey Limited (“Ever
Journey”)
On 10th October 2018, the Group completed
the disposal of the entire equity interest of
Ever Journey and a sale loan of approximately
HK$990,000 at a total consideration of
HK$1,280,000. The net liabilities of Ever Journey,
at the date of disposal were as follow:

Consideration transferred:

FrEZEzE:
FHET
HK$’000
RE Consideration 1,280
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BE-Z2-\F+-A=+-ALFE#H)
(b) HEERBRIA(ER) GE)

KEBHBZEERLEDH -

A R #¢ B} 5% Notes to the Financial Statements
HE-ZT—)\+-A=1+—BI9FE For the year ended 31st December 2018

44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

For the year ended 31st December 2018 (Continued)

(b) Disposal of Ever Journey Limited (“Ever

Journey”) (Continued)

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which

control was lost:

FHExT

HK$’000

M - B RERE(HE17) Property, plant and equipment (note 17) 435

Be RN FHE Deposit and prepayment 224

FERTIE B K H fth f& 1 5R0E Accruals and others payables (18)

FER B R A RIRIA Amount due to immediate holding company (990)

FHEZBEFHE Net liabilities disposed of (349)
HEERZEF - Gain on disposal of Ever Journey:

FET

HK$°000

BURERE Cash consideration received 1,280

FrbEzaEFE Net liabilities disposed of 349

EHRTES CENEEERARFIE Amount due to immediate holding

company assigned to the purchaser (990)

HEEZZEF Gain on disposal of Ever Journey 639

HEERMELEZRETAFE Net cash inflow arising on disposal of Ever

Journey:

FHET

HK$’000

BRREKE Cash consideration received 1,280

W THECHeRREFHEEE Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of -

RERAFE Net cash inflow 1,280
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44. HEWMB QT (&) 44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
BE—T—+E+-_A=t—AEE For the year ended 31st December 2017
() # € Ace Season (c) Disposal of Ace Season
R-—E—+&E=F-+hB £& On 29th March 2017, the Group entered into
Y -—FEKHEBEREUHER a conditional sale and purchase agreement to
Ace Season (B ¥ EH HEILITRL £7%) dispose the entire equity interest in Ace Season,
> 2 AR AR S R Ace Seasonit /v 44 which principally engaged in the Nam Pei Hong
=B %R (B A85,000,000 T o % H operations, and a sale loan due by Ace Season
CEEFRER-_E—+EAE=THER - at total consideration of HK$85,000,000. The
Ace Seasont HERHI Y & & FEmT disposal was completed on 30th June 2017.

The net liabilities of Ace Season, at the date of
disposal were as follow:

PTEgEZ IR - Consideration transferred:
FHET
HK$'000
BERE Cash consideration 85,000
RERHBZBERBED - Analysis of assets and liabilities over which

control was lost:

FHEIT
HK$’000
YIE - MBS MRE (HaE17) Property, plant and equipment (note 17) 1,709
mIEE (M:i723) Intangible assets (note 23) 7,582
FE Inventories 52,185
Z 5 EWERRK Trade receivables 3,841
Ee  BRIREBEREAMERKIEA Deposits, prepayment and other receivables 7,213
JE U5 3E 12 AR A % RROE Amount due from non-controlling interests 371
RekBHeEEER Cash and cash equivalents 19,502
B SR ERR Trade payables (1,837)
FERTIE B K H fth J& 5108 Accruals and other payables (3,274)
FER B IR A BIRIA Amount due to immediate holding company (92,724)
BB IBEE (H739) Deferred tax liabilities (note 39) (2,060)
FrbEzaEFE Net liabilities disposed of (7,492)
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44. HEMB AT (&

HE-Z—+tHF+-_A=T-BLFE#E)
(c)  HiEAce Season(#&)

44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
For the year ended 31st December 2017 (Continued)
(c) Disposal of Ace Season (Continued)

1 EAce SeasonZ 15 Loss on disposal of Ace Season:
FHET
HK$'000
BUIREKRE Cash consideration received 85,000
g zaEFeE Net liabilities disposed of 7,492
EETEAZENEEERARFIA Amount due to immediate holding
company assigned to the purchaser (92,724)
e AR Non-controlling interests (425)
o B BB A B R B R R Release of exchange reserve upon
disposal of subsidiaries 58
il &£ Ace SeasonZ E18 Loss on disposal of Ace Season (599)

1 EAce SeasonfiELZ B2 FAFEE -

Net cash inflow arising on disposal of Ace

Season:
AT
HK$'000
BUREKRE Cash consideration received 85,000
B THEZRE MRS EEEE Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of (19,502)
BEmAFE Net cash inflow 65,498
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44, HEWB AT (&)

BE_T—tF+-_A=t—HALEFE#E)
(d) HEIMEFRAF (M)

RZZ—tFRANE  AEETIEK
HEERZUNLERARAZEWNB AR
HEBRAES RIS ERZHEER
4 1 {2 56,800,000/ 7T ° U i A F B
EMERELEER - HEZFHER T
—tF LA+ NATRK - MENEE B H
ZEREFEMT

FraEEZAE -

44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

For the year ended 31st December 2017 (Continued)

(d) Disposal of Rainbow Profit Limited (“Rainbow
Profit”)
On 9th May 2017, the Group entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement to
dispose the entire equity interest in Rainbow
Profit, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and a sale loan due by Rainbow Profit
at total consideration of HK$6,800,000. Rainbow
Profit is engaged in property investment
operations in Hong Kong. The disposal was
completed on 18th July 2017. The net liabilities
of Rainbow Profit, at the date of disposal were
as follow:

Consideration transferred:
FHET
HK$'000

ReRE

KERHREEELRES -

Cash consideration 6,800

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which
control was lost:

FHET

HK$'000

WEME (Ha£19) Investment property (note 19) 5,640
Be RIENFIE Deposits and prepayment 10
FER B f i IR A B FRIA Amount due to immediate holding company (7,086)
ez aEF58 Net liabilities disposed of (1,436)
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44. HEMB AT (&

BHE-Z—+t&+-_A=T—BLEFE#E)
(dy HEWEERAR([WE]) (&)

44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
For the year ended 31st December 2017 (Continued)
(d) Disposal of Rainbow Profit Limited (“Rainbow
Profit”) (Continued)

A w2 0w 7 - Gain on disposal of Rainbow Profit:
FHET
HK$'000
BEWRENRE Cash consideration received 6,800
FrEEzaEFEE Net liabilities disposed of 1,436

HWERTERCENEEERARFIE Amount due to immediate holding company

assigned to the purchaser (7,086)
& 9% 2 5 Gain on disposal of Rainbow Profit 1,150

HEIGETES Z R 2 RAFE -

Net cash inflow arising on disposal of Rainbow

Profit:
FiET
HK$'000
BRFEKE Cash consideration received 6,800
B R EZRERREEHEIER Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of -
W MAERE Net cash inflow 6,800
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HE-FT—)\F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2018

45. & RIE 45. LEASE COMMITMENTS
AEBEREBAA The Group as lessee
REEEIR - AEBRER T Y EIPE fEm & A At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
BOELANREBEEYE Z ARKER A commitments for future minimum lease payments under
EOT non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented

premises and which fall due as follows:

—E-N\F —E—+tF

PORE: 2017

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

—FR Within one year 5,790 4,786
FCEFERF (BREEMF) In the second to fifth year inclusive 12,799 15,494
18,589 20,280

AT EERNEBRREMERNZHES - Operating lease payments represented rentals payable
WX BEE RSB YAR (ZE—+HF H)F - by the Group for its premises. Leases are mainly
ANEBWEARHERTESHEME 2 BIEBE - negotiated for an average term of 5 (2017: 5) years.

The Group does not have an option to purchase the

leased premises at the expiry of the lease period.
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46. & E K

(a)

R-Z—-NE+-A=+—0 FRLH
fRITH A - A S B 491,113,595,000% 7T
(ZE—+F B 2UEFE MEEH
M TiRHEZEAAERRARRREZA
AR B HEREAERRAUTREH
1,600,000,0007% 7L 2 AT B FARITIE E %8 ©

RZE-—NFE+ZA=+—R8 XEEY
249,000/ 7T (ZZF —+ 4 : 136,000/ 7T)
ZEBER (B RENEI4) T EAE
AREREMNRFNMETERS TRMK
i 2 AR ©

R-B—t&+-A=+—R " REES
5 #1202,425,0007%8 7T 1.318,366,000/% JT
ZEFRHET HEREHARERARE
RITEEZER HRZ-F—tF+=A
Tt REEMHBEDERFKELESR
= o

R-_E—+tF+=-_A=+—8 ££EZ
MEREEBHIANEBATREEE 2 ¥
REEER - ZEEE 2 RHEE /353,000
B ERZZT—+F+A=+—HE
EMOBENERFIEHEEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4E$R

46.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

(a)

At 31st December 2018, the Group’s stock of
properties with the amounts of approximately
HK$1,113,595,000 (2017: nil), personal
guarantee provided by Mr. Heung and Ms.
Chen and corporate guarantee provided by
the Company together as securities, have
been pledged to obtain the available banking
facilities with the amounts of approximately
HK$1,600,000,000 which liaised with the bank
during the year.

At 31st December 2018, the Group’s time
deposits (note 34 to the financial statements)
with the amount of approximately HK$249,000
(2017: HK$136,000) are pledged for guaranteed
to Macau Government for development of stock
of properties located in Macau.

At 31st December 2017, buildings and
interests in leasehold land with the carrying
amounts of approximately HK$202,425,000
and HK$318,366,000 respectively have been
pledged to secure bank borrowings of the Group
which was reclassified to assets classified as
held for sale at 31st December 2017.

At 31st December 2017, the Group’s obligations
under finance leases are secured by the lessors’
title to the leased assets, which have carrying
amounts of HK$353,000 and was reclassified
to assets classified as held for sale at 31st
December 2017.
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47.

48.

7?(}% 47. COMMITMENTS
—EB-N\F —T—tF
2018 2017
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
ERERCEH B REHE: Authorised and contracted, but not
provided for:
—URRFZYETFEZ — Development expenditure for stock of
R L properties in Macau 901,776 1,218,512
—BERE  REREY — Film rights, films in progress and film
REZES deposits 116,597 43,133
1,018,373 1,261,645
uﬂﬁﬁi{:}Zﬁ% 48. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

BER-ZZE——FNAZ+TNBEITZAQAR
BEAS BB —ERER ARAEHKT
— BT B ([ RRERTS]) -

HRARE SR 2 ERIERE ([EREREE])
BERZZF—ZFRAZ+BER BUHBESE
BRERIRBEEERETEIMBEL - AR Lt
[EMAT IR ERRAERT S DB MM RITE 2 B
RAMDARA N - WA REEBRAET B 2GR T
JATTE ©

246 hEREEBBRAa CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to a resolution passed at a special general
meeting of the Company held on 28th June 2012, a new
share option scheme (the “New Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company.

The previous share option scheme of the Company (the
“Old Option Scheme”) was expired on 26th May 2012,
no further options can be granted under the Old Option
Scheme thereafter. However, all outstanding share
option granted under the Old Option Scheme prior
to the said expiry shall remain valid and exercisable
in accordance with the provisions of the Old Option
Scheme.
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48. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

48. LR XN 2R % (&

AR B 2 T EHRFBR T

(iii)

AEEESARFRARNLKESERS
HEROBEE UMEARERAKEX
AEBEFARA G 2 EARKEER
((EEEEBDIFRZERKATREERZ
EERy S RN -

RERZEEREASELEMFKERE
B2RIAFBER (BRARRRENM
MEBRRAEMKRREERZERNES
BERHOTRFEATRERBLEST) K
SEMBTEANRS 2EMRFEA BA
SEFIEMRKREREE2ENEELAE
ERBH AEH RELRX  BR -
BN HER LEAXREEA T
F RN (BEEFAIFEA) LD H
BoEIREP(BREMSEP)HES
SR2RENBERRE XA Y REE KM
BEEERELEBRZEMAL -

REFERES B TRR L 2 BREER
HRAB A I ) & B A ) H At B8 AR BB ET 20 7T B
REZBEREMS R ZBNEBE LRTE
BBN L ENBRESSEAARAD %
TR Z210% - % LR 7] i AR SR R
RELEH - AITERREFEREE R
E bR R 8 (R EEBRER )
EREMERTEZBREBTREETZ
BHEE LRI EHEBTREHETRND
30% °
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The major terms of the New Option Scheme are

summarised as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

The purpose is to enable the Company to
grant options to selected eligible participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Group or any
invested entity in which the Group held an equity
interest (the “Invested Entity”).

The eligible participants include full time or part
time employees of the Group or any Invested
Entity (including any directors, whether executive
or non-executive and whether independent or
not, of the Company or any subsidiary or any
Invested Entity); any holder of any securities
issued by the Group; and any business or
joint venture partners, contractors, agents or
representatives, consultants, advisers, suppliers,
producers or licensors, customers, licensees
(including any sub-licensee) or distributors,
landlords or tenants (including any sub-tenants)
of the Group or any Invested Entity or any
person who, in the sole discretion of the board
of directors, has contributed or may contribute to
the Group or any Invested Entity.

The maximum number of shares in respect of
which share options may be granted under the
New Option Scheme together with options which
may be granted under any other share option
scheme for the time being of the Company must
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of approval of
the New Option Scheme and such limit might
be refreshed by the shareholders in general
meeting. The maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
share options granted and yet to be exercised
under the New Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme (including the Old Option
Scheme) must not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.
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48. LR XN 2R % (&

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

BIEESIRERALE - WEM+ A A RER
TERAARSHEEZBEE (BEET
- CEERERTERERE) BETER
BEHRTEBBETZRODEBTISRETE
EETRMDZ1%

REZEBEREHASH (BEZA) L2
TZEAARAARBHREIERRK (BE
RETRADSHEEME GHEALHE
UHHTEEREAABEALERZ
ERE(RECTE  BEEREAITE
BRE)BTEREETRETREIZR
MBE : () HTBBIBADA B EIT
f& 3 20.1% : R(b)RE & XKL B ER
RARGZBWTENE  BEETSER
5,000,000/ 7T + B IFEFAR T HEE ©

TEHRESERNRHERERRE A
REMBERT TEBEEREAHES
Fo

BRELERBREZENTIARES
GEEIN  UWE—RRTEBBER AT
ERI VAR B T RERY -

48. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(iv)

(vii)

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options
granted to each eligible participant (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding share
options) in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue from time
to time unless the same is approved by the
shareholders.

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options
granted to each substantial shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company
or any of its respective associates or an
independent non-executive director or any of
his associates (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding share options) in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such
grant: (a) representing in aggregate over 0.1 per
cent. of the shares in issue; and (b) having an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares at the date of each grant, in excess
of HK$5,000,000, unless the same is approved
by the shareholders.

The exercisable period should be determined by
the board of directors upon grant of the share
option but in any event should not exceed 10
years from the date of offer for grant.

Save as determined by the board of directors
provided in the offer of the grant of the relevant
share options, there is no general requirement
that a share option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised.
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48. LR XN 2R % (&

(viii)

(ix)

AR AARRH B HE308 MK &R
()  YARARRRXNUETZ
TARERIR °

BREZTEELARNTREZERE

a. REH B BARF — A £ B
R W E

b. ERRHAPIRELEER (AL
MR A 2 ) AR — B
Mz FHRHE: &

c. REHBBRARA KD ZE
@ o

RS AR ST B R ER A B BB RRA0F AB R -

RZB-NF+A=1+—H EABERETE
TR R ARITE 2 A -
RZB—tF+-A=1+—H0 BEREFELZE

STEIMEEREAIERE KM ARTEZ BRE
BT Al 8L 31T 2 IR0 BB A53,916,7144%
EARRNBIRZ BB EITRGD 25.97% °
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48. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(viii) The acceptance of a share option, if accepted,
must be made within 30 days from the date of
grant with a non-refundable payment of HK$1
from the grantee to the Company.

(ix)  The exercise price of a share option must be the
highest of:

a. the closing price of a share of the
Company on the Stock Exchange on the
date of offer;

b. the average closing price of a share of
the Company from the 5 business days
(has the meaning stated in the Listing
Rules) immediately preceding the date of
offer; and

C. the nominal value of a share of the
Company on the date of offer.

(x) The New Option Scheme is effective for 10 years
from the date of adoption.

At 31st December 2018, there was no outstanding
share options under any share option scheme.

At 31st December 2017, the number of shares in
respect of which may be issued upon exercise of share
options granted and remain outstanding under the
New Option Scheme and the Old Option Scheme was
53,916,714, representing 5.97% of the shares of the
Company in issue at that date.
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48. LR XN 2R % (& 48.

TREBARFAIEZRR EF AKEEEN
HMBREMBARRBRELFBELELED)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The following table discloses details of the Company’s

share options held by the Company’s substantial

shareholders, the directors, employees of the Group

and other participants and movements in such holdings:

BRELE
Number of share options
RIE-tf
tZA
=t-Bk RoB-N%
RZB-t% —g-N\E +28
R -A-B  ZE-tf ZE-tf -B-B  ZB-Nf ZB-N\f -0 ZB-NF =t-8
SRERY HHEE TRAR &E MR REL] R34 SN REE RBE REH RETE E L
Outstanding
at
Exercise  Outstanding Expired Lapsed  31.12.2017 Expired  Adjustment Granted Exercised  Outstanding
Category Exercisable price at during during and during during during during at
of Participants Name of scheme period* per share 01.01.2017 2017 2017 01.01.2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 31.12.2018
B
HKS
FEMER ERREid
Employees of the Group ~ Old Option Scheme ~ 25.05.2007 - 24.05.2017 776.575 20,329 (20,329) - - - - - -
27.06.2007 - 26.06.2017 772.675 13,359 (13,359) - - - - - -
23.10.2007 - 22.10.2017 367.050 46,675 (24,546) (22,129) - - - - - -
21.08.2008 - 20.08.2018 46.136" 174,585 - - 174,585 (179,179) 4,594 - - -
FERETd
New Option Scheme  04.05.2015 - 03.05.2018 3.150 41,000,000 - (4,000,000) 37,000,000  (37,000,000) - - - -
05.10.2018 - 04.10.2021 0.560 - - - - - - 52,000,000  (52,000,000) -
08.10.2018 - 07.10.2021 0.560 - - - - - 29,000,000  (29,000,000) -
41,254,948 (58,234)  (4,022,129)  37,1745585  (37,179,179) 4594 81,000,000 (81,000,000 -
EppEE el
Other participants Old Option Scheme  25.05.2007 - 24.05.2017 776.575 8,002 (8,002) - - - - - -
23.10.2007 - 22.10.2017 367,050 9,495 (9,495) - - - - - - -
21.08.2008 - 20.08.2018 46.136" 22129 - - 22,129 (22,709) 580 - - -
FEREd
New Option Scheme  04.05.2015 - 03.05.2018 3.150 16,720,000 - - 16,720,000 (16,720,000) - - - -
08.10.2018 - 07.10.2021 0.560 - - - - - - 9,000,000 (9,000,000) -
16,759,626 (17,497) - 16,742,129 (16,742,709) 580 9,000,000 (9,000,000 -
58,014,674 (75731)  (4,022,129) 53916714  (53,921,888) 5174 90,000,000  (90,000,000) -
METHTEE
Weighted average exercise price 4.207 591,806 5.162 3311 3311 0.56 0.56 -
* BREZTEBLEEAERB TR 2HEA * The exercise prices and numbers of share options have
—E-NFENAEBFLLUAE- been adjusted with effect from August 2018 due to the
rights issue completed on the same date.
# TEHR BRI B R 4G o # The exercisable period commenced on the date of
grant of the relevant share options.
A

& BE_Z- N\FT_A=+-BLFEHE
BREAMIAHE - BE-_Z—LF+-A
ST-RLEFESEBREERL  TERE
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No share option was lapsed or cancelled for the year
ended 31st December 2018. No share option was
granted, exercised or cancelled for the year ended
31st December 2017.
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48. LR XN 2R % (&

PLERITE 2 B - T B B2 i TRk
BEROS6BTL (ZF—LF : &) -

BE-_Z-\F+-_A=+—BLFEXN BHE
BER-ZF-NFTARAR=_Z-N\E+AN
AEFL -NAFEHERE ZBREZEFD
F{EES 514 /10,578,000/8 7T % 7,766,000/ 7T °

ZEATFEEFEA-_BEXFE - ERZEH
AEEDT

48.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

In respect of the share options exercised during the
year, the weighted average share price at the dates of
exercise was HK$0.56 (2017: nil).

During the year ended 31st December 2018, options
were granted on 5th October 2018 and 8th October
2018. The estimated fair values of the options granted
on those dates are approximately, HK$10,578,000 and
HK$7,766,000 respectively.

These fair values were calculated using the binomial
model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

—EB-N\F —E-N\F

+HAEAB +ANR

5th October 8th October

2018 2018

THEEER) Exercise price (HKS$) 0.56 0.56
T8 B R 18 (%) Expected volatility (%) 63.25 63.23
FEEEME (F) Expected life (years) 3 3
2 & B2 R 2 (%) Risk free rate (%) 2.32 2.35
78 5 R B I 2R (%) Expected dividend yield (%) - -

BHREDRBARAREBE=F 2ELKE
MEE BATMARRERHANEREREZ
REM  RATERE  TERFRITAZE
AEHTETIAHE -

AEBBRABEEZE - NF+_A=+—H
tFEEBEARAMBEEBEREZEARIY
18,344,0008 7L (ZE—+F : ) o

SEMR T LA IR 2 AT E - 5
BEATEERFAEERERDENEE LS
fEfEst - MR BEAREFEBHRR2TA
BT -
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Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over
the previous three years. The expected life used in the
model has been adjusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised total expense of approximately
HK$18,344,000 for the year ended 31st December 2018
(2017: nil) in relation to share options granted by the
Company.

The binomial model has been used to estimate the
fair value of the share options. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair value of the
share options are based on the directors’ best estimate.
The value of an share option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions.
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49.

EXABEALRES

BRHMBRRAZBEMBEEEN

AEBEBBEAL

FILT FIERRS

WZZ—+FMWAKXH " Best Combo
B A BR % £+ g BEModern VisionZ®
TR A LA EModern Vision# & 2
B 3 #49499,909,0008 T (KB =
1)) - # K {8 A1,000,000,000% 7T (18
"HEEBELAR) REZINFR
B(REITEEBZERARL TN
# ©400,000,000/& 7T R(i)R K EE
BRKEEARARRARRZTEITREHE
600,000,0007% 7T 2 & B o #& fF E iR F
M EEEE B R HANFEEITH ARG
24ME A& E Y - IRIE ETRBIFE14AE -
WEFENERA—BHERS -

FoRoom S o (U
‘“;mm;u}u

MZZE—+FMA/NE  Best Combold]
PR £+ #% i 78 € §8500,000,00078 7T 2 B
R ZERRFEFNESEE - BRER
REAMEFTE0E A ER 2 BERE - WA
Mzt 2ERERABELZESEMR T
2 A A]Reform Base® B 21T AL AN LAY
NERFRERER - REERBZ

Z+E R & FBest Combof® i ] & kR
% +4£500,000,0007%8 7T (R FE RS FHIE
%) H EReform Base2 # 2 #TH

A2 REWE - RIELTRAF14AE
ZERTHR R —HEERS

49.

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

it Notes to the Financial Statements
—N\E+ZA=+—HI-EE For the year ended 31st December 2018

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial

statements,

the Group entered into the following

material transactions with related parties:

(a)

On 6th April 2017, Best Combo had completed
the acquisition of the entire issued share
capital of Modern Vision from Ms. Chen, and
a sale loan due by Modern Vision with the
amount of approximately HK$499,909,000 (the
“Acquisition”) at an aggregate consideration of
HK$1,000,000,000 (subject to purchase price
adjustment). The consideration was satisfied
by (i) the payment of HK$400,000,000 as a
deposit to Ms. Chen upon the signing of the
sale and purchase agreement; and (ii) the issue
of the promissory note with a principal amount
of HK$600,000,000 by the Company to Ms.
Chen upon completion of the Acquisition. The
promissory note is interest bearing at 5% per
annum and will be matured after 24 months from
the date of issuance of the promissory note. The
Acquisition was also considered as a connected
transaction pursuant Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

On 6th April 2017, Best Combo had granted the
Loan in the principal amount of HK$500,000,000
to Ms. Chen. The Loan is interest bearing at
5% per annum, repayable on the date falling
60 months from the drawdown date of the Loan
and secured by way of a share charge over the
entire issued share capital of Reform Base, a
company incorporated in BVI and wholly owned
by Ms. Chen. Pursuant to the Loan Agreement,
Ms. Chen has agreed to grant the Call Option to
Best Combo which allows Best Combo require
Ms. Chen to sell the entire issued share capital
of Reform Base at HK$500,000,000 (subject to
the loan amount adjustment). The Loan was also
considered as a connected transaction pursuant
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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(c) BEZF-NF+ZA=+—-HLF
ER AXERRZERAKEREH
1,600,000,0007% 7T .2 A] &) A $R 1T 15 § 8
SR EE 1B A HE AR

(d) HEZFE-N\F+ZA=+—RHLFE
W AR B S E#A£922,960,0000 7T T A
FTEEEEABE -RZZT—NE+=A
=+—H 35 #12,880,000/% 7T i# & &
BAET A E fh FEURIA -

() FA AEEEHBEALLNIRS:

Bt B #t % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-ZT—)\F+-F=+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2018

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

During the year ended 31st December 2018,
Mr. Heung and Ms. Chen had provided personal
guarantee to a bank for the Group to obtain
available banking facilities with the amounts of
approximately HK$1,600,000,000.

During the year ended 31st December 2018,
the Company had advanced payment of
approximately HK$22,960,000 to certain key
management personnel. At 31st December
2018, amounts of approximately HK$12,880,000
was still outstanding and included in other
receivables.

During the year, the Group entered into the
following transactions with its related parties:

—E-N\F —E—+tF
PLORE: 2017
T T FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
REME Nature of transactions
EWREETERRR Income received from family member
EERKREZWA : of the substantial shareholders and
the directors:
e WA Rental income - 8
CWERE—BEER%¥2  Income received from a joint
WA venture:
BEERA Management fee income 600 340
Bk EWRE Income received/receivable
FTERRREEZRA from substantial shareholder
and the director:
B A B A Loan interest income 59,532 39,955
B ENEERR Expense paid/payable to substantial
REEZHX: shareholder and the director:
AT R 2 FILE Interest on promissory note 1,871 37,963
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49, EXBEATIRG (&
() RMER  BEEALZRSGEHRFE
HP P ERERNF24 M 5542 o

(9) M B RERM 15 E  FZEEBAE
ZHE (BEENEERETESHHE

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

()

Details of the balances with related parties at the
end of the reporting period are set out in notes
24 and 42 to the financial statements.

Compensation for key management personnel,
including amount paid to the directors and

B2REBE)WT certain of the highest paid employees, as
disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements,
is as follow:

BFEREXEYR Continuing operations

—EBE-N\&F —E—+tF
PLORE: 2017
FBT FAET

HK$°000 HK$'000

e R EAERL Salaries and other allowances 24,663 14,242

AR Z 2 RIEFAEZ Share-based payment expenses 10,193 -

ROKAE FIET B 50 Retirement benefits scheme

contributions 144 108
35,000 14,350

BRIEREER Discontinued operations

—E-)\£F —EF—+F
2018 2017
FHERT FAET

HK$’000 HK$'000

ok EAER, Salaries and other allowances - 3,407
iR UK AR FIFT S 3R Retirement benefits scheme

contributions - 12

- 3,419

EXRIZEBARZHFEMIBFEMER
EREBBARREMEBEMETE -

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

The remuneration of the directors and key
management personnel is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.
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50. igﬁﬁ%@ﬂ 50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
TRIGNEERATEFEAEEFEEENKE The following table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
EvANGIMEAG - 222 A5mM5LEMHE which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
AT HEeERNEBRTE - affected the results of the year or assets of the Group.

To give details of the other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.
]
/AL g8 b fiifaR BRTRAR
WELEER 85/1% £3l BERRZELE Ra/imEs  IZEE
Issued and
Country/place of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held ~ held by the Company registered capital ~ Principal activities
ZE-\f 5+
2018 2017
% %
EERRAA (30 L3R 100 100 T EWaREREE
Art Lord Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 At Piece investment and rental
Asiatop Data Limited B LR 100 100 08 REREARK
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10  Provision of nominee services
Best Combo Limited ABRRME EER 100 100 Fr REER
BVI Ordinary US$T Investment holding
FEERAT Bk Lok - 100 B REER
Best Joyful Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1  Investment holding
Best Mind International Inc. ABRRNE EER 100 100 n0kr &%
(Hi#b) (Note b) BVI Ordinary US§100  Investment
Big Century Limited B LR 100 100 B BAENEELRRD
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1  Holding of property for rental
purpose
Business First Limited ZBRAER LRk 100 100 ET HEEGENE
BVI Ordinary US$t Holding of cable right
Charm Faith Holdings Limited ABRRME AR - 100 0k REEK
BVI Ordinary US$100  Investment holding
Charming Era Investment Limited EERGES LR - 100 1 REER
BVI Ordinary US$1  Investment holding
Gl INS: 2 (30 LBk 100 100 BT EAER
China Star Artist Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1  Atist management
HERERTRRERLDA M) A EEEL 100 100 100000RF %  THEXRRRE
China Star Creative Macau Quota capital MOP100,000  Immovable property
Development Limited (Aoze b) development and
investment
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50. igﬁﬁgi\\ Al (lgg) 50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
ARH
/AL g% frisif fifER BRTRAR
i kR 85/4% E3l BERRZELA RA/3REE  IZEE
Issued and
Country/place of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held  held by the Company registered capital ~ Principal activities
ZE5-\f ZF-+F
2018 2017
% %
China Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited EERUEE LER 100 100 M0FET  FEER
BVI Ordinary US$200  Investment holding
EERERRARLT Bk LRk 100 100 2BRZEBRR  REBR
China Star Entertainment Holding Hong Kong ERZEELR 100000082 Investment holding
Company Limited Ordinary/ ERZRELR
Non-voting (Wita)
deferred HKS2 for ordinary
shares and
HK$1,000,000 for
Non-voting deferred
shares (ofe g)
THEEARTERAT (30 Bk 100 100 10000087 EFREEEESES
China Star HK Distribution Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000  Distribution of films and
television drama series
THEEARLERLT (30 L3R 100 100 100000087 SERERTRRARR
China Star HK Entertainment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000  Distribution of video rights and
Company Limited Investment holding
HEESHERRAT Bk Lak 100 100 %1 RESTRELE FER
China Star i-Content Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 B ARE
Provision of film production
controller, director and
producer services
China Star International Distribution Limited ~ EBRX#S LER 100 100 8001XT  ERREREEHEN
(Wi a) (Note ) BVI Ordinary US$8,001  Distribution of films and

256 thEREEBBRAa CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

television drama series
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50. TEKE DT (;g%) 50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
ARH
/AL g% frisif fiifER BRTRAR
il kR 85/4% E3l BERRZRLA RA/3REs  IZEE
Issued and
Country/place of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held ~ held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
ZE-\f  ZF-+F
2018 2017
% %
China Star International Movie Limited RERUEE LER 100 100 % EREE
(#1b) (Note b) BY| Ordinary US$1 Film production
HERTYRERLT (3 ER 100 100 15000007 REERRBRRARR
China Star Laser Disc Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,500,000  Provision of management
services and Investment
holding
HEEERARDA WD) A TEER 100 100 BO000RFE  NEBEEERREEEEER
China Star Management Company Macau Quota capital MOP250,000  Property project management
Limited (Note b) and construction project
management
TEEERARAR (3 BER 100 100 BT REER
China Star Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1  Investment holding
THEEYERAT B 2ER 100 100 %L FYRERES
China Star Movie Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2  Film production and
distribution
HEEEY (2 BRLAA WD) A EEEL 100 100 BOEME  STRERES
China Star Movie (Macau) Limited Macau Quota capital MOP25,000  Film production and
(Note b) distribution
THEFEERAD (3 ER 100 100 2R REETME
China Star Picture Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2  Holding of film rights
HEEERLRARAA Bk Lk 100 100 T BERETRMME
China Star Publishing Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2  Holding and licensing of
song rights
China Star Trademark Limited RERABE LER 100 100 #n REBERWE
BVI Ordinary US$1 Holding of trademark and
copyrights
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50. TEKE DT (/fg) 50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
ARH
/AL g% frisif fifER BRTRAR
i kR 85/4% E3l BERRZELA RA/3REE  IZEE
Issued and
Country/place of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held  held by the Company registered capital ~ Principal activities
ZE5-\f ZF-+F
2018 2017
% %
China Star Warldwide Distribution B.Y. it R 100 100 BI5IET  BYREEEEHLS
(W a) (Note a) Netherlands Ordinary EUR18,151  Distribution of fims and
television drama series
EREEARLA B L3R 100 - 0000ET  KERK
Chunjiao Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000  Investment holding
Classic Champion Holdings Limited RERUEE LER 100 100 #r REAER
(#1 b) (Note b) BY| Ordinary US$1  Investment holding
BEEBRBARLA M) A EEEL - 100 10000027 %  RERLSERRE
Classic Management & Services Macau Quota capital MOP100,000  Provision of casino
Company Limited (Note b) management service
Crown Gem Investments Limited EERRES LR 50 50 Br RERR
BVI Ordinary HK$1  Investment holding
Empowered Century Limited RERAEE LR 100 100 #n RERR
BVI Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
Exceptional Gain Profits Limited RERABE LR - 100 #n RERR
BVI Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
First-Up Investments Limited AERIES LER 100 100 #n EABERREREARE
BVI Ordinary US$1 Artist management and
provision of agency
services
BRERARAT (3 £k 100 100 BT SFEE
Gold Choice International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1  Film production
BEARERDA WD) 1§ THER 50 50 B0RFAE  REZR
Hercules-Holding Company Limited (Nofe ) Macau Quota capital MOP25,000  Investment holding
BEREERAT Bk Lok 100 100 BT EREBERAREN
Hero Star Entertainment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1  Television drama series

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

production and distribution
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50. TEKE DT (/fgﬁ 50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
ARH
/AL g% frisif fiifER BRTRAR
il kR 85/4% E3l BERRZRLA RA/3REs  IZEE
Issued and
Country/place of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held ~ held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
ZE-\f  ZF-+F
2018 2017
% %
High Productive Trading Limited EERUEE LER 100 100 #r RAER
BVI Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
RPRESEEERAA (Wip) A EEEL - 100 5000002%%  RRFERHEERKR
Hotel Lan Kwai Fong (Macau) Macau Quota capital MOP500,000 REER
Limited (Note b) Provision of hotel services in
Macau and Investment
holding
Intrinsic Value Limited RERUEE LR 100 100 #n RERR
BVI Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
REERAR (i) 1y THER - 100 0000RFAE  REEHRE
Merit Noble Company Limited (Mofe b) Macau Quota capital MOP30,000  Provision of catering services
Modern Vision (Asia) Limited RERABE LER 100 100 % RERR
BVI Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
Most Famous Enterprises Limited EERAEE LR - 100 X%k RERR
BVI Ordinary US$2  Investment holding
2R (FR)ARAT 3 EER 100 100 BT BENE
Newrich (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2  Property holding
BEARLA (3 2ER - 100 00ET  REER
Noble Million Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100  Investment holding
FEINFERAA Bk Lk 100 - BT ER
Obba Bar Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1  Catering
“BEEYERLA (3 BEB 100 100 30000008 BFEME
One Hundred Years of Film Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3,000,000  Film production
Over Profit International Limited ERRRES Lk 50 50 00%r  REER
BVI Ordinary US$100  Investment holding

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4E$R

hEEEBEAIRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED 259



BN 1 B #Ht % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements
HE-_Z—)\E+-A=+—HI5EE For the year ended 31st December 2018

50. TEKE DT (/f/g) 50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
ARH
/AL g% frisif fifER BRTRAR
i kR 85/4% E3l BERRZELA RA/3REE  IZEE
Issued and
Country/place of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held  held by the Company registered capital ~ Principal activities
ZE5-\f ZF-+F
2018 2017
% %
EXETERLA (30 Lak/ 100 100 10010008 EFEA
Riche Video Limited Hong Kong ERZEELR BL@E%  Film distribution
Ordinary/Non- 12,000,000
Voting deferred RERZERL
Ri3 (Wito)
HK$1,001,000
for ordinary
shares and
HK$2,000,000 for
non-voting deferred
shares (ofe g)
BEREARAT Bk Lk 100 100 %L RFETREREEH
S & W Entertainment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2  Production of motion pictures
and television drama series
Smart Value Developments Limited RERABE LR 100 100 % RERR
BVI Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
BEREEFREERAA (Wip) 7 REER 50 8 1000RRE  THERRRRE
Splendid Construction and Investment Macau Quoted capital MOP100,000  Immovable property
Company Limited (Note b) development and
investment
RYRERRAA Bk Lok 100 100 B REER
Star Choice Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1  Investment holding
LEABERRA (3 2ER 100 100 BT REER
Star Joy International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1  Investment holding
BRERERLA Wb 1y THER 50 50 B0RFAE  REZR
Stronghold-Holding Company Limited Macau Quota capital MOP25,000  Investment holding
(Note b)
Summer Sound Investments Limited EERGES LER 50 50 00%r  REER
BVI Ordinary US§100  Investment holding

260 hEREEBBRA A CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
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50. FEMBRAT (&)

50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

ARH
/AL g% frisif fiifER BRTRAR
il kR 85/4% E3l BERRZRLA RA/3REs  IZEE
Issued and
Country/place of Proportion of ownership fully paid
incorporation/ Class of interest and voting power share capital/
Name of subsidiary formation/operation shares held ~ held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
ZE-\f  ZF-+F
2018 2017
% %
Superb Glory Investments Limited EERUEE LER 100 100 #r RAER
BVI Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
Triumph Top Limited EERGES 3l 100 100 #r REAER
BVI Ordinary US$1 Investment holding
Turbo International Company Limited EERGES LER 100 100 0005 FEERERHNE
(“Turbo International”) BVI Ordinary US$50,000  Holding TV drama series
licensing right
EERNIEXRARAA i HfER 100 100 10000,000ARE  BAPEEY LERE.
(Witcke) (Notes ¢ and ) The PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 REYRENREEREH
capital ElfE
Distribution of PRC film,
corporate planning, props
and equipment rental and
dramatic creation
HiaF Notes
(a) ERHEEET - (a) Operating internationally.
(b) ORI L 2T o (b) Operating in Macau.
(c) R L - (c) Operating in the PRC.
(d) E&Kﬁéiﬁkﬁﬂ”ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁgﬂn ZZAAR (d) The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no

BEMZARBREAGZBE  BERES
@ﬁ&@i%KZ%ﬂ ERRHATIEAE
{EAHE -

(e) 2HNERE -
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rights to dividends nor receive notice of nor to attend
or vote at any general meeting of the Company nor to
participate in any distribution on winding up.

(e) Wholly foreign owned enterprises.
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50. T EMBE QR (& 20.
Best Combo * Best Mind Intenational Inc. -
China Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited -
China Star Worldwide Distribution B.V. »
Classic Champion Holdings Limited & Turbo
Internationa¥ 9 R AR R R E# 5B - MATA H At
WEABHBARRFIMEREA -

BRERBEAEN MEBRRZIBREXMHRE

P Y B B 10 F A B 3R ) B ] ML B R TR
[ 2 B8 7 o

ARRIESRA  AEEZFERESHASHE
METEKR Bt YERMEFEZZERH
BERANBILED - o UEZEFZ2EMER
AZBUMBEERBET AR -

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Best Combo, Best Mind International Inc., China Star
Entertainment (BVI) Limited, China Star Worldwide
Distribution B.V., Classic Champion Holdings Limited
and Turbo International are directly held by the
Company. All other subsidiaries are indirectly held by
the Company.

Except otherwise stated, the principal place of
operation of the subsidiaries is in Hong Kong.

None of the subsidiaries had debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

The directors consider that the Group’s non-controlling
interests were insignificant to the Group and thus are
not separately presented in these financial statements
for both years. In addition, no separate financial
information of these non-wholly owned subsidiaries is
required to be presented.
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51. RNDQRIMBMRARKEE 51.
25

(a)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE

COMPANY
DA ERR R (a) Statement of financial position of the
Company
—E—+EF
2017
FET
HK$'000
kRBEE Non-current asset
M B A B Interests in subsidiaries 99,599 1,142,386
RBEE Current assets
JE Y Y /&8 R B FRIR Amounts due from subsidiaries 2,572,902 2,078,864
& BARIER Deposits, prepayment and other
H e R E receivables 18,537 270
Re RBITHEH Cash and bank balances 722,191 76,546
3,313,630 2,155,680
HEE Total assets 3,413,229 3,298,066
BEXR#E Capital and reserves
& 7 Share capital 28,011 9,037
i 5 Reserves 2,923,007 2,407,022
R Total equity 2,951,018 2,416,059
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
AT E Promissory note - 173,817
FET BB A Rl kT8 Amounts due to subsidiaries 27,356 691,247
27,356 865,064
RBEE Current liability
B EZ S - FEETIRE Deposits received, accruals
Ko LA JE 5P RRIE and other payables 434,855 16,943
434,855 16,943
=REf b o] Total liabilities 462,211 882,007
EEREEHEE Total equity and liabilities 3,413,229 3,298,066
RBEEFE Net current assets 2,878,775 2,138,737
BEEBRARBER Total assets less current liabilities 2,978,374 3,281,123
HATESREESSEE Signed on behalf of the board of directors by:
BER ELZES
Heung Wah Keung Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
EF EF
Director Director
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51, AATBERREREE 51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
S (2 AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
(b) KANTREESD (b) Movement of reserves of the Company
HRBXE  ARTER Bx  (BHER)
RHAE BABE  ZHERRE EHRE HAkE  /REEA it
Bonus (Accumulated
Share-based  convertible Capital losses)
Share  Contributed payment bonds reduction Iretained
Premium surplus reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
Fin Tt FiEn FiEn FiEn Fhn FiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(fida) (i) (i) (Hida) (fidte)
(Note a) (Note b) (Note c) (Note d) (Note e)
R-F-t5-A-A At fst January 2017 1488186 1946363 76144 1132 316008 (1306467) 2521346
FEERRERELE Loss and total comprehensive
loss for the year - - - - - (114,324) (114,324)
ERELR Lapsed of share options - - (6,284) - - 6,084 -
BRSNS Expiry of share options - - (14,195) - - 14,195 -
RZE-+FFZA=+-B  At31st December 2017
RAZE-\E-F-H and at 1st January 2018 1,488,186 1,946,363 55,665 1132 316,008 (1400332) 2,407,022
FERIRZENALE Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - - 438,191 438,191
W RA A EGHR Issue of new shares by way of
rights issue 433717 - - - - - 433717
ROETRY Share issuing expenses (3,501) - - - - - (3501)
BREE S Expiry of share options - - (55,665) - - 55,665 -
BARESEENRATA  Recognition of equity settled
K502 share-based payments - - 18,344 - - - 18,344
EERE Exercise of share options 67,844 - (18,344) - - - 49500
EAREBET Transfer to retained eamings - (1,382478) - - - 1,382478 -
BERRE (1) Dividend declared (nofe 12) - - - - - (420326)  (420,326)
RZE-NETZA=1-H  At31st December 2018 1,986,306 563,885 - 1,132 316,008 55,676 2,923,007
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51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Movement of reserves of the Company
(Continued)

Notes:

(a) Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the share premium of the Company
can be used in paying up unissued shares of
the Company to be issued to shareholders of
the Company as fully paid bonus shares.

(b) The contributed surplus of the Company
brought forward represents the balance
transferred from the capital account due
to the capital reduction effective on 10th
September 2002 and various capital reduction
subsequently.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), the contributed surplus of a
company is available for distribution or apply
the amount standing to the credit of the
contributed surplus account in such manner
as the board of directors consider appropriate,
including but not limited to setting off against any
accumulated losses of the Company. However,
the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend,
or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if: (i) it is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or (i) the realisable value of its assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.

(c) Share-based payment reserve represents the
fair value of services estimated to be received
in exchange for the grant of the relevant share
options over the relevant vesting periods, the
total of which is based on the fair value of the
options at grant date. The amount for each
period is determined by spreading the fair
value of the share options over the relevant
vesting periods (if any) and is recognised in
other operating expenses with a corresponding
increase in the share-based payment reserve.
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51.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Movement of reserves of the Company
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
special general meeting of the Company held
on 25th October 2012 in relation to the bonus
issue of shares (with a right for shareholders
to elect to receive Bonus CBs in lieu of bonus
shares), Bonus CBs can be converted into
ordinary shares at initial conversion price
of HK$0.01 per share were issued by the
Company. The Bonus CBs are recognised as
equity and are presented in “bonus convertible
bonds reserve”. The Bonus CBs are unlisted
and irredeemable but have conversion rights
entitling the bondholders to convert into an
equivalent number of shares as the number of
bonus shares which the Bonus CBs holders
would otherwise be entitled to receive under
the bonus issue had the shareholder not
elected for the Bonus CBs. The Bonus CBs do
not carry voting rights at any general meeting
of shareholders of the Company. Bonus CBs
holders can exercise the conversion rights at
any time after the issue of Bonus CBs, subject
to the terms and conditions of the applicable

deed poll constituting the Bonus CBs.

(e) The capital reduction reserve of the Company
represents the amount arising in relation to the
reduction of the nominal value of 332,640,000
issued shares of the Company from HK$1.00
each to HK$0.05 each in 1998. Pursuant to a
resolution passed by the directors pursuant to
Bye-law 129 of the Company’s Bye-laws, the
capital reduction reserve shall be applicable
for meeting claims on or liabilities of the
Company or contingencies or for paying off
any loan capital or for equalising dividends or
for any other purpose to which the profits of the

Company may be properly applied.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4F§R



N 1} 7% H 7 B 3 Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE—T

52.

METBMELEARZHE

TRHAJHBERYTEEZAEBEARE (
NEAREHEZEEZHBRE) NEH(

B
B

RelFReEd) RMELPHMELEEREM
BRASREELIEFAARARRSRERGNA
SEZEARERERTFIBARELD RS

=B

—)\E+=—A=+—BIFE For the year ended 31st December 2018
52. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s

liabilities arising from financing activities (including

liabilities associated with assets classified as held for

sale),

including both cash and non-cash changes.

Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for

M=E e which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

RITEE MEHEERER O ERFE EfRE @it
Obligations
under
Bank finance  Promissory Interest Dividend
borrowings leases note payables payables Total
TR TR TR TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZE—+%5-A-H At 1st January 2017 803,513 584 909 - 805,006

BEZBERE Financing cash flows (133,513) (231)  (400,000) (37,860) - (571,604)

FHEEEY Non-cash changes

BORNR (H#38) Issue of promissory note

(note 38) - - 483,913 - - 483,913

REBEANZ BB (M#38)  Loss on early redemption

on promissory note
(note 38) - - 66,110 - - 66,110
BRRZHERL W9 Interest expenses
recognised (note 9) - - 23,794 40,167 - 63,961
“E—+E+-AZ+-HRE  At31st December 2017
“E-N\E-f-H and at 1st January 2018 670,000 353 173,817 3,216 - 847,386

HEZRERE Financing cash flows (670,000 2 (200,000 (5,416) - (875,418)

FEEEE Non-cash changes

HEWBAR (H44) Disposal of subsidiaries

(note 44) - (351) - - - (351)

REBMANZ 2ER(#/738)  Loss on early redemption

on promissory note
(note 38) - - 24,778 - - 24778
BERRE (F#12) Dividend declared (note 12) - - - - 420,326 420,326
BOEABELNECEEN Reclassification from liabilities
HEEESHNE associated with assets
classified as held for sale - - - 770 - 770
BRRZHERL WH9) Interest expenses
recognised (note 9) - - 1,405 1,430 - 2,835
RZB-NE+ZB=t+-H At 31st December 2018 - - - - 420,326 420,326
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53. HFLZREZEZRS

W B Turbo International Z40% /& 7 1 %

54.
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5K

8 /2156,0008 T - AZWEEE AEERK
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N 62 B 2R I 1R R A 2 0L ) 4958,00008 Tt R A A
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53.

54.

R EEAGRAT CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

TRANSACTION WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Acquisition of 40% equity interests in Turbo
International

On 23rd May 2017, the Group further acquired
40% equity interest in Turbo International at total
consideration of HK$156,000. As a result of the
acquisition, the Group’s shareholding in Turbo
International increased from 60% to 100%. The Group
recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests of
approximately HK$58,000 and a decrease in equity
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$98,000.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

The Group entered into the followings major non-cash
investing and financing activities which are not reflected
in the consolidated statement of cash flows:

(a) On 5th October 2018 and 10th October 2018,
certain option holders exercised their option
right to subscribe for 52,000,000 shares and
29,000,000 shares respectively at exercise
price of HK$0.56 per share with the aggregate
amounts of HK$45,360,000 for which the
consideration remain unsettled at the date of
exercise and included in other receivables.

(b) On 6th December 2018, the board of directors
declared to distribute special dividend of
HK15 cents per ordinary share to shareholders
and Bonus CBs holders for which the special
dividend did not pay up to the end of the
reporting period and included in other payables.
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54.

55.

56.
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MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

(Continued)

(c) On 6th April 2017, Best Combo had acquired the
entire equity interest in Modern Vision with an
aggregate consideration of HK$1,000,000,000
(subject to purchase price adjustment), in which
amount of HK$400,000,000 and HK$600,000,000
was settled by cash deposit paid in 2016 and
the issue of the promissory note to Ms. Chen
upon completion respectively.

(d) On 23rd May 2017, the Group further acquired
40% equity interest in Turbo International at
total consideration of HK$156,000 in which the
consideration was settled by other receivables
which was fully impaired in previous years.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

There is no significant event took place subsequent to
end of the reporting period.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS
15 at 1st January 2018. Under the transition methods,
comparative information is not restated.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 26th March 2019.
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BN 7, 4F B % W % Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as

extracted from the published audited financial statements, is

set out below.

E4 Results
HZE+-HA=t—-BHLEE
For the year ended 31st December
= L3 —T—+F TR F TR ZT-@ImF
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
THT FEL FiET FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(gE75) (&)
(restated) (restated)
g Revenue 3,493 9,272 266,420 1,039,758 1,283,597
BrEiAT (E18) R (Loss)/profit before tax (405,336) 110,036 (291,928) 104,768 209,851
FER(AX) /He Income tax (expense)/credit - (5) - 149 160
KREBBELEERL (Loss)/profit for the year from
FE(BE) /&5 continuing operations (405,336) 110,031 (291,928) 104,917 210,011
REERIEREEL L Profit/(loss) for the year from
FEEF/ (EB) discontinued operations 1,458,855 (36,695) (43,683) 2,947 -
FEEA/ (FB) Profit/(loss) for the year 1,053,519 73,336 (335,611) 107,864 210,011
IWTATEGEE Profit/(loss) for the year
wE (BE) attributable to:
ARREBA Owners of the Company 1,053,530 73,312 (335,609) 107,871 209,665
IR Non-controlling interests (1) 24 (2) 7) 346
1,053,519 73,336 (335,611) 107,864 210,011
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EEREE Assets and liabilities
R+=A=+-8H
At 31st December
= o —T-tF —F-RF —F-0F —F-0EF
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
THT FHET Tt FiET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBE Total assets 5,483,222 5,099,803 4,277,204 4,791,461 3,458,795
BERE Total liabilities (1,051,385)  (1,818,343) (1,069,277)  (1,325,704) (537,138)
EEFHE Net assets 4,431,837 3,281,460 3,207,927 3,465,757 2,921,657
ANREBAEGOES Equity attributable to owners of the
Company 4,431,962 3281574 3208362 3,466,190 2,922,083
EEaY £ Non-controlling interests (125) (114) (435) (433) (426)
HBRER Total equity 4,431,837 3281460 3,207,927 3,465,757 2,921,657
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BN k4 H 2 %% & h ) % The Group’s Properties Under Development

Particulars of the Group’s properties under development at

HINRTX : 31st December 2018 are set out below:
Ba fhat
BEEE HREEDE 39t
WE HER TIKR fEARIER  (FAR)  (FHK) AR BiBE%
Estimated
Approx.  gross floor
Estimated site area area Effective %
Stage of completion (square (square held by
Location Lot number completion year meter) meter)  Usage the Group
BRNEEER £6CHHR - £6DHEA IR “E-NE 3,900 47000 2E HEE BE 100%
REBOEH B RS
Zona de Aterros do Porto Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Construction stage 2019 Apartment, residential,
Exterior (ZAPE), Macau Lot 6E commercial, and
Carparking
BRREBLASR R ECET A FERER Z3ZCF 4,700 30000 [FEREES 50%
HERNE
Nam Van Lakes Zone, Lot 7, da Zone C do Development stage 2023 Residential and

Avenida Doutor
Stanley Ho, Macau

272 thEREEBBRAa CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

Plano de Urbanizagao
da Zone da Bala da
Praia Grande

Carparking
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